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PART |
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act Safe Harba Statement

Certain statements included herein and in othesrte@nd public filings made by RCM Technologie,. I(“RCM” or the “Company”) are
forward-looking within the meaning of the Privatec8rities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These famd-looking statements include,
without limitation, statements regarding the adaptdy businesses of new technology solutions; sieehy businesses of outsourced soluti
such as those offered by the Company in conneutiinsuch adoption; and the outcome of litigatiahlfoth the trial and appellate levels)
involving the Company. Readers are cautioned thett forward-looking statements, as well as otheadarby the Company, which may be
identified by words such as “may,” “will,” “expett,anticipate,” “continue,” “estimate,” “project,”intend,” “believe,” and similar
expressions, are only predictions and are subjetisks and uncertainties that could cause the @owyip actual results and financial position
to differ materially from such statements. Suckgiand uncertainties include, without limitation:u nemployment and general economic
conditions affecting the provision of informaticechnology and engineering services and solutiodgtaplacement of temporary staffing
personnel; (ii) the Company’s ability to contineeattract, train and retain personnel qualifiedhiet the requirements of its clients; (iii) the
Company’s ability to identify appropriate acquisiticandidates, complete such acquisitions and ssftdly integrate acquired businesses;
(iv) uncertainties regarding pro forma financidbirmation and the underlying assumptions relatmgdquisitions and acquired businesses;
(v) uncertainties regarding amounts of deferredsm@ration and earnout payments to become payaliderher shareholders of acquired
businesses; (vi) adverse effects on the marke¢ jpfithe Company’s common stock due to the potergsale into the market of significant
amounts of common stock; (vii) the adverse effgubtential decrease in the trading price of the @amy’s common stock would have upon
the Company’s ability to acquire businesses thrahglissuance of its securities; (viii) the Comparapility to obtain financing on
satisfactory terms; (ix) the reliance of the Compapon the continued service of its executive effi; (x) the Company’s ability to remain
competitive in the markets that it serves; (xi) @@mpany’s ability to maintain its unemploymenturence premiums and workers
compensation premiums; (xii) the risk of claimsrigemade against the Company associated with prayigimporary staffing services; (xiii)
the Company’s ability to manage significant amowdtsformation and periodically expand and upgradénformation processing
capabilities; (xiv) the Company'’s ability to remamcompliance with federal and state wage and bws and regulations; (xv) uncertainties
in predictions as to the future need for the Corgpaeervices; (xvi) uncertainties relating to theedition of costs and expenses to each ¢
Company’s operating segments; (xvii) the costsooideicting and the outcome of litigation involvidgetCompany, (xviii) obligations relating
to indemnities and similar agreements enteredimtmnnection with the Compars/business activities, and (xix) other economicygetitive
and governmental factors affecting the Company&ragons, markets, products and services. Readeisaationed not to place undue
reliance on these forwaldeking statements, which speak only as of the datde. The Company undertakes no obligation toiglybklease
the results of any revision of these forward-logkatatements to reflect these trends or circumetaafter the date they are made or to reflect
the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

RCM Technologies is a premier provider of busireasd technology solutions designed to enhance axinizz the operational performance
of its customers through the adaptation and depéoyraf advanced information technology and engingeservices. RCM has been an
innovative leader in the design, development, alivery of these services to commercial and govemrsectors for more than 35 years.
Over the years, the Company has developed and bksban attractive, diverse and extensive portfofioapabilities, service offerings and
delivery options, established a proven record ofopmance and credibility, and built an efficiemtging structure. This combination offers
clients a compelling value proposition with theguutal to substantially accelerate the successfainement of their business objectives.

RCM consists of three operating segments: Inforonatiechnology, Engineering and Commercial Servichs. Company’s Information
Technology, or IT, segment provides enterpriserigss solutions, application services, infrastrectalutions, competitive advantage &
productivity solutions, life sciences solutions antder selected vertical market specific offerifr@€M’s Engineering segment provides
engineering and design, engineering analysis, teahwriting and technical support services. Therpany’s Commercial Services segment
provides health care professionals as well ascalkeand light industrial temporary personnel.

The Company services some of the largest natiorhlrdernational companies in North America as \aslh lengthy roster of Fortune 1000
and mid-sized businesses in such industries asspaoe/Defense, Energy, Financial Services, Lifer®eas, Manufacturing & Distribution,
the Public Sector and Technology. RCM believeéfére a range of solutions that fosters long-telient relationships, affords cross-selling
opportunities, and minimizes the Company’s depeoel@m any single technology or industry sector. R&l\k and delivers its services
through a network of 35 offices in selected regittmsughout North America.

The Company is a Nevada corporation organized #1.1%he address of its principal executive offe@2500 McClellan Avenue, Suite 350,
Pennsauken, NJ 08109-4613.

During the year ended December 27, 2008, approgimdd.4% of RCM'’s total revenues were derived fidnservices, 28.3% from
Engineering services, and the remaining 22.3% f@&mmmercial services.

Demand for the Company’s services can be signifigampacted by changes in the general level oheaaic activity and particularly
technology spending. During periods of reduced enua activity, such as the environment in the Uthistates and the world in general since
approximately mid-2007 and continuing into 200® @ompany may also be subject to increased congmesind pricing pressure in its
markets. Extended periods of weakness in the ecpwam have a material adverse impact on the Companginess and results of
operations.

Industry Overview

Businesses today face intense competition, thdectggd of constant technological change and theinggeeed for business process
optimization. To address these issues and to campete effectively, companies are continually eatihg the need for implementing
innovative solutions to upgrade their systems, iappbns, and processes. As a result, the abifignoorganization to integrate and align
advanced technologies with new business objecisvestical.

Although most companies recognize the importancgptimizing their systems, applications and proes$e compete in today’s challenging
environment, the process of designing, developmjimplementing business and technology solutisrmecoming increasingly complex. 1
Company believes that many businesses are focuseatrn on investment analysis in prioritizingitheitiatives. Consequently, over the
past few years, companies have elected to defdfine or cancel investments in new systems, sofiywand solutions and have focused on
making more effective use of previous technologiceéstments.




Table of Contents

The current economic environment challenges manypamies to integrate and manage computing envirotsn®nsisting of multiple
computing platforms, operating systems, databasgésetworking protocols and off-the-shelf softwapplications to support business
objectives. Companies also need to keep pace withtechnology developments, which often rapidlyderexisting equipment and internal
skills obsolete. At the same time, external ecordadtors have caused many organizations to foousre competencies and trim
workforces in the IT management area. Accordintgiigse organizations often lack the quantity, qualitd variety of IT skills necessary to
design and support IT solutions. IT managers aaeged with supporting increasingly complex systamd applications of significant
strategic value, while working under budgetaryspanel and expertise constraints within their owgaaizations.

The Company believes its target market for IT sarviis among middle-market companies, which tylyidatk the time and technical
resources to satisfy all of their IT needs intdgnalhese companies commonly require sophisticaeperienced IT assistance to achieve
business objectives and often rely on IT serviewiplers to help implement and manage their systétosiever, many middle-market
companies rely on multiple providers for their I&enls. Generally, the Company believes that thigneg on multiple providers results from
the fact that larger IT service providers do nofj¢éh these companies, while smaller IT service iplerg, which do target these companies,
lack sufficient breadth of services or industry Wfedge to satisfy all of these companies’ needs. Campany believes this reliance on
multiple service providers creates multiple relasbips that are more difficult and less cost-effecto manage than a single relationship and
can adversely influence the quality and compatibdf IT solutions. RCM is structured to provideddie-market companies a single source
for their IT needs.

The Company’s Engineering group continues to faruareas of growth within the energy and aerospatestries. In recent years, many
businesses have been adversely impacted by higheioes, and for that and various other reastree has been growing sentiment around
the world for the development of alternative soarekenergy, including a renewed interest in nugbeaver. Over the same period, there has
been a significant increase in spending in theadh8tates in the aerospace and defense industiedarmgely to a strengthening of the milit
and homeland security in response to geo-politioaést and the threat of terrorism. The combinatinigher energy prices and increased
military spending has created numerous businessrappties for service providers, especially thesgaged in engineering operations in
North America and abroa

In the healthcare services industry, a shortageicfes and other medical personnel in the UnitateSthas led to increases in business
activity for health care service companies, inahgdihe Company’s Specialty Healthcare Group. Dygaith to an aging population and
improved medical technology, the demand for setebtlth care professionals is expected to contiwee the next several years.

Meanwhile, the general economy of the United Stawes the past several years has negatively affdetaporary staffing businesses which
are providers of light industrial and clerical heGenerally, demand for lower-skilled workers isakened in a general economy that is in a
downward cycle.

Business Strategy

RCM is dedicated to providing solutions to meetlisnts’business needs by delivering information technolagy engineering services. T
Company’s objective is to be a recognized leadapetialized professional consulting services ahgatisns in major markets throughout
North America. The Company has developed operatirsgegies to achieve this objective. Key elemehits growth and operating strateg
are as follows:
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Growth Strategy

PromoteFull Life Cycle SolutionCapability

The Company promotes a full life cycle solution a@aifity to its customers. The goal of the full lifgcle solution strategy is to fully address a
client’s project implementation cycle at each stafj#s development and deployment. This entaés@ompany working with its clients from
the initial conceptualization of a project throutthdesign and project execution, and extending égmgoing management and support of the
delivered product. RCM'’s strategy is to build pageand solutions offerings selectively, utiliziitg extensive resource base.

The Company believes that the effective executidhie strategy will generate improved margins lo@ éxisting resources. The completio
this service-offering continuum is intended to affthe Company the opportunity to strengthen largatclient relationships that will further
contribute to a more predictable revenue stream.

In addition to a full life cycle solution offeringhe Company continues to focus on transitionirig igher value oriented services in an effort
to increase its margins on its various serviceslifrelative to lower value services) and genemtemue that is more sustainable. The
Company believes this transition is accomplisheginguing additional vertical market specific smas in conjunction or combination with
longer-term based solutions, through expansiotsaflient relationships and by pursuing stratetliareces and partnerships.

Achievelnternal Growth

The Company continues to promote its internal ghosttategies. Its growth strategy is designed ttebserve the Company’s customers,

generate higher revenues, and achieve greatertopeedficiencies. National and regional sales nggmaent programs were designed and
implemented to segregate clients by vertical maakelt national accounts to advance our value adeleites focus. This process is improv
account coordination so clients can benefit frompide industry knowledge as well as maximizing oajanaccount opportunities.

RCM provides a company orientation program in wtdales managers and professionals receive relsfannation about company
operations.

RCM has adopted an industeentric approach to sales and marketing. Thisaiit contemplates that clients within the samestiy sector
tend to have common business challenges. It thereftows the Company to present and deliver erdgthmalue to those clients in the vert
markets in which RCM has assembled the greatest @grerience. RCM’s consultants continue to acquicgect experience that offers
differentiated awareness of the business challetigelients in that industry are facing. Thigatlent also facilitates and creates additional
cross-selling opportunities. The Company beliehés gtrategy will lead to greater account penetraiind enhanced client relationships.

Operational strategies contributing to RCM’s in@rproductivity include the delineation of certaiew solutions practice areas in markets
where its clients had historically known the Comypan a contract service provider. The formatiotheke practice areas will facilitate the
flow of project opportunities and the delivery abject-based solutions.

4
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Continue Selective Strategic Acquisitions

The industry in which the Company operates consrtoebe highly fragmented, and the Company plac®ndinue to selectively assess
opportunities to make strategic acquisitions a sygportunities are presented to the Company. Tdmpany’s past acquisition strategy was
designed to broaden the scope of services anditattwompetencies and grow its full life cycle gadn capabilities, and the Company would
continue to consider such goals in any future agtjoins. In considering acquisitions, the Compasgues principally on companies with

() technologies or market segments RCM has tadgietestrategic value enhancement, (i) margins Wil not dilute the margins now being
delivered, (iii) experienced management persoriiglsubstantial growth prospects and (v) selleh®wesire to join the Company’s
management team. To retain and provide incentivesmfinagement of its acquired companies, the Coyipas generally structured a
significant portion of the acquisition price in theem of multi-tiered consideration based on growtloperating profitability of the acquired
company over a two to three-year period.

Operating Strategy

Develop and Maintain Strong Customer Relationships

The Company seeks to develop and maintain strdeggictive customer relationships by anticipating fotusing on its customers’ needs.
The Company emphasizes a relationship-orientedapprto business, rather than the transactionsigrasent-oriented approach that the
Company believes is used by many of its competifbings industry-centric strategy is designed to\@lRCM to expand further its
relationships with clients in RCM'’s targeted sestor

To develop close customer relationships, the Coryipgractice managers regularly meet with bothtéxgsand prospective clients to help
design solutions and identify the resources neéalesecute their strategies. The Company’s manajdsosmaintain close communications
with their customers during each project and ooragoing basis after its completion. The Companieliek that this relationship-oriented
approach can result in greater customer satisfactidditionally, the Company believes that by cotieating with its customers in designing
business solutions, it can generate new opporésniti cross-sell additional services that the Campas to offer. The Company focuses on
providing customers with qualified individuals eamms of experts compatible with the business nefedsr customers and makes a concerted
effort to follow the progress of such relationshipensure their continued success.

Attract and Retain Highly Qualified Consultants drethnical Resources

The Company believes it has been successful iactitig and retaining qualified consultants and i@tbrs by (i) providing stimulating and
challenging work assignments, (ii) offering comped& wages, (iii) effectively communicating witlsitandidates, (iv) providing selective
training to maintain and upgrade skills and (vymilng the needs of its customers with appropriat&iifed personnel. The Company believes
it has been successful in retaining these persatueeln part to its use of practice managers wkaladicated to maintaining contact with,
monitoring the satisfaction levels of, the Compangonsultants while they are on assignment.

Centralize Administrative Functions

The Company continues to improve its operatiorfadieficies by integrating general and administefinctions at the corporate or regional
level, and reducing or eliminating redundant fuoiasi formerly performed at smaller branch officdsisTenables the Company to realize
savings and synergies and to control and mon#asperations efficiently, as well as to quicklyeigtate new acquisitions. It also allows local
branches to focus more on growing their local opana.
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To accomplish this, the Company’s financial repaytand accounting systems are centralized in tlepaay’s operational headquarters in
Parsippany, NJ. During 2004, the Company upgraledback office operations to include increasedtfanality as well as business
continuity planning. The systems have been confidto allow the performance of all back office ftioas, including payroll, project
management, project cost accounting, billing, humesiource administration and financial reportind aansolidation. The Company believes
that this configuration provides a robust and higddalable platform from which to manage daily gpiens, and has the capacity to
accommodate increased usage.

Information Technology

The Company’s IT segment is comprised of two bussirgroups — the IT Consulting Business Group aadTiSolutions Business Group.
The IT Consulting Business Group consists of thmesiness units in North America — the Eastern Regdite Central Region and the
Western Region. The Solutions Business Group ctangfghree business units — IT Enterprise Managententerprise Business Solutions
and Life Sciences.

The RCM Enterprise Business Solutions Group’s borsgness mission is to continue its strategic fansation designed to focus the
Company on developing proprietary customized smhgiand intellectual property by bundling softwanestems, tools and services into
integrated business and technology solutions.

RCM’s sector knowledge coupled with technical andibess process experience enable the Compangvimerstrategic planning and
direction, rigorous project execution, and manageraad support services for an entire projectdifele. RCM has successfully completed
multimillion-dollar projects in a variety of indugtverticals using time-tested methodologies thahage strict budgets, timelines and quality
metrics.

Among those IT services provided by RCM to itsrigeare:

e Enterprise Business Solutions

*  Application Services

* Infrastructure Solutions

*  Competitive Advantage & Productivity Solutions
»  Life Sciences Solutions

The Company believes that its ability to delivefioimation technology solutions across a wide rasfgechnical platforms provides an
important competitive advantage. RCM ensures thatansultants have the expertise and skills netlkeep pace with rapidly evolving
information technologies. The Company’s strategyp isaintain expertise and acquire knowledge intiplel technologies so it can offer its
clients non-biased technology solutions best suddteir business needs.

The Company provides its IT services through a remolf flexible delivery methods. These include mgamaent consulting engagements,
project management of client efforts, project inmpémtation of client initiatives, outsourcing, bath and off site, and a full complement of
resourcing alternatives.

As of December 27, 2008, the Company had assigmgaeimately 780 information technology employerd aonsultants to its customers.

6
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Engineering

The Company’s Engineering segment consists of thuséess units — Engineering Services and ProjBciser Systems Services USA and
Power Systems Services Canada. The Engineeringc8giand Projects unit includes Aerospace, Manufengf and Industrial Engineering
divisions. The Power Systems units focus primarilythe nuclear power, fossil fuel and electricitytindustries.

RCM provides a full range of Engineering servigeduding Engineering & Design, Engineering Analy&isgineer-Procure-Construct,
Configuration Management, Hardware/Software Valaa& Verification, Quality Assurance, Technical Mifig & Publications,
Manufacturing Process Planning & Improvement, Radity Centered Maintenance (RCM), Component & Eumént Testing and Risk
Management Engineering. Engineering services anaged at the site of the client or, less frequerdt the Company’s own facilities.

The Company believes that the deregulation of thigies industry and the aging of nuclear poweaarpk offer the Company an opportunity to
capture a greater share of professional servicgpaoject management requirements of the utilitiesistry both in engineering services and
through cross-selling of its information technolaggrvices. Heightened competition, deregulatiod, rapid technological advances are
forcing the utilities industry to make fundamenthhnges in its business process. These presswestrapelled the utilities industry to foc
on internal operations and maintenance activitiesta increasingly outsource their personnel reguents. Additionally, the Company
believes that competitive performance demands fteregulation should increase the importance ofimétion technology to this industry.
The Company believes that its expertise and strelagionships with certain customers within thditigis industry position the Company to

a leading provider of professional services toutilies industry.

The Company provides its engineering services tiitanumber of delivery methods. These include measasks and resources, complete
project services, outsourcing, both on and off;sited a full complement of resourcing alternatives.

As of December 27, 2008, the Company had assigmgaximately 450 engineering and technical empleye® consultants to its
customers.

Commercial
The Company’s Commercial Services segment corsfiste Specialty Health Care and General Supporti&ss groups.

The Company’s Specialty Health Care Group speeslim long-term and shotérm staffing as well as executive search and piace for the
following fields: rehabilitation (physical therafss occupational therapists and speech languagelpgtsts), nursing, managed care, allied
health care, health care management and medided sffipport. The specialty health care group pewigkrvices to hospitals, long-term care
facilities, schools, sports medicine facilities gnivate practices. Services include in-patientpatient, sub-acute and acute care, multilingual
speech pathology, rehabilitation, and geriatricligiic, and adult day care. Typical engagemerteerange from three to six months or are
on a day-to-day shift basis.

The Company’s General Support Services Group pesvitbntract and temporary services, as well asgregnt placement services, for full-
time and part-time personnel in a variety of funieél areas, including office, clerical, data ensggretarial, light industrial, shipping,
receiving, and general warehouse. Contract anddeanpassignments range in length from less thandary to several weeks or months.

As of December 27, 2008, the Company had assigmgaximately 410 specialty health care and 490 gdrseipport services personnel tc
customers.
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Branch Offices

The Company’s organization consists of 35 branékeaxf located in the United States, Puerto Rico@adada. The locations and services of
each of the branch offices are set forth in théethblow.

NUMBER OF SERVICES

LOCATION OFFICES PROVIDED(1)
USA

California 9 IT,C

Connecticul 2 E

Florida 1 C

Maryland 1 IT

Michigan 4 IT, E

Minnesots 1 IT

Missouri 1 IT

New Jerse) 3 IT, E

New York 2 IT,E,C

Ohio 1 IT

Pennsylvanic 1 C

Rhode Islanc 1 E

Texas 2 IT

Wisconsin 2 IT, E

31

PUERTO RICO 1 IT
CANADA 3 IT, E

(1) Services provided are abbreviated as follows:
IT - Information Technology
E - Engineering
C - Commercial

Branch offices are primarily located in markets titie Company believes have strong growth prosgect3 and Engineering services. The
Company’s branches are operated in a decentrakrdbpreneurial manner with most branch officesrating as independent profit centers.
The Company’s branch managers are given signifigattnomy in the daily operations of their respextffices and, with respect to such
offices, are responsible for overall guidance amaesvision, budgeting and forecasting, sales andtetiag strategies, pricing, hiring and
training. Branch managers are paid on a performaased compensation system designed to motivat@ainagers to maximize growth and
profitability.
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The Company is domiciled in the United States andeégments operate in the United States and CaRagtanues for the year ended
December 27, 2008 and Goodwill and Intangible Asbgtgeographic area as of December 27, 2008 dofl@ss (in thousands):

Intangible

Revenues Goodwill Assets
United States $ 188,67 $ 6,53¢ $ 27¢
Canada 20,60¢ — —
$ 209,27 $ 6,53¢ $ 27€

The Company believes that substantial portions@thiuying decisions made by users of the Compa®y\dces are made on a local or
regional basis and that the Company’s branch affinest often compete with local and regional pressdSince the Company’s branch
managers are in the best position to understaniditioal markets and customers often prefer local/jlers, the Company believes that a
decentralized operating environment enhances apgna¢rformance and contributes to employee antbmes satisfaction.

From its headquarters locations in New JerseyCtirapany provides its branch offices with centraliaéministrative, marketing, finance,
MIS, human resources and legal support. Centrabzadinistrative functions minimize the administvatburdens on branch office managers
and allow them to spend more time focusing on sahelsmarketing and practice development activities.

Our principal sales offices typically have one gaheanager, one sales manager, three to six gatgsde, several technical delivery or
practice managers and several recruiters. The glemanagers report to regional vice presidents arkaesponsible for ensuring that
performance goals are achieved. The Company’smagjidce presidents meet frequently to discusst‘pesctices” and ways to increase the
Company’s cross selling of its professional serwidéehe Company’s practice managers meet periogditalitrategize, maintain continuity,
and identify developmental needs and cross-setippprtunities.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing efforts are conducted at e bnd or regional level through the Company’svoek of branch offices. The Company
emphasizes long-term personal relationships witttazners that are developed through regular assessifheustomer requirements and
proactive monitoring of personnel performance. Toenpany’s sales personnel make regular visits itieg and prospective customers.
New customers are obtained through active saleggmts and referrals. The Company encourages itbogegs to participate in national a
regional trade associations, local chambers of ceroenand other civic associations. The Companyssteettevelop strategic partnering
relationships with its customers by providing coetpnsive solutions for all aspects of a custoniefésmation technology, engineering and
other professional services needs. The Companyeotrates on providing carefully screened profesd®with the appropriate skills in a
timely manner and at competitive prices. The Corgpgagularly monitors the quality of the servicesypded by its personnel and obtains
feedback from its customers as to their satisfaatith the services provided.

The Company has elevated the importance of wonkiitly and developing its partner alliances with tealogy firms. Partner programs are in
place with firms RCM has identified as strategigahportant to the completeness of the servicerimifeof the Company. Relations have b
established with firms such as Microsoft, QAD, Marg IBM, Harland Financial and Oracle, among oshdihe partner programs may be
managed either at a national level from RCM'’s coapmoffices or at a regional level from its bradfices.

9
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The Company'’s larger representative customersdec8M, ADP, BancTec, Bristol Myers Squibb, Brucevieg Entergy, FlightSafety
International, Lilly del Caribe, Microsoft, MSC ladtrial Supply, New York City Department of Educati Ontario Power Group, Schering
Plough, United Technologies, U.S. Department offtteasury, Wyeth and Wells Fargo. The Company seffegtune 1000 companies and
many middle market clients. The Company’s relatips with these customers are typically formecdatdustomers’ local or regional level
and from time to time, when appropriate, at theoocaite level for national accounts.

During 2008, United Technologies accounted for #d.df the Company’s revenues. No other customerwated for 10% or more of the
Company’s revenues. The Company'’s five, ten anaityvargest customers accounted for approximatély%®, 33.5% and 44.0%,
respectively, of the Company’s revenues for 2008.

Recruiting and Training

The Company devotes a significant amount of tinetr@sources, primarily at the branch level, to fimgg training and retaining its
professional personnel. Full-time recruiters udilthe Company’s proprietary databases of availaéisonnel, which are cross-indexed by
competency and skill to match potential candidatiéls the specific project requirements of the casto. The qualified personnel in the
databases are identified through numerous acsyitieluding networking, referrals, trade shows, fairs, schools, newspaper and trade
journal advertising, Internet recruiting servicesl adhe Compar’s website.

The Company believes that a significant elemetih@fCompany’s success in retaining qualified caastd and contract personnel is the
Company'’s use of consultant relationship managaug@chnical practice managers. Consultant relgliipnmanagers are qualified Company
personnel dedicated to maintaining on-site cométtt, and monitoring the satisfaction levels o iompany’s consultants and contract
personnel while they are on assignment. Practigeagers are consulting managers responsible fdetthmical development and career
development of the Company'’s technical personngivihe defined practice areas. The Company pesvidchnical training and skills
development through vendor-sponsored courses, dempased training tools and on the job mentorimgmams.

Information Systems

The Company is continuing to invest in its currERP installation. During 2004, the Company upgdatthe hardware, operating system, and
ERP software to accommodate its growing needs ERie system is hosted on Windows 2003 enterpriseiseperating system and on mi
redundant Dell PowerEdge servers. The branch sffifehe Company are networked to the corporafeeasfivia private circuits, which ena
the ERP application to be accessed securely apatiational locations. The ERP system supportsgaomwide operations such as payroll,
billing, human resources, project systems, acca@tsivable, accounts payable, all general ledgewunting and consolidation reporting
functionality.

The Company also has Autotime, an automated tirdeattendance system, which augments the ERP afipiiday catering to the needs of
its diverse business offerings and distributed fiade. The system is housed on a three-tieredtaathre on DELL PowerEdge 1800 servers
and is currently deployed in the Canadian division.

The Company has migrated its Recruiting (e.g. Gaid) and Sales (e.g. Requirement) Tracking to dah@&n application service provider
(ASP) solution. The integrated solution allows R@Mrack all client requirements on an enterpréseel. The solution further permits RCM
to search multiple sources (e.g. job boards) totifleand match suitable candidates for an oppdtgwor need. This solution allows RCM to
build and maintain a proprietary database of prkfip candidates, thereby enhancing our abilityespond to client demands. Furthermore,
the solution increases visibility internally to salpersonnel and the management team to managepsii@rities no longer on a localized bu
national basis. Customized reporting and query luipjes allow RCM management to monitor personpaiformance and client
responsiveness. All data and information is acbéssia the web.
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RCM has engaged in three major strategic initiaticeimprove upon its ability to secure data, deliservices and improve on its
communication infrastructure.

RCM deployed a new mail architecture based on tieeddoft Exchange 2007 platform. The system is aiged of redundant mail routing
servers and clustered mailbox servers attached®btorage Area Network (SAN) This new messaging@iat has the current capacity of six
Terabytes (TB), with the capability of scaling #® Terabytes (TB). In addition to mail storage besimpd for VOIP integration, web access to
the mail server is only allowed via secure HTTRstqeol.

RCM has upgraded its perimeter network and WAN iggcture to a secure centralized model on Privaewdrk Transport (PNT) AT&T
circuits, utilizing Multiple Packet Label Switchif§yIPLS) transport protocol. The hub datacentetsabperational headquarters has been
outfitted with redundant fiber circuits from AT&Thd Optimum Lightpath utilizing Border gateway Pratb(BGP) for automatic failover. In
addition, redundant firewalls, routers and switghémchitecture should protect against hardwareril

The move to service oriented architecture facéiahe implementation of the Cisco Voice over (W) solution which is currently
deployed throughout RCM’s offices. This enterpgséution, based on Cisco Call Manager, Unity voiagnMobility Manager, Meeting
Place, Fax Server and Video Presence will, wherpbeted, unify all RCM offices in the US and CanaSammary of benefits include four
digit extension calls between RCM offices, emad anicemail unification, soft and mobile phone gration, video and web conferencing,
central and email enabled faxing.

The above initiatives have contributed to improeechmunication within RCM and also to its clients.

Other Information

Safeguards Business, Disaster and Contingency Planning

RCM has implemented a number of safeguards to girtite Company from various system-related riskiiging a warm data center disaster
recovery site, redundant telecommunications angeselystems architecture, multi-tiered server agsktbp backup infrastructure, and data
center physical and environmental controls. In toldi RCM has developed disaster recovery / busigeatinuity procedures for all offices.

Given the significant amount of data generatethén@ompany’s key processes including recruitinggssgayroll and customer

invoicing, RCM has established redundant procedduestioning on a daily basis, within the Compangtimary data center. This
redundancy should mitigate the risks related talare, application and data loss by utilizing tbaeept of live differential backups of
servers and desktops to Storage Area (SAN) dewicéts backup LAN, culminating in offsite tape stge at an independent facility. Besides
the local tape backup rotation of branch officeteys, data is also replicated to SAN devices isippany to achieve business continuity.
Controls within the data center environment englaé all systems are proactively monitored and dapaioperly archived.

Additionally, RCM has contracted and brokered styat relationships with thirgharty vendors to meet its recovery objectives smdiient of
system disruption. For example, comprehensive setevel agreements provided by AT&T and CiscoR@M'’s data circuits and network
devices, guarantee minimal outages as well as mem@dundancy and scalability. The Disaster Reopsée, located at the corporate office
in Pennsauken, NJ, provides WAN, ERP and messagingces should the primary data center facilitfatsippany, NJ, become inoperable.
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Safeguards Business, Disaster and Contingency Planf®ontinued)

The Company'’s ability to protect its data assetsresy damage from fire, power loss, telecommuricatifailures, and facility violations is
critical. The Company uses Postini mail managersentice to filter all emails destined for the RCMadmain before being delivered to the
corporate mail servers. Websense, web filteringaties been deployed to safeguard the enterprise rinalicious internet content. The
deployment of virus, spam, and patch managementasmextends from the perimeter network to allkdegs and is centrally monitored and
managed. In addition to the virus and malware aisitan Intrusion Protection System (IPS) monitord alerts on changes in network traffic
patterns as well as known hostile signatures.

The Company maintains a disaster recovery plandtlidines the recovery organization structure,g@mnd procedures, including site
addendum disaster plans for all of its key opegatifices. Corporate IT personnel regulate the teaiance and integrity of backed-up data
throughout the Company.

Competition

The market for IT and engineering services is higlimpetitive and is subject to rapid change. Asrttarket demand has shifted, many
software companies have adopted tactics to puewéss and consulting offerings making them dicarhpetitors when in the past they n
have been alliance partners. Primary competitaiside participants from a variety of market segragimcluding publicly and privately held
firms, systems consulting and implementation firaggplication software firms, service groups of comep equipment companies, facilities
management companies, general management condirtirsgand staffing companies. In addition, the @amy competes with its clients’
internal resources, particularly where these resmurepresent a fixed cost to the client. Such editign may impose additional pricing
pressures on the Company.

The Company believes its principal competitive adages in the IT and engineering services markdtide: strong relationships with
existing clients, a long-term track record with 0%e000 clients, a broad range of services, tectheixpertise, knowledge and experience in
multiple industry sectors, quality and flexibilibf service, responsiveness to client needs andispeselivering IT solutions.

Additionally, the Company competes for suitablelasijon candidates based on its differentiatecuaition model, its entrepreneurial and
decentralized operating philosophy, and its stromgorate-level support and resources.

Seasonality

The Company’s operating results can be affectetthégeasonal fluctuations in corporate IT and exgging expenditures. Generally,
expenditures are lowest during the first quartehefyear when clients are finalizing their IT arineering budgets. In addition, quarterly
results may fluctuate depending on, among othagtithe number of billing days in a quarter aredlgbasonality of clients’ businesses. The
business is also affected by the timing of holidayd seasonal vacation patterns, generally regutitower revenues and gross profit in the
fourth quarter of each year. Extreme weather canditmay also affect demand in the first and foqguhrters of the year as certain clients’
facilities are located in geographic areas sulifectosure or reduced hours due to inclement wealheddition, the Company generally
experiences an increase in its cost of sales aotdrasponding decrease in gross profit and grosgimpercentage in the first and second
fiscal quarters of each year as a result of regettertain state and federal employment tax ratdgelated salary limitations.
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Employees

As of December 27, 2008, the Company employed arirastrative staff of approximately 250 people liring certified IT specialists and
licensed engineers who, from time to time, partité#oin IT and engineering design projects undertdlyethe Company. As of December 27,
2008, there were approximately 780 information tetbgy and 450 engineering and technical emplogeesconsultants assigned by the
Company to work on client projects for various pds. As of December 27, 2008, there were approxiyndtlO specialty health care and 490
general support services employees and consultdate of the Company’s employees is representedmflective bargaining agreement.
The Company considers its relationship with its kEyges to be good.

Access to Company Information

RCM electronically files its annual report on Fot®@K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current répon Form 8-K and all amendments to
those reports with the Securities and Exchange Gesiom (“SEC”). The public may read and copy anyhef reports that are filed with the
SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100deStNE, Washington, DC 20549. The public may obitsiormation on the operation of
the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC ab@-8EC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet sitp:(hww.sec.gov) that contains
reports, proxies, information statements, and atifermation regarding issuers that file electratiic

RCM makes available on its website or by respontlieg of charge to requests addressed to the Corigp@orporate Secretary, its annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form@@,Gzurrent reports on Form 8-K and all amendmemthdse reports filed by the Company
with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(theSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amentleedse reports are available as soon as
reasonably practicable after such material is maatally filed with or furnished to the Securitiaad Exchange Commission. The Company’s
website is http://www.rcmt.com. The information tained on the Company’s website, or on other webdihked to the Company’s website,
is not part of this document. Reference hereilméoGompany’s website is an inactive text referandg.

RCM has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable tofats directors, officers and employees. In additthe Company has adopted a Code of
Ethics, within the meaning of applicable SEC rubgsplicable to its Chief Executive Officer, Chigh&ncial Officer and Controller. Both the
Code of Conduct and Code of Ethics are availabde, 6f charge, by sending a written request t@Cthimpany’s Corporate Secretary. If the
Company makes any amendments to either of thesesJother than technical, administrative, or otimr-substantive amendments), or
waive (explicitly or implicitly) any provision ohie Code of Ethics to the benefit of our Chief ExamuOfficer, Chief Financial Officer or
Controller, it intends to disclose the nature & #mendment or waiver, its effective date and torwiit applies in the investor relations
portion of the website, or in a report on Form 8it&d with the SEC.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The Company’s business involves a number of risésie of which are beyond its control. The risk andertainties described below are not
the only ones the Company faces. Management bsli&at the most significant of these risks and tngties are as follows:

Economic Trends

The recent global economic crisis has caused, amothag things, a general tightening in the creditkets, lower levels of liquidity, increas

in the rates of default and bankruptcy, and extreatatility in credit, equity and fixed income maitk. Any or all of these developments c«
negatively affect our business, operating resulfinancial condition in a number of ways. For exde) current or potential customers may
unable to fund capital spending programs, new prbldwnches or other similar activities on whichytimight otherwise use us, and therefore
delay, decrease or cancel purchases or our sexvices pay us or to delay paying us for previoyslychased services. In addition, financial
institution failures may cause us to incur increlamsepenses or make it more difficult either toizgilour existing debt capacity or otherwise
obtain financing for our operations, investing @itiés (including the financing of any future acsjtions), or financing activities.

Government Regulations

Staffing firms and employment service providersgaaerally subject to one or more of the followipges of government regulation:

(1) regulation of the employer/employee relatiopdbigtween a firm and its employees, including tétkhwolding or reporting, social security
or retirement, benefits, workplace compliance, wage hour, anti-discrimination, immigration and kens’ compensation; (2) registration,
licensing, record keeping and reporting requiremsieamd (3) federal contractor compliance. Failoredamply with these regulations could
result in the Company incurring penalties and oliagilities, monetary and otherwise.

Highly Competitive Business

The staffing services and outsourcing markets gfejhcompetitive and have limited barriers to gnRCM competes in global, national,
regional, and local markets with numerous tempostaffing and permanent placement companies. Bdo®etition in the staffing industry
significant and pricing pressures from competitord customers are increasing. In addition, theircigasing pressure on companies to
outsource certain areas of their business to It affshore outsourcing firms. RCM expects thatléwel of competition will remain high in
the future, which could limit RCM’s ability to maain or increase its market share or profitability.

Events Affecting our Significant Customers

As disclosed in Item 1, “Business,” our five, texddwenty largest customers accounted for appraein27.1%, 33.5% and 44.0%,
respectively, of our revenues for 2008. Some afatmistomers may be affected by the current stabe @conomy or developments in the
credit markets. For example, United Technologidsctvaccounted for 11.1% of the Company’s revemu@808, announced on March 10,
2009 that it had reduced its 2009 profit forecas®d and will eliminate 11,600 jobs, or 5% of itelghl work force. In addition, our customers
may engage in mergers or similar transactionsefample, Wyeth recently announced that it expecketacquired by Pfizer, and Schering
Plough, recently announced that it expects to beieed by Merck. Should any of our significant @mers experience a downturn in its
business that weakens its financial condition orgaevith another company or otherwise cease indigrgroperation, it is possible that the
business that the customer does with us would decesl or eliminated, which could adversely affaatfinancial results.

Additionally, the Company estimates to its bestighthat the automobile and financial servicesustlies each represented approximately
3.7% or 7.5% combined of the Company’s total reesnn 2008. The automobile and financial servioéesistries are two industries that have
been severely impacted by recent national and gedmnomic malaise.
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Dependence Upon Personnel

The Company’s operations depend on the continded®bf its officers and other executive manageim€he loss of key officers and
members of executive management may cause a sigmtifilisruption to the Company’s business. RCM d&gmends on the performance and
productivity of its local managers and field penselhn The Company’s ability to attract and retaiwrrisiness is significantly affected by
local relationships and the quality of service mned. The loss of key managers and field persanaglalso jeopardize existing client
relationships with businesses that continue toouseservices based upon past relationships withl inanagers and field personnel.

Revolving Credit Facility and Liquidity

If we are unable to borrow under our Revolving @redcility, it may adversely affect our liquidityesults of operations and financial
condition. Our liquidity depends on our abilitygenerate sufficient cash flows from our operatiang, from time to time, borrowings under
our Revolving Credit Facility with our agent lendgitizens Bank of Pennsylvania. The Company bedigtaat Citizens Bank is liquid and is
not aware of any current risk that they will becaitiguid. At December 27, 2008, we had outstagdirrowings under the Revolving
Credit Facility of $4.9 million, and letters of dieoutstanding for $1.6 million.

The Revolving Credit Facility contains various firtéal and non-financial covenants. At December20D8, we were in compliance with the
covenants and other provisions of the Credit Rgciiny failure to be in compliance could have atenial adverse effect on our liquidity,
results of operations and financial condition.

Goodwill and Intangible Impairments May Have an Adwerse Effect on our Financial Statements

As of December 27, 2008, we had $6.5 million ofdeil and $0.3 million intangible assets on ourdrade sheet, which represents 8.6% of
our total assets. Goodwill represents the premiait pver the fair value of the net tangible andmgfible assets we have acquired in busines:
combinations. SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other hg#ble Assets” (“SFAS 142”) requires the Companyéoform a goodwill and
intangible asset impairment test on at least an@rtrasis. Application of the goodwill and intarigilasset impairment test requires signific
judgments including estimation of future cash flowkich is dependent on internal forecasts, estanaif the lon-term rate of growth for

the businesses, the useful life over which cashdlwill occur and determination of our weighted ragge cost of capital. Changes in these
estimates and assumptions could materially affectietermination of fair value and/or conclusiongyoodwill and intangible asset
impairment for each reporting unit. The Companyduats its annual goodwill and intangible asset impant test as of the last day of the
Company’s fiscal November each year, or more fratiyéf indicators of impairment exist. We periodlty analyze whether any such
indicators of impairment exist. A significant amowf judgment is involved in determining if an iedtor of impairment has occurred. Such
indicators may include a sustained, significantidedn our share price and market capitalizateodgcline in our expected future cash flows,
a significant adverse change in legal factors dhénbusiness climate, unanticipated competitiali@rslower than expected growth rates,
among others. The Company compares the fair vdleaah of its reporting units to their respectiaerging values, including related

goodwill and intangible assets. Future changewiriralustries could impact the results of futurawal impairment tests. There can be no
assurance that future tests of goodwill and intalegasset impairment will not result in impairmeharges. If we are required to write down
goodwill or intangible assets, the related chamddmaterially reduce reported net income or tasuh net loss for the period in which the
write down occurs.

Workers’ Compensation and Employee Medical Insurane
The Company self-insures a portion of the expofurosses related to workers’ compensation andl@yeps’ medical insurance. The
Company has established reserves for workers’ cosgtion and employee medical insurance claims baisdustorical loss statistics and

periodic independent actuarial valuations. Sigaificdifferences in actual experience or signifiadrgnges in assumptions may materially
affect the Company’s future financial results.
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Improper Activities of Our Temporary Professionals Could Result in Damage to Our Business Reputatiomiscontinuation of Our
Client Relationships and Exposure to Liability

The Company may be subject to claims by our cliezitted to errors and omissions, misuse of prapyénformation, discrimination and
harassment, theft and other criminal activity, madtice, and other claims stemming from the impr@msivities or alleged activities of our
temporary professionals. There can be no assuthateur current liability insurance coverage Wil adequate or will continue to be
available in sufficient amounts to cover damagestloer costs associated with such claims.

Claims raised by clients stemming from the impragetions of our temporary professionals, even thaiit merit, could cause us to incur
significant expense associated with the costs mrages related to such claims. Furthermore, suémglay clients could damage our busir
reputation and result in the discontinuation oétirelationships.

Our Acquisitions May Not Succeed

The Company reviews prospective acquisitions asl@ment of its growth strategy. The failure of awguisition to meet the Company’s
expectations, whether due to a failure to succigsfilegrate any future acquisition or otherwisgy result in damage to the Company’s
financial performance and/or divert managementendibn from its core operations or could negativafect the Company’s ability to meet
the needs of its customers promptly.

Foreign Currency Fluctuations and Changes in Exchage Rates

The Company is exposed to risks associated wikigarcurrency fluctuations and changes in exchaatgs. RCM'’s exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations relates to operations in @anarincipally conducted through its Canadian &lilas/. Exchange rate fluctuations affect
the U.S. dollar value of reported earnings derifivech the Canadian operations as well as the cagryatue of our investment in the net as:
related to these operations. The Company doesngaige in hedging activities with respect to foreagerations.

Trademarks

Management believes the RCM Technologies, Inc. naragtremely valuable and important to its bussn@he Company endeavors to
protect its intellectual property rights and maiinteertain trademarks, trade names, service mawttother intellectual property rights,
including The Source of Smart Solutions®. The Comypia not currently aware of any infringing usestrer conditions that would be
reasonably likely to materially and adversely dffear use of our proprietary rights.

Data Center Capacity and Telecommunication Links

Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS), card key accBes suppression, and environmental control systprotect RCM’s datacenter. All
systems are monitored on a 24/7 basis with aledapgbilities via voice or email. The telecommatimns architecture at RCM utilizes
managed private circuits from AT&T, which encompsprovisioning redundancy and diversity.

RCM'’s ability to protect its data center againsindge from fire, power loss, telecommunicationaufailand other disasters is critical to
business operations. In order to provide manysafervices, RCM must be able to store, retriek@;gss and manage large databases and
periodically expand and upgrade its capabilitidey damage to the Company’s data centers or ahyréadf the Company’s
telecommunication links that interrupts its operasi or results in an inadvertent loss of data caditersely affect RCM’s ability to meet its
customers’ needs and their confidence in utilizZR@M for future services.

RCM'’s ability to protect its data, provide servi@sl safeguard its installations, as it relatebedT infrastructure, is in part dependent on
several outside vendors with whom the Company ragiatservice level agreements.
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Accrued Bonuses

The Company pays bonuses to certain executive neamagf, field management and corporate employeesilmas or after giving
consideration to, a variety of financial performameeasures. Executive management, field managear&htertain corporate employees’
bonuses are accrued throughout the year for paydugintg the first quarter of the following yearsea in part upon actual annual results as
compared to annual budgets. Variances in actualtsegersus budgeted amounts can have a significgr#ct on the calculations and
therefore the estimates of the required accrualsodlingly, the actual earned bonuses may be raflyedifferent from the estimates used to
determine the quarterly accruals.

Litigation

The Company is currently, and may in the futureobee, involved in legal proceedings and claims agigiom time to time in the course of
its business, including the litigation describedNiote 15 (Contingencies) to the consolidated fir@rstatements. An adverse outcome to the
referenced litigation or other cases arising infthare could have an adverse impact on the catesteld financial position and consolidated
results of operations of the Company.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company provides specialty professional comgultervices, principally performed at various mlibcations, through 35 administrative
and sales offices located in the United Statesit®@ico, and Canada. The majority of the Companffises typically consist of 1,000 to
6,000 square feet and are leased by the Compangrfos of one to three years. Offices in largesroaller markets may vary in size from the
typical office. The Company does not expect thatilitbe difficult to maintain or find suitable lsa space at reasonable rates in its markets o
in areas where the Company contemplates expansion.

The Company’s executive office is located at 25006 Ilan Avenue, Suite 350, Pennsauken, New J&8&99-4613. These premises
consist of approximately 10,200 square feet andeased at a rate of $13.89 per square foot permarior a term ending on January 31, 2(

The Company’s operational office is located at 28t&%Wiew Boulevard, # Floor, Parsippany, NJ 070244. These premises consist of
approximately 28,000 square feet and are leasadade of $29.00 per square foot per annum form énding on June 30, 2012.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See discussion of Legal Proceedings in Note 15t{@gencies) to the consolidated financial statemérntiuded in Item 8 of this Report.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a vote of sgchiolders during the quarter ended December 20320
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PART II

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY , RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Shares of the Company’s common stock are tradéicherNASDAQ Global Market under the Symbol “RCMT héd following table sets
forth approximate high and low sales prices fortthe years in the period ended December 27, 2008pmsted by The NASDAQ Global
Market:

Common Stock

High Low

Fiscal 2007

First Quartel $ 79C $ 5.7t

Second Quarte 8.8( 5.8¢

Third Quartel 10.3( 6.47

Fourth Quarte $ 8.3t $ 4.92
Fiscal 2008

First Quartel $ 6.51 $ 3.82

Second Quarte 4.81 3.7

Third Quartel 457 2.0C

Fourth Quarte $ 224 % 0.77

Holders

As of February 12, 2009, the approximate numbérotders of record of the Company’s Common Stock 9&8& Based upon the requests for
proxy information in connection with the Compang2®08 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the Comparliebes the number of beneficial
owners of its Common Stock is approximately 2,512.

Dividends

The Company has never declared or paid a cashetligidn the Common Stock and does not anticipate@ayy cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. It is the current policy of @@mpany’s Board of Directors to retain all earsing finance the development and expansion
of the Company’s business. Any future payment widdinds will be at the discretion of the Board a@fddtors and will depend upon, among
other things, the Compars/earnings, financial condition, capital requiretsetevel of indebtedness, contractual restrictiansl other factor
that the Board of Directors deems relevant. TheoRévg Credit Facility (as defined in Item 7 hergpfohibits the payment of dividends or
distributions on account of the Company’s capitatk without the prior consent of the majority bétCompany’s lenders.
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COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURNS

The graph below is presented in accordance with &§Girements. You should not draw any conclusfoors the data in the graph, because
past results do not necessarily predict futurekspoice performance. The graph does not represerfooecast of future stock price
performance.

The following graph compares the cumulative 5-yetal return provided shareholders on RCM Techniegnc.5 common stock relative

the cumulative total returns of the NASDAQ Compedgitdex, and a customized peer group of four comegahat includes: Butler
International, Kelly Services Inc, MPS Group Inad&@pherion Corp. Management believes this peemgrounducts its business operations in
the same industry group as RCM Technologies, Imcinkestment of $100 (with reinvestment of all diemds) is assumed to have been made
in our common stock, in the peer group, and thexrmeh December 31, 2003 and its relative performastracked through December 31,
2008.

COMPARISON OF 5§ YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN"

Among BCM Technologies, Inc., The MASDAC Composite Index
And A Peer Group

$1E0
$140
$120 -
$100
$=0
$50
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$20
$|:| L 1 1 L ]
12003 1204 12005 1206 1207 12108
—#—RCM Technologies, Inc. =——HASDAG Composite =P eer Group
E100 irvested on 1234002 in stode & indes-including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiszal ywear ending December 31.
Total Return Analysis 12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06 12/07 12/08
RCM Technologies, Inc $ 100.0C $ 68.2t $ 69.1¢ $ 81.2¢ $ 79.71 $ 15.0¢
NASDAQ Composite $ 100.0C $ 110.0¢ $ 112.8¢ $ 126.5. $ 138.1: $ 80.47
Peer Grouj $ 100.0C $ 1133 $ 117.7¢  $ 11717 $ 89.17 $ 55.3¢
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected historical consolidated financial deda derived from the Company’s Consolidated Fiisi8tatements. The selected historical
consolidated financial data should be read in ametjon with “Management’s Discussion and Analydi§imancial Condition and Results of
Operations” and the Consolidated Financial Statésnefithe Company, and notes thereto, includedwses herein. (In thousands, except
earnings per share data).

Years Ended

December 27 December 29 December 30 December 31 January 1,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2005(2)

Income Statement
Revenue! $ 209,27° $ 214,20¢ $ 201,92( $ 180,61¢ $ 169,27"
Gross profit 53,97¢ 52,97¢ 50,50¢ 42,68: 40,97
(Loss) income before charges listed be (1,677 7,50( 7,622 3,59: 4,412
Amortization, net of ta: (460 (320 (310 (57 (47)
Goodwill and intangible asset impairment, net af (37,579 — — — (2,169
Stock based compensation, net of (100 (417) (95€) — —
Net (loss) incom $ (39,80 $ 6,76¢ $ 6,35¢ $ 3,636 $ 2,201
Earnings Per Share (1)
Net (loss) income

Basic $ (3.1 $ 57 % 54 $ 31 8 A¢

Diluted $ 3.1 $ 54 $ 53 8 3C $ A8

December 27, December 29, December 30, December 31, January 1,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2005(2)

Balance Shee
Working capital $ 42,687 $ 43,54. $ 38,84 $ 33,03 $ 29,54¢
Total asset 78,84 109,71- 100,04( 106,77: 99,38¢
Long term liabilities — — — — —
Total liabilities 23,49( 17,66¢ 16,647 31,08¢ 29,44
Stockholder equity $ 55,35. $ 92,04¢ $ 83,39: $ 75,68¢ $ 69,94¢
(1) Shares used in computing earnings per sl
Basic 12,647,12 11,970,04 11,773,60 11,456,75 11,325,62
Diluted 12,647,12 12,484,63 12,034,66 11,731,59 11,679,81

(2) Year ended January 1, 2005 had fifty-three wemid all other years had fifty-two weeks.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

RCM participates in a market that is cyclical inura and extremely sensitive to economic changes fesult, the impact of economic
changes on revenues and operations can be sulkteggulting in significant volatility in the Corapy’s financial performance.

After pro forma adjustments to remove the impadtaf acquisitions in its Information Technology segnt completed in 2008, RCM
experienced a significant decline in its 2008 rexanand gross profit as compared to 2007, partlgutaits Information Technology and
Engineering segments. RCM believes the declints iimformation Technology pro forma revenues wasgipally due to a deterioration of
overall economic conditions in its geographic mé&slend industry verticals served in 2008. Thegpial reason for the decline in 2008
Engineering revenues as compared to 2007 was dbe toss of a major customer.

Over the years, RCM has developed and assemblatiractive portfolio of capabilities, establishedraven record of performance and
credibility and built an efficient pricing struceirThe Company is committed to optimizing its bassymodel as a single-source premier
provider of business and technology solutions &ititirong vertical focus offering an integratedesoit services through a global delivery
platform.

The Company believes that most companies recogimzenportance of advanced technologies and busipregesses to compete in today’s
business climate. However, the process of desiguiengeloping and implementing business and teclgyadolutions is becoming increasin
complex. The Company believes that many busindssley are focused on return on investment anaiygsioritizing their initiatives. This
has an impact on spending by current and prospeeclients for many emerging new solutions.

Nonetheless, the Company continues to believebilisinesses must implement more advanced IT andesig solutions to upgrade th
systems, applications and processes so that timemagimize their productivity and optimize theirfsemance in order to maintain a
competitive advantage. Although working under budgg personnel and expertise constraints, compa driven to support increasingly
complex systems, applications, and processes wifis@nt strategic value. This has given rise tteanand for outsourcing. The Company
believes that its current and prospective cliergscantinuing to evaluate the potential for outsing business critical systems, applications,
and processes.

The Company provides project management and camgsiérvices, which are billed based on eitheredpgon fixed fees or hourly rates,
a combination of both. The billing rates and praférgins for project management and solutions sesvare higher than those for professi
consulting services. The Company generally endsaeoexpand its sales of higher margin solutiors@oject management services. The
Company also realizes revenues from client engagentieat range from the placement of contract antpbrary technical consultants to
project assignments that entail the delivery of-emdnd solutions. These services are primarilyioled to the client at hourly rates that are
established for each of the Company’s consultaasedb upon their skill level, experience and the typpwork performed.

The majority of the Compang’services are provided under purchase ordersr&stare utilized on certain of the more complesignment:
where the engagements are for longer terms or witerdse documentation on the nature and scogeeaddsignment is necessary. Although
contracts normally relate to longer-term and mam@glex engagements, they do not obligate the custéorpurchase a minimum level of
services and are generally terminable by the custam 60 to 90 daysiotice. The Company, from time to time, enters gdatracts requirir
the completion of specific deliverables. Typicalese contracts are for less than one year. Thgo@oy recognizes revenue on these
deliverables at the time the client accepts andaygs the deliverables.
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Costs of services consist primarily of salaries amthpensation-related expenses for billable coastdt including payroll taxes, employee
benefits, and insurance. Selling, general and adtrative expenses consist primarily of salaried banefits of personnel responsible for
business development, recruiting, operating a@wjitand training, and include corporate overhe@emses. Corporate overhead expenses
relate to salaries and benefits of personnel resiplenfor corporate activities, including the Compa corporate marketing, administrative
and reporting responsibilities and acquisition pang. The Company records these expenses whenédciDepreciation relates primarily to
the fixed assets of the Company. Amortization e=ldb the allocation of the purchase price of auisition, which has been assigned to
covenants not to compete, and customer lists. Aittpris have been accounted for under FinanciabAeting Standards Board (“FASB”)
Statement of Financial Account Standards (“SFASS) M1, “Business Combinations,” and have createxdigill.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company'’s consolidated financial statementeweepared in accordance with generally acceptesusting principles, which require
management to make subjective decisions, assessarahestimates about the effect of matters tieainherently uncertain. As the numbe
variables and assumptions affecting the judgmameases, such judgments become even more subjesthile management believes its
assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, aetudis may be materially different from estimatilénagement has identified certain
critical accounting policies, described below, ttejuire significant judgment to be exercised byaggement.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenues from several ssudl of the Company’s segments perform consgléind staffing services. The
Company’s Engineering Services and Information fietbgy Services segments also perform project sesviAll of the Company’s
segments derive revenue from permanent placemesit fe

Project Services - The Company recognizes revenues in accordantethdtSecurities and Exchange Commission, Stafbeting Bulletin
(“SAB") No. 104, “Revenue Recognition” (“SAB 104iyhich clarifies application of U.S. generally actpaccounting principles to rever
transactions. Project services are generally peavih a cost-plus-fixed-fee or time-and-materigidarypically, a customer will outsource a
discrete project or activity and the Company assurasponsibility for the performance of such prbgcactivity. The Company recognizes
revenues and associated costs on a gross basis/ees are provided to the customer and costmenered using its employees. The
Company, from time to time, enters into contraetpuiring the completion of specific deliverabl@e Company recognizes revenue on t
deliverables at the time the client accepts andmygs the deliverables. In instances where prgjestices are provided on a fixed-price basis
and the contract will extend beyond a 12-monthquaknievenue is recorded in accordance with theg@feach contract. In some instances,
revenue is billed and recorded at the time certdlastones are reached, as defined in the contraother instances, revenue is billed and
recorded based upon contractual rates per hoaddition, some contracts contain “Performance Féasiuses) for completing a contract
under budget. Performance Fees, if any, are redanthen the contract is completed and the reventesaisonably certain of collection. Some
contracts also limit revenues and billings to maximamounts. Provision for contract losses, if anynade in the period such losses are
determined. For contracts where there are multipleverables and the work has not been 100% complet specific deliverable, the costs
have been deferred. The associated costs are ejpahen the related revenue is recognized.
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Consulting and Saffing Services - Revenues derived from consulting and staffingises are recorded on a gross basis as services are
performed and associated costs have been incusieg employees of the Company. In these circumstgrthe Company assumes the risk of
acceptability of its employees to its customersdrtain cases, the Company may utilize other comegaand their employees to fulfill
customer requirements. In these cases, the Compaaives an administrative fee for arranging fdlinly for, and collecting the billings
related to these companies. The customer is typicedponsible for assessing the work of these @mgs who have responsibility for
acceptability of their personnel to the customerdér these circumstances, the Company’s reportethues are net of associated costs
(effectively the administrative fee).

Permanent Placement Services - The Company earns permanent placement fees fromiding permanent placement services. Fees for
placements are recognized at the time the candidatenences employment. The Company guaranteesritsapent placements on a pror
basis for 90 days. In the event a candidate isetained for the 90-day period, the Company witiyile a suitable replacement candidate. In
the event a replacement candidate cannot be lgdae@€ompany will provide a prorated refund to ¢hent. An allowance for refunds, based
upon the Company'’s historical experience, is reediid the financial statements. Revenues are redavd a gross basis as a component of
revenue.

Accounts Receivable

The Company’s accounts receivable are primarilyfdom trade customers. Credit is extended baseslvatuation of customers’ financial
condition and, generally, collateral is not regdirAccounts receivable payment terms vary andtatedin the financial statements at
amounts due from customers net of an allowancddabtful accounts. Accounts outstanding longer tih@rpayment terms are considered
past due. The Company determines its allowancebgidering a number of factors, including the léngfttime trade accounts receivable are
past due, the Company’s previous loss historycttstomer’s current ability to pay its obligationth® Company, and the condition of the
general economy and the industry as a whole. Thep@aay writes off accounts receivable when they brexancollectible, and payments
subsequently received on such receivables aretedetti the allowance for doubtful accounts.

The Company’s accounts receivable allowance fobtfaliaccounts decreased by approximately $0.Ganilio $0.9 million as of

December 27, 2008 from $1.6 million as of Decen#t®r2007. The primary reason for this decreasethatthe Company believes its
accounts receivable balance before allowance fobtfial accounts as of December 27, 2008 was matainghan the accounts receivable
balance before allowance for doubtful accountsfd&®egember 29, 2007. The Company experienced wffteef accounts receivable in 20(
excluding the write-off of the note receivable 6f % million described below, of $2.2 million as goaned to $0.7 million in 2007. Due to the
increased write-offs of accounts receivable in 2@0®wer allowance for doubtful accounts was resgiso consequently $0.6 million of
those write-offs were charged to accounts recegvatbbwance for doubtful accounts. Bad debt expesmsduding the write-off of the note
receivable of $6.1 million described below, wass&hillion in 2008 as compared to $0.6 million in0Z0

On February 26, 2008, the Company accepted a psomgigiote from a customer for $7.5 million in payrnef a like amount of accounts
receivable from that customer. The customer paid &fillion through April 30, 2008 at which point megement of the Company concluded
that the customer was going to default on its Ma®QD8 installment payment. The Company has sieterehined that the note receivable is
not collectible. Therefore, the Company wrote bf§tnote receivable in the amount of $6.1 million.
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Goodwill

Gooduwill represents the premium paid over thevalue of the net tangible and intangible assettawe acquired in business combinations.
SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible AssdtSFAS 142") requires the Company to perform adyeil and intangible asset
impairment test on at least an annual basis. Agitio of the goodwill and intangible asset impaintiiest requires significant judgments
including estimation of future cash flows, whichdispendent on internal forecasts, estimation ofahg-term rate of growth for the
businesses, the useful life over which cash flowsoscur and determination of our weighted avereagst of capital. Changes in these
estimates and assumptions could materially affectietermination of fair value and/or conclusiongyoodwill and intangible asset
impairment for each reporting unit. The Companyduats its annual goodwill and intangible asset impant test as of the last day of the
Company’s fiscal November each year, or more fratiyéf indicators of impairment exist. We periodlty analyze whether any such
indicators of impairment exist. A significant amowf judgment is involved in determining if an iedtor of impairment has occurred. Such
indicators may include a sustained, significantidedn our share price and market capitalizateodgcline in our expected future cash flows,
a significant adverse change in legal factors dhénbusiness climate, unanticipated competitiali@rslower expected growth rates, among
others. The Company compares the fair value of ehith reporting units to their respective cargyialues, including related goodwill and
intangible assets.

During 2008, the Company incurred goodwill and mgfidle asset impairment expense of $43.3 millidme Teduction in the value of goodw
and intangible assets is primarily attributed wueed expectations for future cash flows in thedaoted reporting units. The reduced expected
cash flows resulted in a lower discounted cash flalgulation as compared to prior year’s goodwilll antangible asset impairment tests. The
Company reduced expectations for future cash fldwesprimarily to a weakened general economy anéntaiaty as to the demand for our
reporting unit services. Goodwill at December 2@ and December 29, 2007 was $6.5 million and@88llion, respectively. Intangible
assets at December 27, 2008 and December 29, 280¥®3 million. See Footnote 5 to the Financiatehents for a further explanation.
Future changes in our industries could impact éiseilts of future annual impairment tests. Therebmno assurance that future tests of
goodwill and intangible asset impairment will nesult in impairment charges.

Long-Lived and Intangible Assets

The Company evaluates long-lived assets and irtibngssets with definite lives for impairment whesreevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset nwdya recoverable. When it is probable that undisted future cash flows will not be
sufficient to recover an asset’s carrying amoung,dsset is written down to its fair value. Assetse disposed of by sale, if any, are reported
at the lower of the carrying amount or fair valasd cost to sell.

Accounting for Stock Options
The Company uses stock options to attract, resaid,reward employees for long-term service.

Effective as of January 1, 2006, the Company adbBfeAS 123R “Share Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R"ASE23R requires that the
compensation cost relating to stock-based paymansactions be recognized in financial statemdriat cost is measured based on the fair
value of the equity or liability instruments issu&FAS 123R covers a wide range of stock-based ensgtion arrangements including stock
options, restricted stock plans, performance-basextds, stock appreciation rights and employee&kgtacchase plans.

In addition to the accounting standard that seth fihe financial reporting objectives and reladéedounting principles, SFAS 123R includes
an appendix of implementation guidance that praviebpanded guidance on measuring the fair valséook-based payment awards. In
March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commissgued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (“SAB 1Q7&lating to SFAS 123R. The
Company has applied the provisions of SAB 107dradoption of SFAS 123R.
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Since the Company adopted SFAS 123R, effectivealsriy 2006, using the modifigotospective transition method, the Company is reql

to record compensation expense for all awards gdaafter the date of adoption and for the unvegtetion of previously granted awards that
remain outstanding as of the beginning of the pleoibadoption. The Company measures stock-basegausation cost using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model.

Accounting for Income Taxes

In establishing the provision for income taxes daterred income tax assets and liabilities, andatan allowances against deferred tax
assets, the Company makes judgments and inteiipretdtased on enacted tax laws, published tax gagjand estimates of future earnings.
As of December 27, 2008, the Company had totaflefgrred tax assets of $6.6 million, primarily eg®nting deferred benefits from the
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets, opirgaloss carryforwards and alternative minimum ¢axryforwards and the tax effect of an
allowance for doubtful accounts. Realization ofedleffd tax assets is dependent upon the likelihoaidftiture taxable income will be
sufficient to realize these benefits over time, Hredeffectiveness of tax planning strategies énrélevant tax jurisdictions. In the event that
actual results differ from these estimates andsassents, valuation allowances may be required.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB Intdgpi@n No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in IncenTaxes” (“FIN 48”),on January 1
2007. The Company recognized no material adjustsnarthe liability for unrecognized income tax bfitsedue to the adoption of FIN 48.
The Company conducts its operations in multiplejtaisdictions in the United States and CanadahWiinited exceptions, the Company is
longer subject to audits by tax authorities foryaars prior to 2005. At December 27, 2008, the Gamy did not have any uncertain tax
positions.

The Company'’s future effective tax rates could theeasely affected by changes in the valuationsofiéferred tax assets or liabilities or
changes in tax laws or interpretations thereo&ddition, the Company is subject to the examinadibits income tax returns by the Internal
Revenue Service and other tax authorities. The @ompegularly assesses the likelihood of adverseoowes resulting from these
examinations to determine the adequacy of its piomifor income taxes.

Accrued Bonuses

The Company pays bonuses to certain executive neamagf, field management and corporate employeesilwas or after giving
consideration to, a variety of financial performamseasures. Executive management, field managear@htertain corporate employees’
bonuses are accrued throughout the year for paydueintg the first quarter of the following yearsea in part upon actual annual results as
compared to annual budgets. In addition, the Compays discretionary bonuses, which are not reldunidget performance, to certain
employees. Variances in actual results versus ldadgemounts can have a significant impact on theulzdions and therefore the estimate:
the required accruals. Accordingly, the actual edrinonuses may be materially different from théretes used to determine the quarterly
accruals. The Company from time to time may alsthiwnald any potential bonuses due to uncollected-gad accounts receivable balances.

Forward-looking Information

The Company’s growth prospects are influenced bwdbeconomic trends. The pace of customer cajpigadding programs, new product
launches and similar activities have a direct inoacthe need for consulting and engineering sesvass well as temporary and permanent
employees. When the U.S. and Canadian economiéaeldbe Company’s operating performance coulddbeersely impacted. The
Company believes that its fiscal discipline, stgatdocus on targeted vertical markets and divieration of service offerings provides some
insulation from adverse trends. However, declimethé economy could result in the need for futwst ceductions or changes in strategy.
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Additionally, changes in government regulationslda@sult in prohibition or restriction of certaiypes of employment services or the
imposition of new or additional employee benefitgnsing or tax requirements with respect to ttavision of employment services that n
reduce RCM’s future earnings. There can be no assarthat RCM will be able to increase the feesgathto its clients in a timely manner
and in a sufficient amount to cover increased casta result of any of the foregoing.

The employment services market is highly competitinth limited barriers to entry. RCM competes ialml, national, regional, and local
markets with numerous consulting, engineering andleyment companies. Price competition in the imdess the Company serves is
significant, and pricing pressures from competitord customers are increasing. RCM expects thdedet of competition will remain high
in the future, which could limit RCM’s ability to antain or increase its market share or profitgbili

Results of Operations (In thousands, except for eangs per share data)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 27, 2008 December 29, 2007 December 30, 2006
% of % of % of
Amount Revenue Amount Revenue Amount Revenue

Revenues $ 209,27 100.C $ 214,20¢ 100.C $ 201,92( 100.(
Cost of services 155,30: 74.2 161,23: 75.3 151,41, 75.C
Gross profit 53,97 25.¢ 52,97¢ 24,7 50,50¢ 25.C
Selling, general and administrati 46,56¢ 22.¢ 41,41¢ 19.c 41,24+ 20.4
Bad deb- note receivabl 6,09( 2.9
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,067 aL{e 1,44: 0.7 1,507 0.7
Impairment of goodwill and

intangible assel 43,31t 20.7 — — — —
Total operating expense 98,04( 46.€ 42 ,86( 20.C 42,75 21.1
Operating (loss) incom (44,065 (21.]) 10,11¢ 4.7 7,751 3.8
Other (expense) income (29¢) (0.2) 937 0.5 (287) (0.7)
(Loss) income before income ta» (44,367 (21.2) 11,05: 5.2 7,47(C 3.7
Income taxes (benefit) expense (4,559 2.2 4,28¢ 2.C 1,114 0.6
Net (loss) incomi $ (39,809 (19.0 $ 6,76¢ 32 6,35¢ 3.1
(Loss) earnings per she
Basic: $ (3.1%) $ .57 $ .54
Diluted: $ (3.19 $ .54 $ .53

The above summary is not a presentation of restittperations under generally accepted accountimgiples in the United States of

America and should not be considered in isolatioasoan alternative to results of operations agdination of the Company’s performance.

The Company follows a 52/53 week fiscal reportiatendar ending on the Saturday closest to DeceBibekll years presented represent 52
weeks. A 53-week year occurs periodically.
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Year Ended December 27, 2008 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 29, 2007

Revenues. Revenues decreased 2.3%, or $4.9 million, for ter ¥nded December 27, 2008 as compared to threypeo (the “comparable
prior year period”). Revenues increased $4.5 mmllimthe Information Technology (“IT”) segment, deased $11.9 million in the
Engineering segment, and increased $2.5 millichénCommercial segment. Management attributesvbeat decrease to a weakening of
general economy and the loss of an engineeringtcleéhich generated revenue of $18.0 million in 2087 period as compared to $0 in the
2008 period. Revenues that were attributable taajlisitions which occurred in the IT segmentsiDecember 29, 2007 and were not
included in the comparable prior year period weneraximately $21.1 million.

Cost of Services. Cost of services decreased 3.7%, or $5.9 milliontHe year ended December 27, 2008 as compatbd tmmparable prior
year period. This decrease was primarily due taldwrease in revenues. Cost of services as a pageeof revenues decreased to 74.2%
the year ended December 27, 2008 from 75.3% focahgparable prior year period. This decrease wiasapity attributable to decreased
revenues in the Engineering segment, which hadrlgness margins.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative (“SGA”) expes increased 12.4%, or $5.2 million, for the year
ended December 27, 2008 as compared to the coniparédr year period. The increase in SGA expemsEs principally due to the
following a) two acquisitions in the Company’s Inftation Technology segment increased SGA expdns&d.3 million; and b) the
Company'’s bad debt expense, excluding the writebffie note receivable of $6.1 million describetblv, increased by $1.0 million. As a
percentage of revenues, SGA expenses were 22.3Hefgear ended December 27, 2008 as compared3%X8r the comparable prior year
period. This percentage increase was primarilybatiable to additional SGA expenses incurred inngztion with two acquisitions
subsequent to February 28, 2008 and the incredsadinlebt expense combined with decreased reveneeall.

Bad Debt - Accounts Receivable. The Company experienced bad debt charges on @tscaceivable, excluding the write-off of the note
receivable of $6.1 million described below, of $tn#lion, as compared to $0.6 million in 2007. Tlhege increase in bad debt charges on
accounts receivable was principally due to sewamakually large write-offs from certain clientss#t by a reduction of the Company’s
accounts receivable — allowance for doubtful actauithe Company’s accounts receivable — allowémcdoubtful accounts was $0.9
million as of December 27, 2008 as compared to flléon as of December 29, 2007.

Bad Debt - Note Receivable. On February 26, 2008, the Company accepted a psonyisiote from a customer for $7.5 million in payrnef ¢
like amount of accounts receivable from that cugtiorhe customer paid $1.4 million through April 2008 at which point management of
the Company concluded that the customer was goidgfault on its May 1, 2008 installment paymetite Company has since determined
that the note receivable is not collectible. Therefthe Company wrote off this note receivablthaamount of $6.1 million.
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Goodwill and I ntangible Asset | mpairment Expense. During 2008, the Company experienced goodwill antdrigible asset impairment
expense of $43.3 million. Goodwill represents thenpum paid over the fair value of the net tangéohel intangible assets we have acquired
in business combinations. SFAS No. 142 “Goodwil &ther Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142") requires thompany to perform a goodwill
and intangible asset impairment test on at leashawal basis. Application of the goodwill and idéle asset impairment test requires
significant judgments including estimation of fidurash flows, which is dependent on internal fostsgaestimation of the long-term rate of
growth for the businesses, the useful life overolldash flows will occur and determination of owgighted average cost of capital. Changes
in these estimates and assumptions could mateatiigt the determination of fair value and/or dasmns on goodwill and intangible asset
impairment for each reporting unit. The Companyduats its annual goodwill and intangible asset impant test as of the last day of the
Company’s fiscal November each year, or more fratiyéf indicators of impairment exist. We periodlty analyze whether any such
indicators of impairment exist. A significant améwf judgment is involved in determining if an iedior of impairment has occurred. Such
indicators may include a sustained, significantidedn our share price and market capitalizateodgcline in our expected future cash flows,
a significant adverse change in legal factors dhénbusiness climate, unanticipated competitiali@rslower expected growth rates, among
others. The Company compares the fair value of ehith reporting units to their respective cargyivalues, including related goodwiill.
Future changes in our industries could impact ésailts of future annual impairment tests. GoodatilDecember 27, 2008 and December 29,
2007 was $6.5 million and $39.6 million, respediivéntangible assets at December 27, 2008 and dkee29, 2007, was $0.3 million.
There can be no assurance that future tests ofigth@ehd intangible asset impairment will not retsial impairment charges.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization increased 43.3%0or #illion, for the year ended December 27, 2098 a
compared to the comparable prior year period. iftsease was principally attributable to amortizatof intangibles incurred from two
acquisitions in the 2008 period.

Other Income (Expense). Other income (expense) consists of interest expemief interest income and gains and losses migfio currency
transactions and, in 2007, the proceeds from d seghement. For the year ended December 27, 2088al interest expense and unused
credit line fees of $0.3 million were offset by $@nillion of interest income, which was earned frehort-term money market deposits.
Interest expense, net increased $0.2 million feryiar ended December 27, 2008 as compared totmgacable prior year period. This
increase was primarily due to increased borrowawgls associated with the funding of two acquisgiin the 2008 period. The Company
realized losses on foreign currency transactiorappfoximately $0.1 million for the year ended Daber 27, 2008 as compared to gains on
foreign currency transactions of approximately $aillion for the comparable prior year period. Thigange was attributable to unfavorable
exchange rates realized during the 2008 period.pfbeceds from the legal settlement in 2007 wesbzed when the Company reached a
settlement with one of the law firm defendants kasy in the recovery of $0.8 million (see footndt® to the consolidated financial
statements).

Income Tax. The Company experienced an income tax benefit & gdllion in 2008 as compared to an income taxeage of $4.3 million i
2007. This change was principally attributable ttearease in income before taxes, which includ®@. & million bad debt expense on a note
receivable and a non tax-deductible impairmentoafdyvill and intangible assets of $43.3 million ftbe year ended December 27, 2008. The
effective tax rate was a credit of 10.3% for tharyended December 27, 2008 as compared to 38.796¢ ktomparable prior year period.

Net Loss. During 2008, the Company experienced a net 10§38f8 million as compared to net income of $6.8iamlin 2007. The

difference was primarily attributable to the follmg factors: decreased revenues of $4.9 milliocrgased selling, general and administrative
expenses of $5.2 million, bad debt-note receivabi6.1 million, goodwill and impairment expense$af3.3 million, offset by an income tax
benefit of $5.7 million.
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Segment Discussion (See Footnote 13)
Information Technology

IT revenues of $103.5 million in 2008 increased$illion, or 4.5%, compared to 2007 IT revenue$@8.0 million. The increase in rever
was attributable to two acquisitions in 2008 offsgthe weakness in the economy and reduced defoattte Companys IT services. The I
segment EBITDA was $0.9 million for 2008, as conagbto $5.9 million for 2007.

Engineering

Engineering revenues of $59.3 million in 2008 dasesl $11.9 million, or 16.7%, compared to 2007 &egfiing revenues of $71.2 million.
The decrease in revenue was primarily attributébtbe loss of an Engineering client that generagéeénue of $18.0 million in the 2007
period. The Engineering segment EBITDA was a negaif $2.2 million EBITDA for 2008, as compared$®.9 million positive EBITDA
for 2007.

Commercial

Commercial revenues of $46.6 million in 2008 inskd$2.5 million, or 5.6%, compared to 2007 ComiméRervices revenues of $44.1
million. The increase in revenues was principattyitautable to increased demand for the Companyaltcare staffing services. The
Commercial segment EBITDA was $2.7 million of EBIADor 2008, as compared to $1.7 million of EBITD&2007.

Year Ended December 29, 2007 Compared to Year Endé&2kecember 30, 2006

Revenues. Revenues increased 6.1%, or $12.3 million, foryher ended December 29, 2007 as compared to ihreyear (the “comparable
prior year period”)Revenues decreased $2.5 million in the IT segnieergased $13.5 million in the Engineering segmand, increased $1
million in the Commercial segment. The decreadd irevenues was attributable to a diminished denfanthe Company’s IT services.
Management attributes the overall increase to gamasrement of the general economy in the first bathe year combined with successful
marketing and sales efforts.

Cost of Services. Cost of services increased 6.5%, or $9.8 million tfie year ended December 29, 2007 as compatbd tmmparable prior
year period. This increase was primarily due toiticeease in revenues. Cost of services as a pagenf revenues increased to 75.3% fo
year ended December 29, 2007 from 75.0% for thepaoaile prior year perio

Sdlling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative (“SGA”) expensereased 0.4%, or $174,000, for the year ended
December 29, 2007 as compared to the comparaloleygar period. As a percentage of revenues, S@areses were 19.3% for the year
ended December 29, 2007 as compared to 20.4%da@ottmparable prior year period. This decreaselicepgage was primarily attributable
the spreading of fixed operating costs over a higéeenue base.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization were essentially anged for the year ended December 29, 2007 as ced
to the comparable prior year period.
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Other Income. Other income consisted of interest income, nehtfrest expense and gains and losses on foreigencyrtransactions. For t
year ended December 29, 2007, actual interest iaafr0.1 million was offset by $0.1 million of erest expense. The interest income
principally earned from short-term money marketa#{s. Interest income, net, increased $0.3 millmrthe year ended December 29, 2007
as compared to the comparable prior year perioid. ibrease was primarily due to an increase ier@st income, and an overall decrease in
interest on the line of credit due to fewer bornogd in the current year, as compared to the corbfgapsior year period. Gains on foreign
currency transactions increased $0.1 million bezatfishe strengthening of the Canadian Dollar aspared to the U. S. Dollar during the
year ended December 29, 2007. Included in othenrecwas an $0.8 million gain from a legal settletr{see footnote 15 to the financ
statements).

Income Tax. Income tax expense increased 284.6%, or $3.2 mjlfar the year ended December 29, 2007 as comparthé comparable
prior year period. The increase was primarily htttable to a reversal of $1.3 million of previoualcrued income taxes in the year ended
December 30, 2006, which related to the potengiphyment of tax benefits associated with previoaklimed tax deductions claimed from
goodwill impairments. This matter was settled dgrihe year ended December 30, 2006. As a resealeftactive tax rate was 38.8% for the
year ended December 29, 2007 as compared to 14.8% year ended December 30, 2006. The effecinanie tax rate for 2006 without 1
$1.3 million reversal would have been 32.3%.

Net Income. Net income totaled $6.8 million, or 3.2% of revenme2007 as compared to $6.4 million, or 3.1%esfemue, in 2006. Included
in 2006 was a reversal of $1.3 million of previguatcrued income taxes. If the reversal of thewstincome taxes of $1.3 million had not
occurred in 2006, net income as a percentage ehwms would have been 2.5%.

Segment Discussion (See Footnote 13)

Information Technology

IT revenues of $99.0 million in 2007 representetterease of $2.5 million, or 2.5%, compared to 200& decrease in revenue was
attributable to a decrease in demand for IT sesviEBITDA for the IT segment was $5.9 million, dr.3% of the overall EBITDA, for 2007
as compared to $6.7 million, or 71.8% of the oMdE8IITDA, for 2006.

Engineering

Engineering revenues of $71.2 million in 2007 repreed an increase of $13.5 million, or 23.5%, camag to 2006. The increase in revenue
was attributable to an increase in demand for thany’s engineering services. The Engineering seg&EBITDA was $3.9 million, or
33.8% of the overall EBITDA, for 2007 as compared1.0 million, or 11.2% of the overall EBITDA, f@006.

Commercial

Commercial revenues of $44.1 million in 2007 represd an increase of $1.2 million, or 2.9%, comp&oe2006. The increase in revenue
the Commercial segment was attributable to impraenm economic activity within this segment. Then@nercial segment EBITDA was
$1.7 million, or 14.9% of the overall EBITDA, fobR7 as compared to $1.6 million, or 17.0% of therail EBITDA, for 2006.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table summarizes the major captiansifthe Company’s Consolidated Statements of Chshast

Year Ended
(In thousands) December 27, 200: December 29, 200
Operating Activities $ (4,807) $ 8,60¢
Investing Activities $ (10,369 % (851)
Financing Activities $ 434¢  $ 99z

Operating Activities

Operating activities used $4.8 million of cashtfue year ended December 27, 2008 as compared@aorion provided by operating
activities for the comparable 2007 period. Theréase in cash provided by operating activities prasarily attributable to a net loss of

$39.8 million, an increase in accounts receivadheincrease in deferred tax assets, an increggejaid expenses and other current assets,
and a decrease in income taxes payable. Theseahamge offset by an increase in payroll and withkexes, accrued compensation,
accounts payable and accrued expenses. The iadreascounts receivable was due primarily to tioegase in revenues in the fourth quarter
of 2008 of $53.5 million as compared to revenuehénfourth quarter of 2007 of $48.8 million.

I nvesting Activities

Investing activities used $10.4 million for the yeaded December 27, 2008 as compared to $0.©mflir the comparable prior year peri
The increase in the use of cash for investing diets/for 2008 as compared to the comparable 2@0i6g was primarily attributable to
increases in expenditures for property and equiprued in cash used for acquisitions.

Financing Activities

In 2008, financing activities principally consistefithe proceeds from borrowing from the line afdit to finance the acquisition of NuSoft
Solutions, Inc and MBH Solutions, Inc. (See foonbtto the financial statements). In 2007, finag@ntivities principally consisted of the
exercise of stock options and issuance of stockhiemployee stock purchase plan with an aggregateise price of $993,000.

The Company and its subsidiaries are party to a éggeement with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvaniactvhvas amended and restated effec
February 20, 2009, which now provides for a $18iamlrevolving credit facility and includes a sumit of $5.0 million for letters of credit
(the “Revolving Credit Facility”). At December 22008 the loan agreement provided for a $25 milRavolving Credit Facility. Borrowings
under the Revolving Credit Facility bear interesviae of two alternative rates, as selected byCmpany at each incremental borrowing.
These alternatives are: (i) LIBOR (London Interb&@fkered Rate), plus applicable margin, or (ii) #tgeent bank’s prime rate. The Company
also pays unused line fees based on the amoum¢ &¥evolving Credit Facility that is not drawn.

All borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facilaye collateralized by all of the assets of the Camypand its subsidiaries and a pledge of
the stock of its subsidiaries. The Revolving Créditility also contains various financial and narahcial covenants, such as restrictions on
the Company’s ability to pay dividends. The RevoyvCredit Facility expires in August 2011.
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The weighted average interest rates under the RiegoCredit Facility for the year ended DecemberZ008 and December 29, 2007 were
3.82% and 8.25%, respectively. The majority of batings in 2008 were subject to alternative (i) LIB@Q.ondon Interbank Offered Rate),
plus applicable margin on contracts of 30 days oremAll borrowings in 2007 were short term andrbaed under alternative (ii) the agent
bank’s prime rate. During the year ended DecemBeP@08 and December 29, 2007, the Company’s ouistg borrowings ranged from $-
0- to $10.5 million and $-0- million to $1.5 millg respectively. At December 27, 2008 and Decer@?BeP007, there were $4.9 million and
$0.0 outstanding borrowings under this facilityspectively. At December 27, 2008, there were Ietbércredit outstanding for $1.6 million.
At December 27, 2008, the Company had availaHitityadditional borrowings under the Revolving Ctdehcility of $18.5 million. Upon
execution of the amendment to the Compargan agreement on February 20, 2009, availalufita proforma basis as of December 27, -
was reduced to $8.5 million.

The Company anticipates that its primary uses pitakin future periods will be for working capitalirposes. Funding for any long-term and
short-term capital requirements as well as futeguasitions will be derived from one or more of fRevolving Credit Facility, funds
generated through operations or future financiagdactions. The Company is subject to legal prangednd claims that arise from time to
time in the ordinary course of its business, whiy or may not be covered by insurance. Were aavondble final outcome to occur, there
exists the possibility of a material adverse impacbur financial position, liquidity, and the rétswof operations for the period in which the
effect becomes reasonably estimable.

The Company’s business strategy is to achieve grbath internally through operations and externddhpugh strategic acquisitions. The
Company from time to time engages in discussioitls potential acquisition candidates. As the sizéhefCompany and its financial
resources increase however, acquisition opporasigquiring significant commitments of capital naaige. In order to pursue such
opportunities, the Company may be required to imtalot or issue potentially dilutive securitiestie future. No assurance can be given as to
the Company’s future acquisition and expansion dpjpdties or how such opportunities will be finadce

The Company does not currently have material comanits for capital expenditures and does not cuyranticipate entering into any such
commitments during the next 12 months. The Compaayirent commitments consist primarily of leaskgaltions for office space. The
Company believes that its capital resources afficiift to meet its present obligations and thasbkd incurred in the normal course of
business for the next 12 months.

At December 27, 2008, the Company had a deferseddset totaling $6.6 million, primarily represagtideferred benefits from the
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets, ofiegaloss carryforwards and alternative minimum ¢axryforwards and the tax effect of an
allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company exptxtitilize deferred tax assets associated witloperating loss carryforwards of $2.4
million during the 12 months ending December 28®DBy offsetting the related tax benefits of susbets against tax liabilities incurred fr
forecasted taxable income.
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Summarized below are the Company’s obligationscamdmitments to make future payments under leasseaggnts and debt obligations as
of December 27, 2008 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Long-Term Debt Obligations (1) $ 4900 $ 4900 $ — $ — 3 —
Operating Lease Obligations 12,68¢ 4,271 7,39¢ 1,017 —
Total $ 17,58t $ 9,171 $ 7,39¢ $ 1,017 $ —

(1)The Revolving Credit Facility is for $15.0 mdh and includes a sub-limit of $5.0 million fortkats of credit. The agreement expires in
August 2011. At December 27, 2008, there were antbhg letters of credit for $1.6 million. As of k& 24, 2009, the Company does not
anticipate that interest expense in 2009 will beemial.

Material Subsequent Event

As of December 27, 2008, the Company was a plaintd material lawsuit as more fully described-motnote 15 in the Financial Stateme
On March 16, 2009 the Company entered into a setth agreement with the defendants in this law3hie Company expects to receive 4
million, $5.9 million net of tax effect, on or betoMarch 31, 2009.

Significant employment agreements are as follows:

Employment Agreement

The Company has an employment agreement with itsf Executive Officer and President, Leon Kopyt,iethcurrently provides for an
annual base salary of $550,000 and other custobm@argfits. In addition, the agreement provides tatkopyt's annual bonus be based on
EBITDA, defined as earnings before interest, tagepreciation and amortization. The agreement egmin February 28, 2010. The
agreement is for a rolling term of three years,chlautomatically extends each year for an additiona-year period on February 28 of each
year. The employment agreement is terminable byCttrapany upon Mr. Kop’s death or disability, or for “good and sufficiezduse,” as
defined in the agreement.

Termination Benefits Agreement

The Company is party to a Termination Benefits Agnent with its Chief Executive Officer Leon Kopgitnended on December 12, 2007 to
comply with the requirements of section 409A of timernal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Benefits Agreet”). Pursuant to the Benefits
Agreement, following a Change in Control (as deditigerein), the remaining term of Mr. Kopyt's emgieent is extended for five years (the
“Extended Term”). If Mr. Kopyt's employment is temmated thereafter by the Company other than foseaar by Mr. Kopyt for good reason
(including, among other things, a material chamgili. Kopyt's salary, title, reporting responsibiéis or a change in office location which
requires Mr. Kopyt to relocate), then the followipgpvisions take effect: the Company is obligategday Mr. Kopyt a lump sum equal to his
salary and bonus for the remainder of the Exteffa®th; and the Company shall be obligated to payiitakopyt the amount of any excise
tax associated with the benefits provided to Mrp¥taunder the Benefits Agreement. If such a tertndmahad taken place as of December
2008, Mr. Kopyt would have been entitled to casynpants of approximately $4.9 million (representiadary and excise tax payments).
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Severance Agreement

The Company is party to a Severance AgreementMitiKopyt, amended on December 12, 2007 to compilly the requirements of section
409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the &ance Agreement”). The agreement provides foamepayments to be made to

Mr. Kopyt and for the continuation of Mr. Kopyt'snployee benefits for a specified time after hizvmerwith the Company is terminated
other than “for causeds defined in the Severance Agreement. Amountshbaya Mr. Kopyt under the Severance Agreement dde offse
and reduced by any amounts received by Mr. Koper #ifis termination of employment under his empleptragreement and the Benefits
Agreement, which are supplemented and not supatdpdthe Severance Agreement. If Mr. Kopyt had teeminated as of December 27,
2008, then under the terms of the Severance Agneesed after offsetting any amounts that wouldehlagen received under his current
employment and termination benefits agreementsjdwdd have been entitled to cash payments of ajpeately $3.2 million, inclusive of
employee benefits.

Impact of Inflation

Consulting, staffing, and project services are galhepriced based on markps on prevailing rates of pay, and as a resulableto generall
maintain their relationship to direct labor coftermanent placement services are priced as adunuftisalary levels of the job candidates.

The Company’s business is labor intensive; theegfibre Company has a high exposure to increasiaighlesare benefit costs. The Company
attempts to compensate for these escalating ao#tshusiness cost models and customer pricingadsging along some of these increased
healthcare benefit costs to its customers and grapk however, the Company has not been able soopeall increases. The Company is
continuing to review its options to further conttbése costs, which the Company does not believespresentative of general inflationary
trends. Otherwise, inflation has not been a mednirigctor in the Company’s operations.

New Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154 WValue Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157"). SFAS N67 clarifies the principle that
fair value should be based on the assumptions mpakcipants would use when pricing an asseiatiility and establishes a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the information usedi&velop those assumptions. Under SFAS No. 157yé&hire measurements would be
separately disclosed by level within the fair vahierarchy. In February 2008, the FASB issued FAS&f Position No. 157-2, “Effective
Date of FASB Statement No. 157,” to partially deés®¥AS No. 157 for nonfinancial assets and nonfiraiabilities, except those that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the finahstatements on a recurring basis. SFAS No. 1&5 effective for the Company on
December 30, 2007, except for nonfinancial assetsanfinancial liabilities that are not recognizedlisclosed at fair value on a recurring
basis for which our effective date is DecemberZZ®8. The adoption of this statement did not hareaterial effect on our consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159¢"Fhir Value Option for Financial Assets and Finalndabilities-Including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" (“SFAS No."L58FAS No. 159 expands the use of fair value anting but does not affect
existing standards, which require assets and iligsito be carried at fair value. Under SFAS Ng&9,la company may elect to use fair valu
measure accounts and loans receivable, availableafe and held-to-maturity securities, equity mdtinvestments, accounts payable,
guarantees, issued debt and other eligible finhimg&tuments. SFAS No. 159 is effective for thenpany as of December 30, 2007.
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The Company has elected not to apply the fair vat®n to measure any of the financial assetdliabdities on its balance sheet not already
valued at fair value under other accounting promeuments. These other financial assets and liasilare primarily accounts receivable,
accounts payable and debt which are reported t@tritial value. The fair value of these financiadets and liabilities approximate their fair
value because of their short duration and in tise odi the debt because it carries variable inteag¢ss which are reset frequently.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141ideeh2007), “Business Combinations” (“SFAS No. 131Rhis statement replaces
SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and requaregsicquirer to recognize the assets acquirediathiities assumed and any
noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at the &itjon date, measured at their fair values ahaf tlate, with limited exceptions. SFAS
No. 141R requires costs incurred to effect the eitipn to be recognized separately from the adtiaisas period costs. SFAS No. 141R ¢
requires the acquirer to recognize restructurirggscthat the acquirer expects to incur, but isobdigated to incur, separately from the
business combination. In addition, SFAS No. 141dquires an acquirer to recognize assets and ligsil#éssumed arising from contractual
contingencies as of the acquisition date, measairéiteir acquisition-date fair values. Other kegvisions of this statement include the
requirement to recognize the acquisition-datevfaiues of research and development assets sepdratelgoodwill and the requirement to
recognize changes in the amount of deferred tagflisrthat are recognizable due to the businessugwtion in either income from
continuing operations in the period of the comhorabr directly in contributed capital, dependingtbe circumstances. With the exceptiol
certain taxrelated aspects described above, SFAS No. 141Reagpbspectively to business combinations for Whie acquisition date is
or after December 28, 2008.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 188e Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles . This statement identifies the sources
of accounting principles and the framework for sgfgy the principles to be used in the preparatibfinancial statements that are presentt
conformity with generally accepted accounting piples in the U.S. The Company does not believeattaption of SFAS 162 will have a
material impact on its results of operations oaficial position.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The Company’s exposure to market risk for changesterest rates relates primarily to the Companwgstment portfolio and debt
instruments, which primarily consist of its RevaolgiCredit Facility. The Company does not have amywvdtive financial instruments in its
portfolio. The Company places its investments strinments that meet high credit quality standartie. Company is adverse to principal loss
and ensures the safety and preservation of itstadgunds by limiting default risk, market riskdareinvestment risk. As of December 27,
2008, the Companyg’investments consisted of cash and money markdsfu'he Company does not use interest rate diegviastruments ti
manage its exposure to interest rate changes.Risetige impact of a 10% (approximately 90 basig®) increase in interest rates on its
variable debt (using an incremental borrowing ratedld have a relatively nominal impact on the Camys results of operations. The
Company does not expect any material loss witheetdp its investment portfolio.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements, together with the repbthe Company’s Registered Public Accounting Fibegins on page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s management, under the supervisioméhdhe participation of the Company’s Chief Eniee Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Comfmdigclosure controls and procedures (as defindRule 13a-15(e) and 15kb(e) under th
Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covesethis report. Based upon that evaluation, the {Biecutive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that those disclosure control$ procedures as of the end of the period coveretiibyeport were functioning effectively
to provide reasonable assurance that informatiquired to be disclosed by the Company in the repbat it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegnoadted within the time periods specified in 8tC'’s rules and forms and is
accumulated and communicated to the Company’s neameugt, including its principal executive and prpadifinancial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, as appropriate, towltimely decisions regarding required disclosure.

A controls system, no matter how well designed @merated, cannot provide absolute assurance thatjectives of the controls system are
met, and no evaluation of controls can provide klte@ssurance that all control issues and instaotfaud, if any, within a company have
been detected.

Managemens Report on Internal Control over Financial Repayti

The report of management on our internal contrerdinancial reporting is set forth in Item 8 ofgheport and is incorporated herein by
reference.

There have been no changes in the Company’s intesn&rol over financial reporting that occurredidg the Company’s most recent fiscal
guarter and that have materially affected, or aesonably likely to materially affect, the Companiyiternal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

36




Table of Contents
PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE
The information required by Item 10 shall be in@ddn the 2009 Proxy Statement.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by Item 11 shall be in@ddn the 2009 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Except as set forth below, the information requivgdtem 12 shall be included in the 2009 ProxyteStent.

The table below presents certain information camiogrsecurities issuable in connection with eqadympensation plans that have been
approved by the Company’s shareholders and tha hawvbeen approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities to be Weighted-average exercise issuance under equity
issued upon exercise of price of outstanding compensation plans,
outstanding options, options, warrants and excluding securities
Plan category warrants and rights rights reflected in column (a)

@ (b) ©
Equity compensation plans approved b
security holder: 1,293,900 $ 4.4¢ 699,29:
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holder — — —
Total 1,293,900 $ 4.4¢ 699,29

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTORINDEPENDENCE
The information required by Item 13 shall be inédddn the 2009 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 shall be in@ddn the 2009 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(& 1.and 2. Financial Statement Schedules- See “Index to Financial Statements and Scheduwie$”-1.
3. See Item (b) below.
(b)  Exhibits

(3)(@) Articles of Incorporation, as amended; incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 3(a) to the Registrantisfal Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended October 31, 19

(3)(b) Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorpoati incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to thegiRtrant’s Proxy
Statement, dated February 6, 1996, filed with theusities and Exchange Commission on January Z8..

(3)(c) Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorpo@ti incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to thegRtrant’s Proxy
Statement, dated February 6, 1996, filed with theuSities and Exchange Commission on January Z8..

+ (3)(d] Amended and Restated Bylav

(4)(@ Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 11, 1896nd between RCM Technologies, Inc. and theéorshareholders of
The Consortium; incorporated by reference to Exit)(2) to the Registrant’s Current Report on F@&id dated March 19,
1996, filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsmison March 20, 199!

*(10)(a) RCM Technologies, Inc. 1992 Incentive Stock Optdan; incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Registrant’s Proxy
Statement, dated March 9, 1992, filed with the @&ea and Exchange Commission on March 9, 1!

(10)(b} RCM Technologies, Inc. 1994 Non-employee Directimcs Option Plan; incorporated by reference toappendix to the
Registrar’'s Proxy Statement, dated March 31, 1994, filed #ithSecurities and Exchange Commission on Marci @®4.

*(10)(c) RCM Technologies, Inc. 1996 Executive Stock Opttan, dated August 15, 1996; incorporated by refsge¢o Exhibit 10(1) to
the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for ylear ended October 31, 1996, filed with the Séiesrand Exchange
Commission on January 21, 1997 (*1996 1(-K").

*(10)(d) RCM Technologies, Inc. 2000 Employee Stock IncenBNan, dated January 6, 2000; incorporated byeaede to Exhibit A to
the Registrars Proxy Statement, dated March 3, 2000, filed wWithSecurities and Exchange Commission on Feb2&rg000

*(10)(e) Second Amended and Restated Termination Benefitselhgent, dated March 18, 1997, between the Registral Leon Kopyt;
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(g) to tregRtrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (EECNo. 33323753), filec
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Madg 1997

*(10)(f) Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datedrisloer 30, 1996, between the Registrant, Interesidn, Inc. and
Leon Kopyt; incorporated by reference to Exhibi{g)o the 1996 1-K.

(10)(g, Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreematadday 31, 2002, between RCM Technologies, Ind.al of its
Subsidiaries with Citizens Bank of PennsylvaniaAdministrative Agent and Arranger; incorporatedrbference to Exhibit 10
to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10sQ)tlie quarter ended June 30, 2002, filed withS&eurities and Exchange
Commission on August 5, 2002 (t“Second Quarter 2002 -Q").
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*(10)(h) Severance Agreement, dated June 10, 2002, betwebhTRchnologies, Inc. and Leon Kopyt; incorporatgdeference to
Exhibit 10a to the Second Quarter 200-Q.

*(10)()) Exhibit A to Severance Agreement General Releaserporated by reference to Exhibit 10b to the §ddQuarter 2002 -Q.

(10)(j) Amendment and Modification to Amended And Restatedn and Security Agreement, dated December 3@, 2i¥iween RCI
Technologies, Inc. and all of its Subsidiaries &itizens Bank of Pennsylvania as Administrative Aigend Arranger;
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(k) to thegRtrant’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31,
2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Comsinison February 28, 2003, as amended on Marc( @he “2002 10-
K”™).

(10)(k) Second Amendment and Modification to Amended Andt&ed Loan and Security Agreement, dated Feb2&rg2003,
between RCM Technologies, Inc. and all of its Sdilasies and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania as Adsiiiafive Agent and
Arranger; incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16412002 1-K).

(20)(I) Third Amendment and Modification to Amended And Résd Loan and Security Agreement, dated Octob20@3, between
RCM Technologies, Inc. and all of its Subsidiaa@sl Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania as Administrafigent and Arranger;
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.H to thgiBeant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thewdqer ended September 30,
2003, filed with the Securities and Exchange Comsimison November 6, 200

(10)(m) Fourth Amendment and Modification to Amended AngReed Loan and Security Agreement, dated Jul2@34, between
RCM Technologies, Inc. and all of its Subsidiaa@sl Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania as Administrafigent and Arranger;
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to tlegiRtrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thaer ended July 3, 2004,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioiagust 5, 2004

(10)(n; Fifth Amendment and Modification to Amended and taessl Loan and Security Agreement dated Augus0@6 2between RCI
Technologies, Inc. and all of its Subsidiaries &itizens Bank of Pennsylvania as Administrative Atgend Arranger;
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to tlegiRtrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for therger ended July 1, 2006 ,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioiagust 10, 200¢

*(10)(o) Amendment No. 1, dated December 12, 2007, to themdled and Restated Employment Agreement, entet@drin
November 30, 1996, between Leon Kopyt and RCM Telduies, Inc.; incorporated by reference to Exhilifitl to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Dduemi2, 2007, filed with the Securities and Exclea@gmmission on
December 12, 2007 (t*December 2007-K").

*(10)(p) Amendment No. 1, dated December 12, 2007, to therf@eAmended and Restated Termination Benefits égeant, made
March 18, 1997, between Leon Kopyt and RCM Techgiel Inc.; incorporated by reference to Exhibi21id the
December 2007-K.

*(10)(q) Amendment No. 1, dated December 12, 2007, to threr&rce Agreement, entered into on June 12, 2@32elen Leon Kopyt
and RCM Technologies, Inc.; incorporated by refeesio Exhibit 10.3 to the December 20(-K.

*(10)(r) Compensation Arrangements for Named Executive exfi
(Filed herewith
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*(10)(s)

*(10)(®)

* (10)(u)

(10)(v)

(11)

(21)

(23)

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

Compensation Arrangements for Directc
(Filed herewith

The RCM Technologies, Inc. 2007 Omnibus Equity Cengation Plan; incorporated by reference to Annéa the Registrant’s
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyisthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized.

RCM Technologies, Inc.

Date: March 3, 2009 By: /s/ Leon Kopy!
Leon Kopyt
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer andeBtior
Date: March 3, 2009 By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller

Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Date: March 3, 2009 /sl Leon Kopy!
Leon Kopyt
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer (Pipat Executive
Officer) and Directo

Date: March 3, 2009 /s/ Kevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretamn@pal Financial
and Accounting Officer

Date: March 3, 2009 /s/ Norman S. Bersc
Norman S. Bersor
Director
Date: March 3, 2009 /s/ Robert B. Ker
Robert B. Kerr
Director
Date: March 3, 2009 /sl Lawrence Needlem:
Lawrence Needlemar
Director
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 27, 2008 and December 29, 2007

(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

ASSETS

December 27

December 29

2008 2007
Current assetl
Cash and cash equivalel $ 81t $ 11,64:
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $942 and $1,583 in fiscal 2008 a
2007, respectivel 55,77( 45,46¢
Long term receivab-current portior — 1,89:
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 3,012 1,49:
Deferred tax assets 6,58( 711
Total current assets 66,17 61,20
Property and equipment, at c
Equipment and leasehold improveme 11,27¢ 9,407
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 5,692 5,17¢
Net property and equipment 5,58¢ 4,22¢
Other asset
Long term receivabl — 4,21¢
Deposits 264 12t
Goodwill 6,53¢ 39,58¢
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizatf@834 and $726 in fiscal 2008 and 2007,
respectively 27¢€ 34¢
Total other assets 7,07¢ 44,27¢
Total assets $ 78,84, $ 109,71.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS — (CONTINUED)

December 27, 2008 and December 29, 2007

(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

December 27

December 29

Current liabilities
Line of credit $
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Accrued compensatic
Payroll and withheld taxe
Income taxes payable

Total current liabilities

Stockholder' equity
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value; 5,000,000 shaurtfwrized; no shares issued or outstan
Common stock, $0.05 par value; 40,000,000 shar®ared; 12,774,026 and 12,058,689 shares
issued and outstanding at December 27, 2008 aneniier 29, 2007, respective
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive incc
Accumulated deficit

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $

2008 2007
4,90( —
8,37¢ 8,00t
8,61( 7,41¢
1,067 1,087

53¢ 1,15¢
23,49( 17,66¢
63¢ 603
106,78¢ 102,95:
72C 1,48¢
(52,796 (12,990
55,35 92,04¢
78,84 109,71

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006
(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

December 27, December 29, December 30,
2008 2007 2006
Revenue: $ 209,27 $ 214,20¢ $ 201,92
Cost of services(1) 155,30: 161,23: 151,41.
Gross profit 53,97¢ 52,97¢ 50,50¢
Operating costs and expen:
Selling, general and administrative 46,56¢ 41,41¢ 41,24
Bad debt- note receivabl 6,09( — —
Depreciatior 1,30(C 1,122 1,19
Amortization 767 32C 31C
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 43,31t — —
98,04( 42,86( 42,75
Operating (loss) income (44,069 10,11¢ 7,751
Other (expense) incon
Interest (expense) income, 1 (230 59 (25€)
(Loss) gain on foreign currency transacti (75) 78 (32)
Legal settlemer — 80C —
Other 7 — —
(29¢) 937 (287)
(Loss) income before income tax (44,369) 11,05 7,47(C
Income tax (benefit) expense (4,558 4,28¢ 1,114
Net (loss) incom $ (39,809 $ 6,76¢ $ 6,35¢

(1) Includes stock based compensation expense of 25ai$d $46 for the years ended December 27, 208&ber 29, 2007 and
December 30, 2006, respective

(2)  Includes stock based compensation expense of 885, &1d $910 for the years ended December 27, Zi&mber 29, 2007 and
December 30, 2006, respective

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)
Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006
(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

December 27, December 29, December 30,
2008 2007 2006

Basic earnings per share

Net income $ (3.15) % 57 % .54
Weighted average number of common shares outsig 12,647,12 11,970,04 11,773,30
Diluted earnings per share

Net income $ (3.1 $ 54 $ .58
Weighted average number of common and common elguivshares outstandil 12,647,12 12,484,63 12,034,66

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006
(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stock Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Total

Balance, December 31, 2005 11,728,26 $ 58¢ $ 100,23! $ 98z $ (26,115 $ 75,68¢
Issuance of stock under employee s

purchase pla 33,77( 2 142 — — 144
Exercise of stock optior 60,09: 3 22€ — — 22¢
Translation adjustmel — — — 20 — 20
Stock based compensation expe — — 95¢€ — — 95¢€
Net income — — — 6,35¢€ 6,35¢€
Balance, December 30, 20C 11,822,12 591 101,55¢ 1,002 (19,759 83,39:¢
Issuance of stock under employee s

purchase pla 28,56 1 14z — — 144
Exercise of stock optior 208,00( 11 83¢ — — 84¢
Translation adjustmel — — — 482 — 482
Stock based compensation expe — — 411 — — 411
Net income — — — — 6,76¢ 6,76¢
Balance, December 29, 20C 12,058,68 603 102,95 1,48¢ (12,990) 92,04¢
Issuance of stock under employee s

purchase pla 15,331 1 55 — — 56
Translation adjustmel — — — (764) — (764)
Stock based compensation expe — — 10C — — 10C
Acquired companie 700,00( 35 3,68 — — 3,71
Net loss — — — — (39,809 (39,80Y)
Balance, December 27, 20C 12,774,02 $ 63¢ $ 106,78¢ $ 72C % (52,79¢ $ 55,35!

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INC OME
Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006

December 27 December 29

December 30

2008 2007 2006
Net (loss) incom $ (39,805 $ 6,76¢ $ 6,35¢
Foreign currency translation adjustment (764) 482 20
Comprehensive (loss) income $ (40569 $ 7,251 $ 6,37¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006
(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

December 27, December 29, December 30,
2008 2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activitie

Net (loss) income $ (39,80 $ 6,76¢ $ 6,35¢
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to rmshc(used in) provided by

operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,05¢ 1,44¢ 1,50¢
Impairment of goodwill and intangible ass 43,31t — —
Gain on disposal of ass¢ @) — —
Provision for allowance on accounts receiv (641) (89) (220)
Stock based compensation expe 10C 411 95¢€
Provision for losses on notes receive 6,09( — —
Deferred taxe (5,869 2,47¢ 827
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqarssti

Accounts and note receivat (10,27Y (3,030 (3,149

Restricted cas — — 8,572

Prepaid expenses and other current a: (1,582 244 1,132

Accounts payable and accrued expel 90¢€ 11¢ (7,66%)

Accrued compensatic 1,33( (780) 1,08¢

Payroll and withheld taxe 38 (87) 271

Income taxes payable (46%) 1,12¢ (4,187
Total adjustments 34,99¢ 1,83¢ (752

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi $ (4,807) $ 8,60t $ 5,60¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006
(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

Cash flows from investing activitie
Property and equipment acquit
Proceeds from equipment dispo
(Increase) decrease in depo
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired

Net cash used in investing activit|
Cash flows from financing activitie
Net borrowings (repayments) of line of cre
Issuance of stock for employee stock purchase
Exercise of stock options
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiasnts
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplemental cash flow informatia
Cash paid for

Interest
Income taxe:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.

December 27,

December 29,

December 30,

2008 2007 2006
(2,667 $ (625) $ (1,569)
25 — —
(13¢) 33 9
(7,589 (25¢) (1,840
(10,369 (851) (3,400
4,90( — (3,900
55 144 144
— 84c 22¢
4,95¢ 99z (3,527)
(611) 44€ 11
(10,82) 9,19: (1,317)
11,64: 2,44¢ 3,761
81E $ 11,64: $ 2,44¢
19z $ 16z $ 727
2,48: $ 737 $ 4,06(
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006
(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

RCM Technologies, Inc. is a premier provider ofibass and technology solutions designed to enhamtenaximize the operational
performance of its customers through the adaptatimhdeployment of advanced information technolmgy engineering services.
Additionally, the Company provides specialty stadfiservices through its Commercial Services gr®{pM’s offices are located in
major metropolitan centers throughout North America

The consolidated financial statements are comp$éige accounts of the Company and its subsidiaA# significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminateghisotidation. The preparation of the financial etaénts in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetd¢éhBtates requires management to make estimatessanmptions that affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financiakstants and accompanying notes. Actual results atiffet from these estimates.

Fiscal Periods

The reporting period for the Company is the Satyidasest to the last day in December. Fiscal y2@@é8, 2007 and 2006 represent the
52 weeks ended December 27, 2008, December 29,&@DDecember 30, 2006, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers its holdings of highly ligoidney-market instruments to be cash equivalenkeisecurities mature within 90
days from the date of acquisition. These investmare carried at cost, which approximates fairealu

The Company’s cash balances and short-term investnaee maintained in accounts held by major bankisfinancial institutions. At
times, these balances may exceed insured amouriBee®mber 27, 2008 and December 29, 2007, $0liomand $3.9 million,
respectively, of cash and cash equivalents wekihaCanadian banks.

Fair Value of Financial | nstruments

The Company’s carrying value of financial instrurtserconsisting primarily of accounts receivablegyragimates fair value. The
Company does not have any off-balance sheet finhimstruments. The Company does not have deriwatieducts in place to manage
risks related to foreign currency fluctuations itsrforeign operations or for interest rate changes

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company’s accounts receivable are primarilyfdom trade customers. Credit is extended baseslatuation of customers’
financial condition and, generally, collateral & mequired. Accounts receivable payment terms aay are stated in the financial
statements at amounts due from customers net af@amance for doubtful accounts. Accounts outstagdonger than the payment
terms are considered past due. The Company detesrtfallowance by considering a number of facioduding the length of time
trade accounts receivable are past due, the Corigpargwious loss history, the customer’s currerilityglio pay its obligation to the
Company, and the condition of the general economaytiae industry as a whole. The Company writesiofounts receivable when they
become uncollectible, and payments subsequentiived on such receivables are credited to the alhoe for doubtful accounts.
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1.

RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006
(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( CONTINUED)
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost andepreciated on the straight-line method at ratesutatied to provide for retirement of
assets at the end of their estimated useful liVks.Company’s ERP software system, installed ir01&% upgraded in 2004, is being
depreciated over fifteen years. The Company'’s Vteleéphone system, the installation of which wasstaidtially complete at the end of
2008, is being depreciated over seven years. Airdtardware and software as well as furnitureadfide equipment is depreciated o
five years. Leasehold improvements are deprecatedthe shorter of the estimated life of the aesdie lease term.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the premium paid over thevalue of the net tangible and intangible assethawe acquired in business
combinations. Statement of Financial Accountingh8sads (“SFAS”) No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intabigi Assets” (“SFAS 142")
requires the Company to perform a goodwill andrigthle asset impairment test on at least an artrasis. Application of the goodwill
and intangible asset impairment test requires fogmt judgments including estimation of future ledl®ws, which is dependent on
internal forecasts, estimation of the long-terne i@tgrowth for the businesses, the useful liferavigich cash flows will occur and
determination of our weighted average cost of ehpthanges in these estimates and assumptions ewiérially affect the
determination of fair value and/or conclusions oodwill and intangible asset impairment for eagboréing unit. The Company
conducts its annual goodwill and intangible assgtairment test as of the last day of the Compafiscal November each year, or more
frequently if indicators of impairment exist. Werjoglically analyze whether any such indicatorsnepairment exist. A significant
amount of judgment is involved in determining ifiadicator of impairment has occurred. Such indicsitnay include a sustained,
significant decline in our share price and marlagtialization, a decline in our expected futurenclhews, a significant adverse chang
legal factors or in the business climate, unandiieid competition and/or slower expected growthstatmong others. The Company
compares the fair value of each of its reportingsuto their respective carrying values, includietated goodwill. Future changes in the
industry could impact the results of future annoglairment tests.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in alzoore with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Imparnnor Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets Management periodically reviews the carrying amswftiong-lived assets to determine whether curegetts or
circumstances warrant adjustment to such carryinguats. Any impairment is measured by the amouattttre carrying value of such
assets exceeds their fair value, primarily basedstimated discounted cash flows. Considerable geamant judgment is necessary to
estimate the fair value of assets. Assets to loded of are carried at the lower of their finahsiatement carrying amount or fair val
less cost to sell.

Software

In accordance with the American Institute of CetifPublic Accountants’ Statement of Position (“SJO88-1, “Accounting for Costs ¢
Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Intetise” (“SOP 98-1"), certain costs related to tlewelopment or purchase of
internal-use software are capitalized and amort@mest the estimated useful life of the softwareribgithe years ended December 27,
2008, December 29, 2007 and December 30, 200& dhgany capitalized approximately $219, $135 ar@B$Eespectively, of
software costs in accordance with SOP 98-1. At bdue 27, 2008 the net balance after depreciatioalfgoftware costs capitalized in
accordance with SOP 98-1 was $0.5 million.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006
(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( CONTINUED)
Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeSFAS No. 109 “Accounting for Income TaxesSEAS 109”), which
requires an asset and liability approach of acdongrior income taxes. SFAS 109 requires assessoi¢ne likelihood of realizing
benefits associated with deferred tax assets figpgses of determining whether a valuation allowadaceeded for such deferred tax
assets. The Company and its wholly owned U.S. digs file a consolidated federal income taxmetu

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adoptegitbeisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48gcounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes (“FIN 48"), an interpretation of FASB Statement N@9 (“SFAS 109"). FIN 48 prescribes a model far thcognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expectée tmken in a tax return, and provides guidanceesacognition, classification,
interest and penalties, disclosure and transitimplementation of FIN 48 did not result in a cunivia effect adjustment to retained
earnings. At December 27, 2008 the Company didhaee any significant unrecognized tax benefits.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenues from several ssufdl of the Company’s segments perform stafegvices. The Company’s
Engineering services and IT services segmentspaiform project services. All of the Company’s segits derive revenue from
permanent placement fees.

Project Services - The Company recognizes revenues in accordantethidtSecurities and Exchange Commission, Stafbiieting
Bulletin (SAB) No. 104, “Revenue Recognition” (“SAE4"). SAB 104 clarifies application of U.S. geally accepted accounting
principles to revenue transactions. Project sesvéze generally provided on a cost-plus-fixed-fetrnoe-andmaterial basis. Typically,
customer will outsource a discrete project or digtiand the Company assumes responsibility forprgormance of such project or
activity. The Company recognizes revenues and &gedocosts on a gross basis as services are pbtodhe customer and costs are
incurred using its employees. The Company, fronetimtime, enters into contracts requiring the cletign of specific deliverables.
The Company recognizes revenue on these deliverablhe time the client accepts and approvesdlieetdables. In instances where
project services are provided on a fixed-price daad the contract will extend beyond a 12-montioderevenue is recorded in
accordance with the terms of each contract. In sostances, revenue is billed and recorded atfitine ¢ertain milestones are reachec
defined in the contract. In other instances, reedswilled and recorded based upon contractues iaer hour. In addition, some
contracts contain “Performance Fees” (bonusesjdompleting a contract under budget. Performancs,keany, are recorded when the
contract is completed and the revenue is reasomatgin of collection. Some contracts also lireienues and billings to maximum
amounts. Provision for contract losses, if anyn&le in the period such losses are determined.nSgpeelated to contracts that extend
beyond a 12-month period are charged to cost gfcgsr as incurred.

Consulting/Saffing Services - Revenues derived from staffing services are dEmbon a gross basis as services are performed and
associated costs have been incurred using employd¢ies Company. In these circumstances, the Copnassumes the risk of
acceptability of its employees to its customersdrtain cases, the Company may utilize other comegaand their employees to fulfill
customer requirements. In these cases, the Contpaaives an administrative fee for arranging fdlinlgy for, and collecting the

billings related to these companies. The customsypically responsible for assessing the workhese companies who have
responsibility for acceptability of their persontelthe customer. Under these circumstances, tihgp@ny’s reported revenues are net of
associated costs (effectively the administrati).fe
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006
(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( CONTINUED)
Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Permanent Placement Services - The Company earns permanent placement fees fromdprg permanent placement services. Fees for
placements are recognized at the time the candidatenences employment. The Company guaranteesritsapent placements on a
prorated basis for 90 days. In the event a canelidatot retained for the 90-day period, the Corgpaili provide a suitable replacement
candidate. In the event a replacement candidateotdre located, the Company will provide a refumdhie client. An allowance for
refunds, based upon the Company'’s historical egpeg, is recorded in the financial statements. Res® are recorded on a gross basis
as a component of revenue.

Unbilled Accounts Receivable

At December 27, 2008 and December 29, 2007 there $&1.0 million and $8.4 million, respectively,wibilled receivables included
in accounts receivable.

Concentration

During 2008, one customer accounted for 11.1% @fQbmpany’s revenues and 17.5% of the Company@uads receivable. No other
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Compamyenues. The Company'’s five, ten and twenty kEtrgestomers accounted for
approximately 27.1%, 33.5% and 44.0%, respectivalyhe Company’s revenues for 2008.

During 2007, one customer accounted for 10.8% @Qbmpany’s revenues and 16.4% of the Company@uats and notes receivable.
No other customer accounted for 10% or more ofxbmpany’s revenues. The Company’s five, ten andityviargest customers
accounted for approximately 29.9%, 38.3% and 48r&¥pectively, of the Company’s revenues for 2007.

During 2006, one customer accounted for 11.4% @Gbmpany’s revenues and 17.5% of the Companytsuats receivable. No other
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Compamyenues. The Company'’s five, ten and twenty kEtrgestomers accounted for
approximately 25.2%, 34.6% and 43.4%, respectivalyhe Company’s revenues for 2006.

Foreign Currency Trandation

The functional currency of the Company’s Canadiarsgliary is the subsidiary’s local currency. Assatd liabilities are translated at
period-end exchange rates. Income and expense éemeganslated at weighted average rates of egeharevailing during the year.
Any translation adjustments are included in theuaudated other comprehensive income account irkBtidders’ equity. Transactions

executed in different currencies resulting in exgeadjustments are translated at spot rates antling foreign exchange transaction
gains and losses are included in the results afatipes.

Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income aregiorcurrency translation adjustments.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006
(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( CONTINUED)
Per Share Data
Basic net income per share is calculated usingvitighted-average number of common shares outstguadining the period. Diluted net
income per share is calculated using the weightedage number of common shares plus dilutive piaiecdmmon shares outstanding
during the period. Potential common shares coo$istock options that are computed using the tmyastiock method. Because of the

Company’s capital structure, all reported earnjpgidain to common shareholders and no other assadjastments are necessary.

The number of common shares used to calculate badidiluted earnings per share for 2008, 20072806 was determined as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 27, December 29, December 30,
2008 2007 2006
Basic average shares outstanding 12,647,12 11,970,04 11,773,30
Dilutive effect of stock options — 514,59 261,36:
Dilutive shares 12,647,12 12,484,63 12,034,66

Options to purchase 1,293,900 shares of commok stqarices ranging from $3.00 to $9.81 per shaeevoutstanding as of
December 27, 2008. There were 1,069,900 optionsohided in the calculation of common stock eqléats because the exercise p
of the options exceeded the average market pricéadoyear ended December 27, 2008. Additionalbd,@00 options that were at less
than the average market price were not includeldrcalculation of common stock equivalents bec#ius®ptions were anti-dilutive as
the Company is in a net loss position.

Options to purchase 1,462,000 shares of commoR stqarices ranging from $3.00 to $9.81 per shageevoutstanding as of
December 29, 2007. There were 35,000 options rhided in the calculation of common stock equiveddrecause the exercise price of
the options exceeded the average market pricééoyear ended December 29, 2007.

Options to purchase 1,768,000 shares of commok stqarices ranging from $3.00 to $7.04 per shaeevoutstanding as of
December 30, 2006. There were 109,000 optionsnetided in the calculation of common stock equintddecause the exercise price
of the options exceeded the average market pricénéoyear ended December 30, 2006.

Stock - Based Compensation
At December 27, 2008, the Company had five stodeti@mployee compensation plans. The Company nesathr fair value of stock
options, if and when granted, based upon the agjosiarket price of the Company’s common stock ordgite of grant. All grants

typically vest over a three-year period and expiithin 10 years of issuance. Stock options that ireaccordance with service
conditions amortize over their applicable vestiegiqd using the straight-line method.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( CONTINUED)
Stock - Based Compensation (Continued)

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptedainealue recognition provisions of SFAS No. 128vfsed 2004), Share-Based
Payment (“SFAS 123R”) using the modified-prospeetransition method. Under that transition metteminpensation cost recognized
in 2006, 2007 and 2008 included: (a) compensatish for all stock-based payments granted priobtid not yet vested as of January 1,
2006, based on the grant date fair value estinatadcordance with the original provisions of SFAZ3, adjusted for estimated
forfeitures, and (b) compensation cost for all ktbased payments granted subsequent to Janua@p8, Based on the grant date fair
value estimated in accordance with the provisidrBFAS 123R, adjusted for estimated forfeiturese $traight-line recognition method
is used to recognize compensation expense assbeiatestock-based payments that are subject tegraesting based on service
conditions.

Stock-based compensation expense of $0.1 millio§0d1 per diluted share, and of $0.4 million$0r03 per diluted share, was
recognized for the year ended December 27, 200®acdmber 29, 2007, respectively.

The pro-forma compensation cost using the faireddased method under SFAS No. 123R includes vahmtelated to stock options
granted since January 1, 1995 using the Black-8&shoption Pricing Model. The weighted averagevfalue of options granted using
the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model during 208807 and 2006 has been estimated using the foltpassumptions:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 27, December 29, December 30,
2008 2007 2006

Weighted average risk-free interest rate 3.04% 4.91% 4.9(%
Expected term of optio 5 year 5 year 5 year
Expected stock price volatilil 61% 58% 56%
Expected dividend yiel N/A N/A N/A
Annual forfeiture ratt 16.1% 29.8% 22.3(%
Weightec-average per share value grar $ 257 $ 49€ $ 2.44

Expected volatility is based on the historical vitityt of the price of the Company’s common stogkcg December 29, 2002. The
Company uses historical information to estimateeetgd life and forfeitures within the valuation nebdrhe expected term of awards
represents the period of time that options graatecexpected to be outstanding. The risk-freefoatperiods within the expected life of
the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yieldeimeffect at the time of grant. Compensation @setcognized using a straight-line
method over the vesting or service period and i®hestimated forfeitures. The fair value of eagltion grant is estimated on the dat
grant using the Black-Scholes options-pricing model

There were options to purchase 56,950 and 40,08@stof common stock granted during the years 2008007, respectively. The
stock-based compensation expense attributableet6@950 and 40,000 options was $48 and $15 foalfieears 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

As of December 27, 2008, the Company had approgim&t 16 of total unrecognized compensation cdated to non-vested awards
granted under our various stock-based plans, whieRpected to be recognized over a weighted-aegoagod of one year. These
amounts do not include the cost of any additiopgibms that may be granted in future periods ngradranges in the Company’s
forfeiture rate.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( CONTINUED)
Stock - Based Compensation (Continued)

The Company received cash from options exercisedgithe fiscal years 2008 and 2007 of $0 and $8#ectively. The impact of
these cash receipts is included in financing awiwin the accompanying consolidated statementasti flows.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Totarising expense was $1,110, $1,039 and $1,08Médfiscal years 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

Use of Estimates and Uncertainties

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfénettthe reported amounts of assets and liakslitievenues and expenses and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiestuatresults could differ from those estimates.

The Company uses estimates to calculate an allevanaoubtful accounts on its accounts receivafileese estimates can be
significant to the operating results and finanpiasition of the Company.

The Company has risk participation arrangements reispect to workers compensation and health natgdance. The amounts included
in the Company’s costs related to this risk pgstition are estimated and can vary based on chamgssumptions, the Company’s
claims experience or the providers included inabsociated insurance programs.

The Company can be affected by a variety of fadgtwisiding uncertainty relating to the performané¢he U.S. economy, competition,
demand for the Company’s services, adverse libgaind claims and the hiring, training and retentibkey employees.

New Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154y Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS N67 clarifies the
principle that fair value should be based on tleiagptions market participants would use when pgiein asset or liability and
establishes a fair value hierarchy that priorititesinformation used to develop those assumptidnder SFAS No. 157, fair value
measurements would be separately disclosed byéthgh the fair value hierarchy. In February 2068 FASB issued FASB Staff
Position No. 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statamblo. 157,” to partially defer SFAS No. 157 fomfimancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities, except those that areogauized or disclosed at fair value in the finanstattements on a recurring basis. SFAS
No. 157 was effective for the Company on DecemBe2B07, except for nonfinancial assets and nonéiiz liabilities that are not
recognized or disclosed at fair value on a recgrbiasis for which our effective date is December2Z®8. The adoption of this
statement did not have a material effect on ousclidated financial position or results of operasio

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159¢"“FFhir Value Option for Financial Assets and Finalndabilities-Including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" (“SFAS No."L59FAS No. 159 expands the use of fair value antiog but does not affect
existing standards, which require assets and ili@silto be carried at fair value. Under SFAS N&9,la company may elect to use fair
value to measure accounts and loans receivabldableafor-sale and held-to-maturity securitiesyiégmethod investments, accounts
payable, guarantees, issued debt and other elifyialacial instruments. SFAS No. 159 is effective the Company as of December 30,
2007.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( CONTINUED)
New Accounting Standards (Continued)

The Company has elected not to apply the fair vajt®on to measure any of the financial assetdiabdities on its balance sheet not
already valued at fair value under other accourpirtmnouncements. These other financial assetsianitities are primarily accounts
receivable, accounts payable and debt which a@texbat historical value. The fair value of théieancial assets and liabilities
approximate their fair value because of their sHaration and in the case of the debt becauseriesavariable interest rates which are
reset frequently.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 14li9eev2007), “Business Combinations” (“SFAS No. 141Rhis statement
replaces SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,”’raqdires an acquirer to recognize the assets r@etjuhe liabilities assumed and
any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree atabquisition date, measured at their fair valuesfdlat date, with limited exceptions.
SFAS No. 141R requires costs incurred to effecttmisition to be recognized separately from toussition as period costs. SFAS
No. 141R also requires the acquirer to recognigeueturing costs that the acquirer expects torirmut is not obligated to incur,
separately from the business combination. In anlitsFAS No. 141R requires an acquirer to recogmsaets and liabilities assumed
arising from contractual contingencies as of thguéition date, measured at their acquisition-faitevalues. Other key provisions of
this statement include the requirement to recogthieeacquisition-date fair values of research amcketbpment assets separately from
goodwill and the requirement to recognize changabke amount of deferred tax benefits that aregeizable due to the business
combination in either income from continuing opinas in the period of the combination or directlycontributed capital, depending on
the circumstances. With the exception of certaxarédated aspects described above, SFAS No. 14pReamrospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is omfter December 28, 2008.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 18Bg Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. This statement identifies the
sources of accounting principles and the frameviariselecting the principles to be used in the grafion of financial statements that
are presented in conformity with generally acceptezbunting principles in the U.S. The Company dasselieve the adoption of
SFAS 162 will have a material impact on its resaftsperations or financial position.

2. NOTE RECEIVABLE

On February 26, 2008, the Company accepted a psomgisiote from a customer for $7.5 million in payrnef a like amount of
accounts receivable from that customer. The custpaid $1.2 million through April 30, 2008 at whipbint management of the
Company concluded that the customer was goingfautteon its May 1, 2008 installment payment. Tharpany has since determined
that the note receivable is not collectible. Therefthe Company wrote off this note receivablthaamount of $6.1 million.

3. ACQUISITIONS

On March 19, 2008 the Company purchased the opgratisets of NuSoft Solutions, Inc. (“NuSoft”), &hlgan corporation. NuSoft is
a specialty provider of information technology sees. The acquisition of NuSoft was completed ikeoito expand the Company’s IT
solutions services within the Information Techngldmisiness segment. The acquisition was effecévaf arch 1, 2008. The
acquisition has been accounted for in accordantte Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFWo. 141 “Business
Combinations.” Accordingly, the results of operas®f the acquired company have been includedecdimsolidated results of
operations of the Company from the effective daie @e included in the IT segment.
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3. ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)

The purchase consideration at closing consisté&d & million in cash and 700,000 shares of RERbmmon stock, par value $0.05 (
“Common Stock”), valued at $3.7 million and potahgarn-out payments up to $4.4 million of defercedsideration contingent upon
NuSoft achieving certain base levels of operatimpme for each of the three 12-month periods falgvthe purchase. Additional earn-
out payments may be made at the end of each dfitke 12-month periods following the purchasehtodxtent that operating income
exceeds these base levels. The acquisition hasaoeennted for under the purchase method of acitmurithe source of cash utilized
the NuSoft acquisition was from the Company’s reig credit facility. The purchase price allocatiwin$8.2 million is as follows:

Customer Relationshiy $ 2,26(
Covenant-Not-To-Compete 424
Goodwill 5,12¢
Equipment 44¢€

The deferred consideration and earnouts, if paildlpe recorded as additional purchase considaratiarnouts cannot be estimated v
any certainty.

On April 28, 2008 the Company purchased the opegatssets of MBH Solutions, Inc. (“MBH"), a New Yatorporation. MBH is a
specialty provider of information technology seesc The acquisition of MBH was completed in oradeexpand the Company’s IT
solutions services within the Information Techngldmisiness segment. The acquisition was effectvef @pril 1, 2008 and has been
accounted for in accordance with Statement of Kiigd\ccounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141 “Busin@embinations.” Accordingly,
the results of operations of the acquired compawetibeen included in the consolidated results efatjpns of the Company from the
effective date and are included in the IT segment.

The MBH purchase consideration at closing consisfegl.8 million in cash and assumption of $1.3lio1il in certain liabilities and
potential earn-out payments up to $1.5 million efedred consideration contingent upon MBH achiewiagain base levels of operating
income for each of the three 12-month periods failhg the purchase. Additional earn-out payments beynade at the end of each of
the three 12-month periods following the purch&sehe extent that operating income exceeds thase levels.

The acquisition has been accounted for under thehpse method of accounting. The source of cabbadtiin the MBH acquisition was
from the Company’s revolving credit facility. Thenghase price allocation of $3.1 million has belrcated as follows:

Customer Relationshiy $ 83t
Covenant-Not-To-Compete 41
Goodwill 2,17¢
Equipment 36

In connection with certain acquisitions, the Companobligated to pay contingent consideratiorhi $ellers upon the acquired
business achieving certain earnings targets owadgseranging from two to three years following #euisition. In general, the
contingent consideration amounts fall into two gatées: (a) Deferred Consideration - fixed amouhis if the acquisition achieves a
base level of earnings which has been determingteatme of acquisition and (b) Earnouts — amoypatgable that are not fixed and
are based on the growth in excess of the basedevrings. The Company’s outstanding Deferred @enation obligations, which
relate to various acquisitions, could result infibllowing maximum payments:
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3. ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)

Year Ending Amount
January 2, 201 $ 2,40(
January 1, 201 2,30(
December 31, 2011 1,30(
$ 6,00(

The above table represents the maximum Deferredi@eration payments. However, the Company’s managebelieves that the
actual amount paid in the year ending January 20 2@l be $100. The Company cannot estimate thieDed Consideration payments
for the years ended January 1, 2011 and Decemb@021 with any certainty.

The Deferred Consideration and Earnouts, when palldhe recorded as additional purchase consideratnd added to goodwill on the
consolidated balance sheet. Earnouts, if any, ddmestimated with any certainty.

The following (unaudited) results of operations énéeen prepared assuming the two previously destabquisitions had occurred a
the beginning of the periods presented. Thosetsearg not necessarily indicative of results ofifetoperations or of results that would
have occurred had the acquisitions occurred asedbéginning of the periods presented.

Fifty-Two Weeks Ended

December 27, December 29,
Amounts 2008 2007

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Revenue:! $ 215,01 $ 243,32
Operating (loss) incom (6249) 11,33(
Net (loss) incomi (539 7,23:
(Loss) earnings per she $ (.04) $ .58

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are comprised of the folowi

December 27 December 29
2008 2007

Equipment and furniture $ 2,89¢ % 1,102
Computers and syster 7,232 7,31t
Leasehold improvements 1,15:% 99(
11,27¢ 9,407

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 5,692 5,17¢
$ 558€ $ 4,22¢

The Company writes off fully depreciated assetheaaar. In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, the woitks-were $1,205, $1,407 and $1,2
respectively.
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GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As of November 29, 2008, we conducted our annusssssnent of goodwill for impairment. To assess galbtbr impairment, we first
compare the fair value of our reporting units vifibir net book value. We estimate the fair valuéhefreporting units using discounted
expected future cash flows, supported by the resdiivarious market approach valuation modelshéffair value of the reporting units
exceeds their net book value, goodwill is not imga@j and no further testing is necessary. If thiédbnek value of our reporting units
exceeds their fair value, we perform a secondttesteasure the amount of impairment loss, if amynieasure the amount of any
impairment loss, we determine the implied fair wati goodwill in the same manner as if our repgrtinits were being acquired in a
business combination. Specifically, we allocatefttievalue of the reporting units to all of thesats and liabilities of that unit, including
any unrecognized intangible assets, in a hypothlataiculation that would yield the implied fairlua of goodwill. If the implied fair
value of goodwill is less than the goodwill recadm our balance sheet, we record an impairmemgetfar the difference.

As of November 29, 2008, we experienced a sustasigdificant decline in our stock price. The Compéelieves the reduced market
capitalization reflects the financial market’s redd expectations of the Compasiyerformance, due in large part to overall detatiog
economic conditions that may have a materially tiegampact on the Company’s future performance.

We also updated our forecasted cash flows of thertimg units during the fourth quarter. This ugdebnsidered current economic
conditions and trends; estimated future opera#sglts, our views of growth rates, anticipatedfeiteconomic and regulatory
conditions.

Based on the results of our annual assessmenbdirglband intangible assets for impairment, the bk value of two of our
segments, the Information Technology Group andetigineering Group, exceeded their fair value. Eievalue of our Commercial
Group exceeded the carrying value by $8.5 millmm84.7%.

Therefore, we performed the second step of theinmgat test to the reporting units in our InfornoeatiTechnology and Engineering
Groups to determine the implied fair value of godd8pecifically, we hypothetically allocated tif&ir value of the impaired reporting
units as determined in the first step to our recxgghand unrecognized net assets, including allmtato intangible assets such as
customer relationships and non-competition agreésn&he resulting implied goodwill was $6.5 milliceccordingly, we reduced the
goodwill recorded prior to this assessment by $4filBon to write our goodwill down to the impliegbodwill fair value as of
November 29, 2008. The resulting implied intangénsets was $0.3 million; accordingly, we redutedintangible assets recorded
prior to this assessment by $2.9 million to write mtangible assets down to the implied intangfaievalue as of November 29, 2008.

We performed extensive valuation analyses, utidjznth income and market approaches, in our gobdsskessment process. The
following describes the valuation methodologiesdusederive the fair value of the reporting units.

. Income Approach: To determine fair value, we discounted the expecésth flows of the reporting units. The discouré ra
used represents the estimated weighted averagefauegpital, which reflects the overall level oherent risk involved in our
reporting units and the rate of return an outsiestor would expect to earn. To estimate cashdflogyond the final year of
our model, we used a terminal value approach. Utiderlapproach, we used estimated operating indmfare interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization in the final yeaoof model, adjusted to estimate a normalized dash fpplied a perpetuity
growth assumption and discounted by a perpetustyadint factor to determine the terminal value. Wieiporated the prese
value of the resulting terminal value into our estie of fair value.
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5. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES (CONTINUED)

. Mar ket-Based Approach: To corroborate the results of the income approaderibed above, we estimated the fair value of
our reporting units using several market-basedaggtres, including the value that we derive baseauortonsolidated stock
price as described above. We also used the gugdetimpany method which focuses on comparing okiprisfile and growitt
prospects to select reasonably similar/guidelindiply traded companies.

The determination of the fair value of the repatimits requires us to make significant estimatesassumptions that affect the
reporting unit’s expected future cash flows. Thesgmates and assumptions primarily include, beitnat limited to, the discount rate,
terminal growth rates, operating income before eeption and amortization and capital expenditimescasts. Due to the inherent
uncertainty involved in making these estimatesyaatesults could differ from those estimates.ddition, changes in underlying
assumptions would have a significant impact onegithe fair value of the reporting units or the dwdl impairment charge.

The allocation of the fair value of the reportingts to individual assets and liabilities withirpoeting units also requires us to make
significant estimates and assumptions. The allonagquires several analyses to determine fairevalassets and liabilities including,
among others, customer relationships, non-competégreements and current replacement costs f@irc@roperty, plant and
equipment.

Goodwill at December 27, 2008 and December 29, 2080¥$6.5 million and $39.6 million, respectivdiytangible assets at
December 27, 2008 and December 29, 2007, was $li@mThere can be no assurance that future tfsg®odwill and intangible ass
impairment will not result in impairment charges.

The results of the 2007 and 2006 impairment testidigcated no impairment of goodwill.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwilltfar years ended December 27, 2008 and Decemb20@9®,are as follows:

Information
Technology Engineering Commercial Total
Balance as of December 30, 2006 $ 29,64 $ 7882 $ 1,80/ $ 39,32¢
Goodwill acquired during 2007 — 25¢ — 25¢
Balance as of December 29, 2( 29,64: 8,141 1,80¢ 39,58¢
Goodwill acquired during 200 7,30C 10C — 7,40(
Goodwill impairment during 2008 (32,209 (8,247 — (40,450
Balance as of December 27, 2008 $ 473¢  $ — $ 1,80/ $ 6,53¢
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GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES (CONTINUED)

The changes in the carrying amount of intangibsetssfor the years ended December 27, 2008 anchibece29, 2007 are as follows:

Information
Technology Engineering Commercial Total
Balance as of December 30, 2006 $ 522 $ 147 $ — $ 66<
Intangibles acquired during 20! — — — —
Amortization of intangibles during 2007 (28¢€) (34) — (320
Balance as of December 29, 2( 23€ 113 — 34¢
Intangibles acquired during 20! 3,56( — — 3,56(
Amortization of intangibles during 20( (739 (39 — (767)
Intangibles impairment during 2008 (2,866 — — (2,86€)
Balance as of December 27, 2008 $ 197 $ 79 $ — 3 27€

LINE OF CREDIT

The Company and its subsidiaries are party to a égmeement with Citizens Bank of PennsylvaniacWhwvas amended and restated
effective February 20, 2009, which now providesg@®15 million revolving credit facility and incled a sub-limit of $5.0 million for
letters of credit (the “Revolving Credit Facility’t December 27, 2008 the loan agreement provided $25 million Revolving Credit
Facility. Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Hiag bear interest at one of two alternative ra&s selected by the Company at each
incremental borrowing. These alternatives are IBOR (London Interbank Offered Rate), plus apdileamargin, or (ii) the agent
bank’s prime rate. The Company also pays unuseddies based on the amount of the Revolving CFeillity that is not drawn.

All borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facildye collateralized by all of the assets of the Camypand its subsidiaries and a pledge
of the stock of its subsidiaries. The Revolvingdir€&acility also contains various financial anchrilmancial covenants, such as
restrictions on the Company’s ability to pay divids. The Revolving Credit Facility expires in Auggae11.

The weighted average interest rates under the RiegoCredit Facility for the year ended DecemberZ¥08 and December 29, 2007
were 3.82% and 8.25%, respectively. The majoritpatowings in 2008 were subject to alternative [BOR (London Interbank
Offered Rate), plus applicable margin on contra€t30 days or more. All borrowings in 2007 wererstierm and borrowed under
alternative (ii) the agent bank’s prime rate. Dgrihe year ended December 27, 2008 and Decemb20Q9, the Company’s
outstanding borrowings ranged from $-0- to $10.Bioni and $-0- million to $1.5 million, respectiwelAt December 27, 2008 and
December 29, 2007, there were borrowings of $4IBomiand $0.0 outstanding under this facility, pestively. At December 27, 2008,
there were letters of credit outstanding for $1lilion. At December 27, 2008, the Company had aiity for additional borrowings
under the Revolving Credit Facility of $18.5 milioUpon execution of the amendment to the Compdogis agreement on

February 20, 2009, availability was reduced to $8ilion on a proforma basis.
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7. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION
Common Stock Reserved

Unissued shares of common stock were reservetiédiotiowing purposes:

December 27 December 29
2008 2007
Exercise of options outstanding 1,293,90! 1,462,00!
Future grants of options 699,29: 728,69:
Total 1,993,19. 2,190,69

I ncentive Stock Option Plans
1992 Incentive Sock Option Plan (the 1992 Plan)

The 1992 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockielideApril 1992 and amended in April 1998, provdder issuance of up to
500,000 shares of common stock per individual feefs, directors, and key employees of the Compantyits subsidiaries through
February 13, 2002, at which time the 1992 PlanrexipiThe options issued were intended to be ineeistiock options pursuant to
Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code. Theoopgrms were not permitted to exceed ten yearsranexercise price was not
permitted to be less than 100% of the fair markedtie of the shares at the time of grant. The Cosgutean Committee of the Board of
Directors determined the vesting period at the tiingrant for each of these options. As of Decen®¥r2008, options to purchase
60,455 shares of common stock were outstanding.

1994 Non-employee Directors Sock Option Plan (the 1994 Plan)

The 1994 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockhelideMay 1994 and amended in April 1998, provifmdssuance of up to
110,000 shares of common stock to non-employeetdieof the Company through February 19, 200&hath time the 1994 Plan
expired. Options granted under the 1994 Plan wexetgd at fair market value at the date of gramd, the exercise of options is
contingent upon service as a director for a peoioohe year. Options granted under the 1994 Planinate when an optionee ceases to
be a Director of the Company. As of December 20820ptions to purchase 50,000 shares of commah stere outstanding.

1996 Executive Sock Option Plan (the 1996 Plan)

The 1996 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockihelideAugust 1996 and amended in April 1999, presitbr issuance of up to
1,250,000 shares of common stock to officers aydekeployees of the Company and its subsidiariesutitt January 1, 2006, at which
time the 1996 Plan expired. Options are generaliytgd at fair market value at the date of grahe Tompensation Committee of the
Board of Directors determines the vesting periothattime of grant. As of December 27, 2008, ogitmpurchase 679,545 shares of
common stock were outstanding.
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7. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)
I ncentive Stock Option Plans (Continued)

2000 Employee Sock I ncentive Plan (the 2000 Plan)

The 2000 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockielideApril 2001, provides for issuance of up t6A0,000 shares of the Compasy’
common stock to officers and key employees of tam@any and its subsidiaries or to consultants awésars utilized by the Company.
The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directoay award incentive stock options or non-qualieock options, as well as
stock appreciation rights, and determines the nggieriod at the time of grant. As of December2Q8, options to purchase 28,694
shares of common stock were available for futuesty, and options to purchase 474,500 shares ahooanstock were outstanding.

2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the 2007 Plan)

The 2007 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockhelideJune 2007, provides for the issuance of ufd®000 shares of the
Company’s common stock to officers, non-employe&edaors, employees of the Company and its subgdiar to consultants and
advisors utilized by the Company. No more than 330 shares of common stock in the aggregate magshed pursuant to grants of
stock awards, stock units, performance shares #eat stock-based awards. No more than 300,000 sbammmmon stock with respect
to awards may be granted to any individual during fiscal year. The Compensation Committee of tbarB of Directors determines
the vesting period at the time of grant. As of Dmeber 27, 2008, options to purchase 670,600 sh&m@smmmon stock were available for
future grants, and options to purchase 29,400 steireommon stock were outstanding.

Transactions related to all stock options are Hevis:

Year Weighted- Year Weighted- Year Weighted-
Ended Average Ended Average Ended Average
December 27, Exercise December 29, Exercise December 30, Exercise
2008 Price 2007 Price 2006 Price
Outstanding options at
beginning of yea 1,462,000 $ 4.4¢ 1,768,000 $ 4.34 1,935,48. $ 4.34
Granted 56,95( 4.9 40,00( 9.2¢ 12,00¢( 6.12
Cancellec (225,05() 4.6C (138,000) 4.7C (119,38 4.6¢
Exercised — — (208,001) 4.0¢ (60,099 3.82
Outstanding options at end
year 1,293,900 $ 4.4¢ 1,462,000 $ 4.4¢ 1,768,000 $ 4.34
Exercisable options at end 1
year 1,214,500 $ 4.3C 904,00 $ 4.1C 1,005,000 $ 4.0C
Option grant price per share  $3.00 to $9.8: $3.00 to $9.8 $3.00 to $7.0
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7. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)
The following table summarizes information abowicktoptions outstanding at December 27, 2008:
Range of Weighted-Average
Exercise Number of Remaining Weighted-Average
Prices Outstanding Options Contractual Life Exercise Price
Outstanding Vested Outstanding Vested Outstanding Vested
$3.00- $4.40 818,50( 818,50( 491 491 $ 3.9t $ 3.9¢
$4.70- $6.91 440,40( 391,00( 4.8C 43z % 5.06 $ 4.9¢
$9.16- $9.81 35,00( 5,00( 8.5¢ 854 $ 9.6z $ 9.1¢€
$3.00- $9.81 1,293,901 1,214,501 4.97 47z % 44¢ % 4.3C
Employee Stock Purchase Plan
The Company implemented an Employee Stock Purdbiase(the “Purchase Plan”) with shareholder apdraftective January 1,
2001. Under the Purchase Plan, employees meetitgjrespecific employment qualifications are eligibo participate and can purch:
shares of Common Stock semi-annually through phgiealuctions at the lower of 85% of the fair mankaiue of the stock at the
commencement or end of the offering period. Thelpase plan permits eligible employees to purchesemon stock through payroll
deductions for up to 10% of qualified compensatduring the year ended December 27, 2008, there W&337 shares issued under
the Purchase Plan for net proceeds of $56. As oéDber 27, 2008, there were 141,792 shares avaiflabissuance under the Purchase
Plan.
8. RETIREMENT PLANS
Profit Sharing Plan
The Company maintains a 401(k) profit sharing gtarthe benefit of eligible employees. The 401(lgrpincludes a cash or deferred
arrangement pursuant to Section 401(k) of the maleRevenue Code sponsored by the Company to m@ligible employees an
opportunity to defer compensation and have suckrdsf amounts contributed to the 401(k) plan oreatgx basis, subject to certain
limitations. The Company at the discretion of treaRl of Directors may make contributions of casmtdch deferrals of compensation
by participants. Contributions charged to operatiby the Company for years ended December 27, ZD88&mber 29, 2007 and
December 30, 2006 were $330, $287 and $251, regplyct
9. COMMITMENTS

Employment Agreement

The Company has an employment agreement with iisf Elxecutive Officer and President, Leon Kopyt ¢:NKopyt”), which currently
provides for an annual base salary of $550 and etitomary benefits. In addition, the agreemeatipges that Mr. Kopyt's annual
bonus is based on EBITDA, defined as earnings befderest, taxes, depreciation, and amortizathenof December 27, 2008, the
agreement expires on February 28, 2009. The agrges®r a rolling term of three years, which auttically extends each year for an
additional one-year period on February 28 of eagdryThe employment agreement is terminable bytivapany upon Mr. Kopyt's
death or disability, or for “good and sufficientusa,” as defined in the agreement.
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9. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Termination Benefits Agreement

The Company is party to a Termination Benefits Agnent with Mr. Kopyt, amended on December 12, 200cbmply with the
requirements of section 409A of the Internal ReweBode of 1986 (the “Benefits Agreement”). Pursuarthe Benefits Agreement,
following a Change in Control (as defined therethg remaining term of Mr. Kopyt’s employment igended for five years (the
“Extended Term”). If Mr. Kopyt's employment is teimated thereafter by the Company other than foseaar by Mr. Kopyt for good
reason (including, among other things, a matetiahge in Mr. Kopyt's salary, title, reporting resgilities or a change in office
location which requires Mr. Kopyt to relocate), thie following provisions take effect: the Compasmpbligated to pay Mr. Kopyt a
lump sum equal to his salary and bonus for the iretea of the Extended Term; and the Company sleatitdigated to pay to Mr. Kopyt
the amount of any excise tax associated with tinefits provided to Mr. Kopyt under the Benefits Agment. If such a termination had
taken place as of December 27, 2008, Mr. Kopyt didaive been entitled to cash payments of approgignd.9 million (representing
salary and excise tax payments).

Severance Agreement

The Company is party to a Severance AgreementMitiKopyt, amended on December 12, 2007 to compilly the requirements of
section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (Severance Agreement”). The agreement provimesertain payments to be
made to Mr. Kopyt and for the continuation of Mopyt's employee benefits for a specified time afftisrservice with the Company is
terminated other than “for cause,” as defined ;m$leverance Agreement. Amounts payable to Mr. Kopgler the Severance
Agreement would be offset and reduced by any ansawteived by Mr. Kopyt after his termination offdoyment under his current
employment and termination benefits agreements;iwdiie supplemented and not superseded by theg®eeehgreement. If Mr. Kop
had been terminated as of December 27, 2008, theer the terms of the Severance Agreement, andddfsetting any amounts that
would have been received under his current employeed termination benefits agreements, he wowe ha&en entitled to cash
payments of approximately $3.2 million, inclusiieemnployee benefits.

Operating Leases

The Company leases office facilities and variousigent under non-cancelable leases expiring abwsdates through

September 2015. Certain leases are subject taatiscatlauses based upon changes in various fadtoesminimum future annual
operating lease commitments for leases with noralable terms in excess of one year, exclusiveefating escalation charges, are as
follows (in thousands):

Amount
Year ending December 31 (In thousands)
2009 $ 4,31(
2010 3,322
2011 2,89(
2012 1,84¢
2013 77
Thereafter 24C
Total $ 13,38¢

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended Decemh&0®B, December 29, 2007 and December 30, 20063864, $3,012 and $3,079,
respectively.
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COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Operating Leases (Continued)

The Company subleases space to other tenantsiavaffice locations under cancelable lease agee¢snDuring fiscal 2008, 2007
and 2006 revenues of approximately $384, $417 aid $respectively, were recognized under thesénigasrangements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A director of the Company is a shareholder in afiam that has rendered various legal service¢oGompany. Fees paid to the law
firm have not been significant.

INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax (benefit) expensasrfellows:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 27, December 29, December 30,
2008 2007 2006
Current
Federa $ — 3 162 $ —
State and loce 18¢ 75€ 25¢
Foreign 1,122 864 27
1,311 1,782 28€
Deferred
Federa (4,549 2,51¢ 704
State (1,320) (16) 124
(5,869 2,502 82¢
Total $ (4,556 $ 428. $ 1,11¢

The income tax provisions reconciled to the tax potred at the statutory Federal rate was:

December 27 December 29 December 30
2008 2007 2006
Tax at statutory rate (credit) 34.(% 34.(% 34.(%
State income taxes, net of Federal income tax [ie 1.7 4.4 6.2
Stock compensation exper (0.2) 1.3 4.3
Foreign income tax effe: (0.5 5 1.3
Non-deductible impairment of goodwill and intangibleseis (23.7) — —
Deductible amortizatio — (2.3 (3.9
Federal tax audit adjustme — — (27.9)
Non-deductible charge (0.2 0.6 1.3
Other, net (1.5 — (1.5
Total income tax expense 10.2% 38.8% 14.%
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11. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

At December 27, 2008 and December 29, 2007, deféaseassets and liabilities consist of the follogyi

December 27, December 29,

Deferred tax assets 2008 2007
Loss carryforward $ 2381 $ 13t
Allowance for doubtful accoun 432 635
Alternative minimum tax credit 17¢ 162
Tax amortization, ne 4,37¢ —
Reserves and accru: 15€ 14¢€
Litigation reserve 0 10€
Other 43 —
Valuation allowance (359 —
Net 7,214 1,182
Deferred tax liabilities
Prepaid expense defer (634) (477

(634) (477
Net deferred tax asse $ 6,580 $ 711

The deferred tax asset relating to the net opeydbiss carryforward represents the tax effect fefd@ral net operating loss carryforward
of approximately $6.1 million expiring by the ye2028 and state net operating losses of $0.4 miftimm various states that expire at
various times through 2028.

The Company recorded a valuation reserve in theuataf $0.4 million. This valuation reserve relatedstate net operating losses. Of
the remaining deferred tax asset, management hasmdeed that it is more likely than not that ilwealize the net deferred tax asset
based upon the nature and timing of the itemsdiateove. In order to fully realize the net defert@dasset, the Company will need to
generate future taxable income. Management haeqiegj that the Company will generate sufficienatde income to utilize the net
deferred tax asset; however, there can be no ag®uthat such levels of taxable income will be gatesl.

The Company did not have any liabilities for unagrttax positions or any known unrecognized taefienat December 31, 2008 and
2007. The Company’s policy is to record interest panalty in interest expense.

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolilateS. Federal income tax return and file in vasistates. The Company and its
subsidiaries are no longer subject to income taxrexations by taxing authorities for years prio@5.

12. INTEREST (EXPENSE) INCOME, NET

Interest (expense) income, net consisted of theviatg:

Years Ended

December 27, December 29, December 30,
2008 2007 2006
Interest expense $ (305) % (36) $ (505)
Unused line fe: ()] (31 (34)
Interest income 92 12€ 28¢
$ (230) $ 59 % (25€)
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13. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company follows SFAS 131, “Disclosures abowgrents of an Enterprise and Related Informatio8HAS 131"),which provides
guidance for companies to report information almpérating segments, geographic areas, and majmmeess. The accounting policies

of each segment are the same as those descritieal Snmmary of significant accounting policies (siete 1).

The Company uses earnings before interest and fagesating income) to measure segment profit. Sagmoperating income includes
selling, general and administrative expenses dyrattributable to that segment as well as chafgeallocating corporate costs to each

of the operating segments. The following tablekeotfthe results of the segments consistent wghdbmpany’s management system (in

thousands):
Information

Fiscal 2008 Technology Engineering Commercial Corporate Total

Revenue $ 103,44t $ 59,25. $ 46,58( — 3 209,27°
Operating expenses (1) (2) 102,56! 61,48¢ 43,90¢ — 207,96(
EBITDA (3) 881 (2,235 2,671 — 1,317
Depreciatior 64= 47¢ 177 — 1,30(C
Amortization of intangible: 733 34 — — 767
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 35,07¢ 8,24( — — 43,31
Operating (loss) incom (35,577) (20,987 2,49¢ — (44,065
Interest expense, net of interest incc 114 65 51 — 23C
Loss on foreign currency transactic — 75 — — 75
Other @ — — — (7
Income (benefit) expense (4,162 (1,399 99¢ — (4,559
Net (loss) incom $ (3151) $ (9,739 $ 1,44t — $ (39,809
Total asset $ 22,41¢ % 27,94. % 14,05¢ 14,42: $ 78,84
Capital expenditure $ 12z $ 367 $ 16¢ 2,01C $ 2,667
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13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information

Fiscal 2007 Technology Engineering Commercial Corporate Total

Revenue $ 98,95. $ 71,15¢ $ 44,10: $ — 3 214,20¢
Operating expenses (1) (2) 93,01¢ 67,24¢ 42,38 — 202,65
EBITDA (3) 5,932 3,911 1,71¢ — 11,55¢
Depreciatior 50z 462 157 — 1,122
Amortization of intangibles 28€ 34 — — 32C
Operating incom: 5,14: 3,41¢ 1,55¢ — 10,11¢
Interest income, net of interest expe (30 (20 (©)] — (59
Gain on foreign currency transactic — (78) — — (78)
Legal settlemer — — — (800) (800)
Income taxes 2,00¢ 1,36z 607 31C 4,28¢
Net income $ 3,16¢ $ 2,151 $ 9%C $ 49C $ 6,76¢
Total asset $ 50,83: $ 28,43: $ 14,06( $ 16,39: $ 109,71

Capital expenditure $ 372 $ 124 $ 32 % 97 $ 62E
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13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information

Fiscal 2006 Technology Engineering Commercial Corporate Total

Revenue $ 101,44¢ $ 57,607 $ 42,86¢ $ — 3 201,92(
Operating expenses (1)(2) 94,79¢ 56,56¢ 41,28¢ — 192,65¢
EBITDA (3) 6,65( 1,03¢ 1,57¢ — 9,26¢
Depreciatior 53: 49t 16¢ — 1,197
Amortization of intangibles 28€ 24 — — 31C
Operating incom: 5,831 51¢ 1,40 — 7,751
Interest expense, net of interest incc 12¢ 73 54 — 25€
Loss on foreign currency transactic — 31 — — 31
Income taxes 85C 62 202 — 1,114
Net income $ 4,85: $ CISICI 1,151 $ — 3 6,35¢€
Total asset $ 53,43: $ 24.27:  $ 12,137 $ 10,20C $ 100,04(
Capital expenditure $ 282 $ 1,00¢ $ 63 $ 21t % 1,56¢

(1) Operating expenses exclude depreciation and aratiotiz

(2) Operating expenses include $100, $411 and $95®cif based compensation expense for the years éelegber 27, 2008,
December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006, resplci

(3) EBITDA means earnings before interest, taxes, aégien and amortization. We believe that EBITDA,mesented,
represents a useful measure of assessing the parfoe of our operating activities, as it refleais @arnings trends without t
impact of certain non-cash and unusual chargesconie. EBITDA is also used by our creditors in asgg debt covenant
compliance. We understand that, although secuni&yyats frequently use EBITDA in the evaluatiorcompanies, it is not
necessarily comparable to EBITDA of other compadigs to potential inconsistencies in the methodatdulation. EBITDA it
not intended as an alternative to cash flow praVvioye operating activities as a measure of liquidityr as an alternative to net
income as an indicator of our operating performance as an alternative to any other measure dbpeance in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles i thited States of Americ
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The following reconciles consolidated operatingoime to the Company’s pretax income:

December 27,

December 29, December 30,

2008 2007 2006
Consolidated operating (loss) incol $ (44,065 $ 10,11¢ $ 7,751
Interest (expense) income, 1 (230 59 (25€)
Gain (loss) on foreign currency transacti (75) 78 (32)
Other 7 — —
Legal settlement — 80C —
Consolidated pretax net (loss) income $ (44,369 $ 11,05 $ 7,47(C

The Company derives a majority of its revenue fammpanies headquartered in the United States. Regaeported for each operating
segment are all from external customers.

The Company is domiciled in the United States amd@égments operate in the United States and CaRagtanues and fixed assets by
geographic area for the years ended December P8, Plecember 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006 dodi@ss:

December 27, December 29, December 30,

2008 2007 2006

Revenue:!

United State: $ 188,67: $ 198,03. $ 190,64«

Canada 20,60¢ 16,17" 11,27¢

$ 209,27° $ 214,20¢ $ 201,92(

Fixed Asset:

United State: $ 5,49¢ $ 4,127 $ 4,33¢

Canada 90 102 54

$ 558€ $ 4,22¢ $ 4,39z
14. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (U NAUDITED)
Year Ended December 27, 2008
Net Diluted
Gross (Loss) Net (Loss) Income
Sales Profit Income Per Share (a)
1st Quarter $ 49,11 % 12,29¢ $ (2,669 $ (0.29)
2nd Quarte 55,01: 15,15( 1,44( 0.11
3rd Quatrte! 51,61° 13,25¢ 56& 0.04
4th Quarter (a) 53,53¢ 13,27 (39,14) (3.06)
Total $ 209,27 % 53,97t $ (39,809 $ (3.15)
(@) Inthe fourth quarter of 2008, the Company recor@edmulative adjustment to income tax (benefifjemse to properly record

deferred tax liabilities associated with acquision 2008 and prior to 2008 totaling an increaseeferred tax liabilities of $1.3
million and an increase to deferred tax expensild million. Of that total, approximately $0.6lioin relates to years prior to
2006, and $0.2 million relates to each of the y@ag6 and 2007, and $0.3 million relates to therpriterim quarters of 2008.
Management believes that the adjustments relatel poior years and prior interim quarters of 2@08 immaterial to those financ
statements. Additionally, in the fourth quartei2608, the Company recorded a goodwill impairméwatrge totaling $37.6 million,
net of tax.
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SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (U NAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Year Ended December 29, 2007

Diluted
Gross Net Net Income
Sales Profit Income Per Share (a)
1st Quarter $ 54,49: $ 12377 % 1,571 $ A3
2nd Quarte 56,84¢ 13,95¢ 1,85: A&
3rd Quarte! 54,07¢ 13,43: 1,72¢ .14
4th Quarter 48,79: 13,20% 1,621 A3
Total $ 214,20¢ % 52,97¢ $ 6,76¢ $ .54

15.

(a) Each quarterly amount is based on separatalatitims of weighted average shares outstanding.
CONTINGENCIES

In late 1998, two shareholders who were formerficefs and directors of the Company filed suit agathe Company. The former
officers and directors alleged that the Companyngfolly limited the number of shares of the Compargommon stock that could he
been sold by the plaintiffs under a registratights agreement entered into in connection withcguigition transaction pursuant to
which the plaintiffs became shareholders of the Gamy.

A trial in 2002 resulted in a judgment in favortbé plaintiffs for $7.6 million that was affirmech@ppeal. In June 2006, the Company
paid $8.6 million, which included post-judgmentergst and other items totaling $1.0 million to fit@ntiffs to satisfy the judgment.

In November 2002, the Company filed suit on prdafasa liability claims against the attorneys and frms who had served as its
counsel in the acquisition transaction and in cotioa with its subsequent dealings with the pléisittoncerning their various
relationships with the Company resulting from ttrahsaction. In its lawsuit against its former ceeinthe Company was seeking
complete indemnification with respect to (1) itstsoand counsel fees incurred in the defense adghmslaims of the plaintiffs; (2) the
amount it paid to satisfy the judgment; and (3kdsts and counsel fees incurred in the prosecofitime legal malpractice action itself.
In February 2007, the Company reached a settlemigimbne of the law firm defendants resulting ie tlecovery of $0.8 million. On
March 16, 2009 the Company entered into a settléamgmeement with the remaining defendants in thissuit. The Company expects to
receive $9.8 million, $5.9 net of tax effect, orbefore March 31, 2009.
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CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The Company is party to two agreements of indenmeigted to the performance of two constructiorjgots. One of these construction
projects is managed by a former customer of the g2my and management of the Company believes tbjeqtiwill be completed by
the end of the first quarter of 2009. The secdrti@se construction projects was managed by tme saistomer prior to

November 2008 when the initial contract was tramstéto the Company. The Company now acts asahergl contractor on this
construction project. The contract price is appmately $6.2 million and management of the Compeastymates it was approximately
60% complete as of December 27, 2008. The Combaealigves this project will be finished in the fduquarter of 2009. In the event
non-performance on either construction project,Gbepany may be obligated to indemnify the progaebers for certain cost overruns
on such projects. Management believes that arly cost overruns would not have a significant advérsancial impact to the financial
position of the Company and its results of operetio

The Company is also subject to other pending Ipgateedings and claims that arise from time to iim&e ordinary course of its
business, which may or may not be covered by imsea
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MANAGEMENT 'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTI NG

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting for the company. Internal
control over financial reporting is a process desijto provide reasonable assurance regardinglibitity of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples. Our system of internal
control over financial reporting includes thoseigieks and procedures that (i) pertain to the maamee of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disgositions of the assets of the company; (iiyvjale reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in accordance with generalepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are beande only in accordance with authorizations of manzent and directors of the compa
and (i) provide reasonable assurance regardiaggmtion or timely detection of unauthorized acigjiois, use or disposition of the compasay’
assets that could have a material effect on ttaniial statements.

Management performed an assessment of the effaeigenf our internal control over financial repugtas of December 27, 2008 based upon
criteria in Internal Control-Integrated Framewoskued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidise Treadway Commission
(“COSQO”). Based on this assessment, managementdata that the company’s internal control oveafinial reporting was effective as of
December 27, 2008, based on the criteria in Int&oatrol-Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

This annual report does not include an attestaport of the company’s registered public accountirm due to a transition period
established by rules of the Securities and Exch&@ugemission for newly public companies.

This report shall not be deemed “filed” for purpesé Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Actd#4], as amended, or otherwise subject to
the liability of that section. Further, this repshall not be deemed to be incorporated by refererio any filing under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange AQ34, as amended.

/sl Leon Kopy! /sl Kevin D. Miller
Leon Kopyt Kevin D. Miller
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre

Dated: March 23, 200
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of RCM Technologies, Inc. (a Nevada catjpm) and Subsidiaries
(the Company) as of December 27, 2008 and Dece®the007 and the related consolidated statemerparations, changes in
stockholders’ equity, comprehensive income and #asls for each of the years in the thngsar period ended December 27, 2008. Our a
of the basic financial statements included therfaial statement schedules listed in the index ajmpgander Iltem 15 (a)(2). These
consolidated financial statements and financiakstant schedules are the responsibility of the Gompjs management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these consolidated fi@hstatements and financial statement schedulesitmasour audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawmewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrival control over financial reporting.
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigraniglit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autlibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppating the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the acaayptinciples used and significant estimates mad@&nagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaaaferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the consolidated financial
position of RCM Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiase®f December 27, 2008 and December 29, 200thantbnsolidated results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the ymatise three-year period ended December 27, daa&nformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Ame#dso in our opinion, the related financial staterngchedules, when considered in relation
to the basic financial statements taken as a wipoésent fairly, in all material respects, the infation set forth therein.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLI
Grant Thornton LLF
Philadelphia, Pennsylvan
March 24, 200¢
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SCHEDULE |

RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
BALANCE SHEET
December 27, 2008 and December 29, 2007
(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

ASSETS
December 27, December 29,
2008 2007

Current assetl

Prepaid expenses and other assets $ 13 $ 4
Other asset

Long-term receivables from affiliates 55,33¢ 92,20:
Total assets $ 55,35. $ 92,20¢

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
December 27 December 29
2008 2007

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ — 8 157
Stockholder equity

Common stocl 63¢ 603

Foreign currency translation adjustm 72C 1,48¢

Additional paid in capita 106,78t 102,95:

Accumulated deficit (52,79¢) (12,990

Total stockholders’ equity 55,35! 92,04¢

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 55,35. $ 92,20¢

The “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement®RGM Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries
are an integral part of these statements.

F-36




Table of Contents

SCHEDULE |
RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006
(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

December 27 December 29 December 30
2008 2007 2006

Operating expens

Administrative $ 2,38¢ $ 1414 $ 1,44t
Operating los! (2,38¢) (1,419 (1,44%)
Management fee income 2,38¢ 1,41¢ 1,44t
Income before income in subsidiar
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries (39,809 6,76¢ 6,35¢€
Net (loss) incom $ (39,809 $ 6,76¢ $ 6,35¢€

The “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement®RGM Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries
are an integral part of these statements.
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SCHEDULE |
RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006
(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

Cash flows from operating activitie

Net (loss) incomi

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigenl by operating activitie:

Recognition of share based compense
Share (equity) in deficiency in assets of subsies

Changes in operating assets and liabilii

Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activitie
Decrease (increase) in long-term receivables frobsigiaries

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activitie

Sale of stock for employee stock purchase

Exercise of stock options

Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbatants
Net increase in cash and equivale

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

December 29

December 30

2006
(39,809 $ 6,76¢ 6,35¢
411 95¢
(6,769) (6,356)
(1) 5
(77) 112
(6,436) (5,289)
33¢ 1,07+
(807) (1,459)
(807) (1,459)
144 144
84¢ 22¢
992 372
(519) 12

The “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement®RGM Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries

are an integral part of these statements.
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SCHEDULE II

RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006
(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and Other End of
Description of Period Expenses Accounts Deduction Period
Year Ended December 27, 2008
Allowance for doubtful accounts on trade and note
receivable $ 1,58 $ 7,67¢ $ 8,31t $ 942
Year Ended December 29, 2007
Allowance for doubtful accounts on trade receiva $ 1672 $ 59¢ $ 687 $ 1,58:
Year Ended December 30, 2006
Allowance for doubtful accounts on trade receiva $ 1,792 $ 294 $ 414 $ 1,672

F-39




Table of Contents

EXHIBIT INDEX
(3)(d) Amended and Restated Bylav
(10)(0)  Compensation Arrangements for Named Executive &
(10)(p) Compensation Arrangements for Directc

(10)(u)  Separation and Release Agreement, dated Augug0PB8; incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1htw Registrant’s Current
Report on Form-K dated August21, 2008, filed with the Securitiad &xchange Commission on August 27, 2(

(11) Computation of Earnings Per She
(21) Subsidiaries of the Registra
(23) Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Requiregt Rule 13i-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asraded
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Requireg Rule 13-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asraded
32.1 Certification Pursuant To 18 U.S.C. Section 1358 Adopted Pursuant To Section 906 of The Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification Pursuant To 18 U.S.C. Section 1358 Adopted Pursuant To Section 906 of The Sart-Oxley Act of 2002




Exhibit (3)(d)

Adopted as of June 6, 19'
as amended as of June 14, 2

AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS
OF
RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

ARTICLE |
Offices and Fiscal Year

Section 1.01. Registered Office The Registered Office of the Company shall bBaatk of America Plaza, Suite 800, 50 West
Liberty Street, Reno, Nevada 89501 until otherveiseblished by the board of directors and a resbstich change is filed with the
Department of State in the manner provided by law.

Section 1.02. Other Offices. The Company may have offices at such other phatthén or without the State of Nevada as the
board of directors may from time to time appointher business of the Company may require.

Section 1.03. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Company shall begin onltsieday of November in each year.

ARTICLE Il
Notice - Waivers - Meetings Generally

Section 2.01. Manner of Giving Notice

€) General Rule Whenever written notice is required to be givemtny person under the provisions of the Articlies o
Incorporation or these Bylaws, it may be givenh® person either personally or by sending a copsetif by first class or express mail,
postage prepaid, or by telegram (with messengeicgespecified), telex or TWX (with answer backe®ed), courier service, (charges
prepaid), or by telecopier, to the address (ohéotélex, TWX, telecopier or telephone numberhefperson appearing on the records of the
Company or, in the case of directors, suppliedheydirector to the Company for the purpose of eotitthe notice is sent by mail, telegraph
or courier service, it shall be deemed to have lgaen to the person entitled thereto when depositehe United States mail or with a
telegraph office or courier service for deliverythat person or, in the case of telex or TWX, whepatched or, in the case of telecopier,
when received. A notice of meeting shall specify ptace, day and hour of the meeting and any atifi@mmation required by any other
provision of the Articles of Incorporation or theBglaws. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice lte shareholders of every meeting of

shareholders shall be personally delivered or maitestage prepaid.

(b) Adjourned Shareholder Meeting¥Vhen a meeting of shareholders is adjournecail slot be necessary to give
any notice of the adjourned meeting or of the lessrto be transacted at an adjourned meeting, thid@iby announcement at the meeting at

which




the adjournment is taken, unless the board of wiredixes a new record date for the adjourned mget

Section 2.02. Notice of Meetings of Board of DirectordNotice of a regular meeting of the board of dives need not be give
Notice of every special meeting of the board oédiors shall be given to each director by teleptmria writing at least 24 hours (in the c:
of notice by telephone, telex, TWX or telecopiard8 hours (in the case of notice by telegraphrieoservice or express mail) or five days
(in the case of notice by first class mail) beftire time at which the meeting is to be held. Evergh notice shall state the time and place of
the meeting. Neither the business to be transadtetr the purpose of any regular or special mgeaif the board of directors need be
specified in a notice of the meeting.

Section 2.03. Notice of Meeting of Shareholders

€) General Rule Written notice of every meeting of shareholdéralisbe given and signed by, or at the directign of
the Secretary to each shareholder of record ethtileote at the meeting at least ten days andnooe than 60 days prior to the day name
a meeting. If the Secretary neglects or refusegvi® notice of a meeting, the person or persorisigahe meeting may do so. In the case of a
special meeting of shareholders, the notice shaltify the purpose of the meeting and the genextalra of the business to be transacted.

Section 2.04. Waiver of Notice.

€) Written Waiver. Whenever any written notice is required to beegiunder the provisions of the Articles of
Incorporation or these Bylaws, a waiver thereofiiting signed by the person or persons entitlethéonotice, whether before or after the
time stated therein, shall be deemed equivaletite@iving of the notice. Except as otherwise regfliby this subsection, neither the business
to be transacted at, nor the purpose of a meetird be specified in the waiver of notice of the tinge In the case of a special meeting of
shareholders the waiver of notice shall specifygbireral nature of the business to be transacted.

(b) Waiver by AttendanceAttendance of a person at any meeting shall @atesta waiver of notice of the meeting
except where a person attends a meeting for thesxpurpose of objecting, at the beginning oftleeting, to the transaction of any busit
because the meeting was not lawfully called or eoed.

Section 2.05. Modification of Proposal Contained in Noticg/henever the language of a proposed resolutiorcisded in a
written notice of a meeting required to be givedemthe provisions of the Articles of Incorporationthese Bylaws, the meeting considering
the resolution may without further notice adoptith such clarifying or other amendments as doembérge its original purpose.




Section 2.06. Exception to Requirement of Notice

€) General Rule Whenever any notice or communication is requicelde given to any person under the provisiol
the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws orthg terms of any agreement or other instrumeasa condition precedent to taking any
corporate action and communication with that pefisahen unlawful, the giving of the notice or conmmitation to that person shall not be
required.

(b) Shareholders Without Forwarding AddressBiotice or other communications shall not be semny shareholde
with whom the Company has been unable to communfcatmore than 24 consecutive months because coimations to the shareholder
are returned unclaimed or the shareholder haswitefailed to provide the Company with a curresidr@ss. Whenever the shareholder
provides the Company with a current address, thagamy shall commence sending notices and other cmgations to the shareholder in
the same manner as to other shareholders.

Section 2.07. Use of Conference Telephone and Similar Equipm@nty director may patrticipate in any meeting of tioard
of directors, and the board of directors may prewig resolution with respect to a specific meetingvith respect to a class of meetings that
one or more persons may participate in a meetinggeofhareholders of the Company, by means of oemte telephone or similar
communications equipment by means of which all@essarticipating in the meeting can hear eachroBregticipation in a meeting pursuant
to this Section shall constitute presence in peaddhe meeting.

ARTICLE Il
Shareholders

Section 3.01. Place of Meeting All meetings of the shareholders of the Compadralide held at the Registered Office of the
Company unless another place is designated bydde of directors in the notice of the meeting.

Section 3.02. Annual Meeting The board of directors may fix and designateddite and time of the annual meeting of
shareholders, notice of which shall be given nss khan ten days nor more than 60 days prior tddkenamed for the meeting.

Section 3.03. Special Meetings.

@) Call of Special MeetingsSpecial meetings of the shareholders may bedcatlany time:
(1) by the board of directors; or
(2 unless otherwise provided in the Articles of Inamgtion, by shareholders entitled to cast at le@gity

percent of the votes that all shareholders ar¢l@tio cast at the particular meeting. (b) Fixefid@ime for Meeting. At any time, upon the
written request of any person who has called aiapem®eting, it shall be the duty of the Secretarfix




the time of the meeting which shall be held notentbian 60 days after the receipt of the requethelfSecretary neglects or refuses to fix the
time of the meeting, the person or persons cathiegmeeting may do so.

Section 3.04. Quorum and Adjournment

(a) General Rule A meeting of shareholders of the Company duliedashall not be organized for the transaction of
business unless a quorum is present. The presésbareholders entitled to cast a majority of thees all shareholders are entitled to cast on
a particular matter to be acted upon at the mestiad) constitute a quorum for the purposes of iclamation and action on the matter.

(b) Withdrawal of a Quorum The shareholders present at a duly organizedimgeedn continue to do business until
adjournment notwithstanding the withdrawal of entospareholders to leave less than a quorum.

(c) Adjournments GenerallyAny regular or special meeting of the shareh@decluding one at which directors are
to be elected and one which cannot be organizealiseca quorum has not attended, may be adjournsddb period and to such place as the
shareholders present and entitled to vote shattir

(d) Electing Directors at Adjourned Meetindhose shareholders entitled to vote who attemeeting called for the
election of directors that has been previously adfjed for lack of a quorum, although less than@gu as fixed in this section, shall
nevertheless constitute a quorum for the purposteating directors.

(e) Other Action in Absence of QuorunThose shareholders entitled to vote who attemeeting of shareholders t
has been previously adjourned for one or more geramgregating at least fifteen days because absence of a quorum, although less th
quorum as fixed in this Section, shall neverthetessstitute a quorum for the purpose of acting umoyn matter set forth in the notice of the
meeting if the notice states that those shareheldbp attend the adjourned meeting shall neverdhbkealenstitute a quorum for the purpose of
acting upon the matter.

Section 3.05. Action by ShareholdersExcept as otherwise provided in the Articlesrafdrporation or these Bylaws, whenever
any corporate action is to be taken by vote ofstrereholders of the Company, it shall be authorimed majority of the votes cast at a duly
organized meeting of shareholders by the holdeshafes entitled to vote thereon.

Section 3.06. Organization At every meeting of the shareholders, the Chairofahe Board, if there be one, or in the case of
vacancy in office or absence of the Chairman obard, one of the following officers present ie trder stated: the Vice Chairman of the
Board, if there be one, the President, the VicaiBeats in their order of rank and seniority, greason chosen by vote of the shareholders
present, shall act as chairman of the meeting. Sdueetary, or, in the absence of the Secretarpsarstant Secretary, or in the absence of
both the Secretary




and Assistant Secretaries, a person appointedeb@hiairman, shall act as secretary of the meeting.

Section 3.07. Voting Rights of ShareholderdJnless otherwise provided in the Articles of Immaration, every shareholder of
the Company shall be entitled to one vote for ewhigre standing in the name of the shareholddeithooks of the Company.

Section 3.08. Voting and Other Action by Proxy

€) General Rule

(1) Every shareholder entitled to vote at a meetinghafreholders or to express consent or dissent to
corporate action in writing without a meeting mayharize another person to act for the sharehdigeroxy.

(2) The presence of, or vote or other action at a mgeti shareholders, or the expression of consent or
dissent to corporate action in writing, by a prafya shareholder shall constitute the presencerafpte or action by, or written consent or
dissent of, the shareholder.

€)) Where two or more proxies of a shareholder aregmtethe Company shall, unless otherwise expressly
provided in the proxy, accept as the vote of alreb represented thereby the vote cast by a nyagdrihem and, if a majority of the proxies
cannot agree whether the shares represented shadkdéd or upon the manner of voting the sharesytting of the shares shall be divided
equally among those persons.

(b) Minimum RequirementsEvery proxy shall be executed in writing by theusholder or by the duly authorized
attorney-in-fact of the shareholder and filed vilib Secretary of the Company. A proxy, unless aaiplith an interest, shall be revocable at
will, notwithstanding any other agreement or angvimion in the proxy to the contrary, but the reatian of a proxy shall not be effective
unless written notice thereof has been given t@eretary. An unrevoked proxy shall not be vaftdrahree years from the date of its
execution unless a longer time is expressly praliitierein. A proxy shall not be revoked by the Heatincapacity of the maker unless,
before the vote is counted or the authority is eised, written notice of the death or incapacitgiisen to the Secretary of the Company.

(c) Expenses The Company shall pay the reasonable expensasioitation of votes, proxies or consents of
shareholders by or on behalf of the board of dinescor its nominees for election to the board,udiig solicitation by professional proxy
solicitors and otherwise.

Section 3.09. Voting by Fiduciaries and PledgeeShares of the Company standing in the name rofséee or other fiduciary
and shares held by an assignee for the benefiediftors or by a receiver may be voted by the émisfiduciary, assignee or receiver. A
shareholder whose shares are pledged shall beedrititvote the shares unless the shares have been




transferred into the name of the pledgee, or a neenof the pledgee, but nothing in this sectiorl gifect the validity of a proxy given to a
pledgee or nominee.

Section 3.10. Voting by Joint Holders of Shares

€) General Rule Where shares of the Company are held jointlysaeaants in common by two or more persons, as
fiduciaries or otherwise:

Q) if only one or more of such persons is presentirs@n or by proxy, all of the shares standing & th
names of such persons shall be deemed to be raprdder the purpose of determining a quorum aeddbmpany shall accept as the vote of
all the shares the vote cast by a joint owner magority of them; and

(2) If the persons are equally divided upon whetherstigres held by them shall be voted or upon thenar:
of voting the shares, the voting of the shared sleatlivided equally among the persons withoutysiigie to the rights of the joint owners or
the beneficial owners thereof among themselves.

(b) Exception. If there has been filed with the Secretary of @lmnpany a copy, certified by an attorney at laweo
correct, of the relevant portions of the agreenugater which the shares are held or the instrumemttich the trust or estate was created or
the order of court appointing them or of an ordecaurt directing the voting of the shares, thespas specified as having such voting power
in the document latest in date of operative eféectiled, and only those persons shall be entitbegbte the shares but only in accordance
therewith.

Section 3.11. Voting by Corporations

@) Voting by Corporate Shareholderdny corporation that is a shareholder of this @amy may vote at meetings of
shareholders of this Company by any of its offiaaragents, or by proxy appointed by any officeagent, unless some other person, by
resolution of the board of directors of the otherporation or a provision of its Articles of Incamation or Bylaws, a copy of which resoluti
or provision certified to be correct by one ofafficers has been filed with the Secretary of tba@mpany, is appointed its general or special
proxy in which case that person shall be entittedate the shares.

Section 3.12. Determination of Shareholders of Record

€) Fixing Record Date The board of directors may fix a time prior te thate of any meeting of shareholders as a
record date for the determination of the sharehieldatitled to notice of, or to vote at, the megtiwhich time, except in the case of an
adjourned meeting, shall be not more than 60 deys {o the date of the meeting of shareholderdy Ghareholders of record on the date
fixed shall be so entitled notwithstanding any sfen of shares on the books of the Company afterecord date fixed as provided in this
subsection. The board of directors may similayairecord date for the determination of sharehsldérecord for any other purpose. Whe
determination of shareholders of record has beateraa




provided in this section for purposes of a meetihg,determination shall apply to any adjournmbatéof unless the board fixes a new res
date for the adjourned meeting.

(b) Determination When No Record Date Fixdéla record date is not fixed:

(1) The record date for determining shareholders edtiib notice of or to vote at a meeting of shardéis
shall be at the close of business on the day rrexeping the day on which notice is given or, ific®is waived, at the close of business on
the day immediately preceding the day on whichntleeting is held.

(2 The record date for determining those shareholeietiied to express consent or dissent to corporate
action in writing without a meeting, when prior iact by the board of directors is not necessaryl] fleethe close of business on the day on
which the first written consent or dissent is filedh the Secretary of the Company.

3) The record date for determining shareholders fgrather purpose shall be at the close of busineghe®
day on which the board of directors adopts thelutism relating thereto.

Section 3.13. Voting Lists.

(a) General Rule The officer or agent having charge of the transfmks for shares of the Company shall make a
complete list of the shareholders entitled to \aitany meeting of shareholders, arranged in alglwaberder, with the address of and number
of shares held by each. The list shall be prodacedkept open at the time and place of the meatirgbe subject to the inspection of any
shareholder during the meeting for the purposezttie

(b) Effect of List. Failure to comply with the requirements of thecton shall not affect the validity of any action
taken at a meeting prior to a demand at the meétirany shareholder entitled to vote thereat toréna the list. The original share register or
transfer book, or a duplicate thereof kept at thgiRered Office of the Company, or at such otleceas determined by the board of
directors, shall be prima facie evidence as to aeothe shareholders entitled to examine the fishare register or transfer book or to vote at
any meeting of shareholders.

Section 3.14. Judges of Election

@) Appointment In advance of or at any meeting of shareholdetseoCompany, the board of directors may appoint
judges of election, who need not be shareholdemcttat the meeting or any adjournment theregfiddes of election are not so appoint
the presiding officer of the meeting may, and anrtquest of any shareholder shall, appoint judfjegection at the meeting. The number of
judges shall be two. A person who is a candidatarfiooffice to be filled at a meeting shall not asta judge




(b) Vacancies In case any person appointed as a judge fadppear or refuses to act, the vacancy may be filfed
appointment made by the board of directors in adea the convening of the meeting or at the mgdtinthe presiding officer.

(c) Duties. The judges of election shall determine the nunabshares outstanding and voting power of eaeh, th
shares represented at the meeting, the existerecqudrum, and the authenticity, validity and effgfcproxies, receive votes or ballots, hear
and determine all challenges and questions in ayaxising in connection with nominations by shatdars and the right to vote, count and
tabulate all votes, determine the result and db siets as may be proper to conduct the electimotarwith fairness to all shareholders. The
judges of election shall perform their duties intjadlly, in good faith, to the best of their abiliagnd as expeditiously as is practical,
decision, act or certificate of a majority shalldféective in all respects as the decision, actertificate of all.

(d) Report. On request of the presiding officer of the megtin any shareholder, the judges shall make a r@por
writing of any challenge, question or matter defeed by them and execute a certificate of anyfimethd by them. Any such report or
certificate shall be prima facie evidence of thet§estated therein.

Section 3.15. Consent of Shareholders in Lieu of Meetingny action required or permitted to be taken ateseting of the
shareholders or of a class of shareholders magkss twithout a meeting if, prior or subsequenhadction, a consent or consents thereto
signed by all the shareholders who would be edtiibevote at a meeting for such purpose shallled fivith the minutes of the proceedings of
the shareholders of the Company.

Section 3.16. Minors as SecurityholdersThe company may treat a minor who holds sharebligations of the Company as
having capacity to receive and empower othersdeive dividends, interest, principal and other pagta or distributions, to vote or express
consent or dissent and to make elections and aeerigihts relating to such shares or obligatiodeas) in the case of payments or
distributions on shares, the corporate officer o@sgble for maintaining the list of shareholderstar transfer agent of the Company or, in the
case of payments or distributions on obligatiohs, Treasurer or paying officer or agent has reckiwvétten notice that the holder is a minor.

ARTICLE IV
Board of Directors

Section 4.01. Powers; Personal Liability

(@) General Rule Unless otherwise provided by statute all powested by law in the Company shall be exercised by
or under the authority of, and the business arairafbf the Company shall be managed under thetaireof the board of directors.

(b) Notation of Dissent A director who is present at a meeting of therta@d directors, or of a committee of the ba
of directors, at which action on any corporate pratt taken shall be presumed to have assentée taction taken unless his or her dissent is
entered in




the minutes of the meeting or unless the diredkes & written dissent to the action with the staseof the meeting before the adjournment
thereof or transmits the dissent in writing to 8exretary of the Company immediately after the aajment of the meeting. The right to
dissent shall not apply to a director who votethivor of the action. Nothing in this Section shal a director from asserting that the minutes
of the meeting incorrectly omitted his or her digs§ promptly upon receipt of a copy of such ntes) the director notifies the Secretary, in
writing, of the asserted omission or inaccuracy.

Section 4.02. Qualifications and Selection of Directars

€) Qualifications. Each director of the Company shall be a natuzedqn of full age who need not be a resident o
State of Nevada or a shareholder of the Company.

(b) Power to Select DirectorsExcept as otherwise provided in these Bylawgatars of the Company shall be ele:
by the shareholders.

(c) Nomination of CandidatesSubject to the rights of any class or seriesaflshaving a preference over the
common stock as to dividends or upon dissolutiogléat directors under specified circumstances,inations for election of directors may
made by any shareholder entitled to vote for teetaln of directors only if notice of such sharatesls intent to nominate a director at the
meeting is given by the shareholder and receiveith&ysecretary of the Corporation in the mannerveititin the time specified herein. Noti
must be received by the Secretary of the Corparatai less than 150 days prior to the date fixedife Annual Meeting of shareholders
pursuant to these Bylaws; provided, however, thditéctors are to be elected by the shareholdesigyaother time, notice must be received
by the Secretary of the Corporation not later tthenseventh day following the day on which noti€éhe meeting was first mailed to
shareholders. The notice may either be deliveraday be mailed to the Secretary of the Corporatipoertified or registered mail, return
receipt requested.

The notice shall be in writing and shall contain:
0] the name and residence of such shareholder;

(i) a representation that the shareholder is a hofdesting stock of the Corporation and intends tpeqr in person
or by proxy at the meeting to nominate the persgmeosons specified in the notice;

(iii) such information regarding each nominee as wow lh@en required to be included in a proxy stateifiled
pursuant to Regulation 14A of the rules and reipiatestablished by the Securities and Exchangen@ssion under the Securities Exchal
Act of 1934 (or pursuant to any successor act@ulegion) had proxies been solicited with respeduch nominee by the management or
Board of Directors of the Corporation; and

(iv) the consent of each nominee to serve as directivedCorporation if so elected.




The Chairman of the meeting may, if the facts watrrdetermine and declare to the meeting that anyimation made at the meeting
was not made in accordance with the foregoing phaees and, in such event, the nomination shallisregiarded.

(d) Election of Directors In elections for directors, the candidates raogithe highest number of votes from each
class or group of classes, if any, entitled totedérectors separately up to the number of directorbe elected by the class or group of classes
shall be elected. If at any meeting of shareho|d#rectors of more than one class are to be eleetrch class of directors shall be elected
separate election.

Section 4.03 Number and Term of Office

@) Number. The board of directors shall consist of such neindf directors, not less than three nor more tfiag, as
may be determined from time to time by resolutibthe board of directors. The Board of Directoralkhe divided into three classes, each
class of which shall be as nearly equal in numbgyassible, the term of office of at least onesk®all expire in each year, and the members
of a class shall not be elected for a shorter petian one year, or for a longer period than tlyeses. One-third (or the nearest approximation
thereto) of the number of the Board of Directoetedmined as aforesaid, shall be elected at eaohi@meeting of the shareholders by a
meeting plurality vote, for terms to expire at thed subsequent meeting of shareholders at whiretttbrs are elected.

(b) Term of Office. Each director shall hold office until the expioat of the term for which he or she was selectat
until a successor has been elected and qualifiedtiirhis or her earlier death, resignation or ogal. A decrease in the number of directors
shall not have the effect of shortening the terrarof incumbent director.

(c) Resignation Any director may resign at any time upon writtetice to the Company. The resignation shall be
effective upon receipt thereof by the Company @uah subsequent time as shall be specified indkiee of resignation.

Section 4.04. Vacancies

€) General Rule All vacancies in the board of directors, whett@used by resignation, death, or otherwise, may be
filled by the remaining director or a majority &t remaining directors attending a stated speaggitimg called for that purpose even though
less than a quorum be present; provided, howevéei event of a change in control of the Compaltywacancies in the Board of Directors
shall be filled by the directors who where direstprior to the change in control (the “Continuingdators”). A director thus elected to fill
any vacancy shall hold office for the unexpiredrtaf his predecessor and until his successor @exleand qualifies.

For purposes of these Bylaws, a “change in coufirthe Companyshall mean a change in control of a nature thatidvoe
required to be reported in response to Item 6(&obedule 14A of Regulation 14A promulgated unterSecurities Exchange Act of 1934
(the “Exchange Act”). Such a change in control sbaldeemed to have occurred if (a) any “person”




as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(theoExchange Act, other than the Company or aeysgn” who is a director or officer of
the Company, is or becomes the “beneficial ownerdiefined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Acgatly or indirectly, of securities of the
Company representing 20% or more of the combin¢idg@ower of the Company’s then outstanding sé¢iestior (b) during any twelve
month period individuals who at the beginning oflsperiod constitute the Board of Directors of @G@mpany cease, for any reason, to
constitute at least a majority, unless the eleatfoeach director who was not a director at theregg of the period has been approved in
advance by directors representing at least twaldhif the directors then in office who were direstat the beginning of the period.

(b) Action by Resigned DirectorsWhen a director resigns from the board of directdfective at a future date, the
directors then in office, including those who haweresigned, shall have power by applicable vofél tilne vacancies, the vote thereon to t
effect when the resignations become effective.

Section 4.05. Removal of Directors

€) Removal by the Shareholder$he entire board of directors, or any class eflibard of directors, or any individi
director may be removed from office by a vote obtthirds of the shareholders entitled to vote thereithout assigning any cause. In case
the board of directors of a class thereof or angy @nmore directors are so removed, new directang Ipe elected at the same meeting.

Section 4.06. Place of MeetingsMeetings of the board of directors may be helthatRegistered Office of the Company, or at
such place as the board of directors may from tortéme appoint or as may be designated in thecaaf the meeting.

Section 4.07. Organization of MeetingsAt every meeting of the board of directors, thei@man, if there be one, or, in the ¢
of a vacancy in the office or absence of the Chairwf the board, one of the following officers pmetsin the order stated: the Vice Chairman,
if there be one, the President, the Vice Presidaritseir order of rank and seniority, or a persbosen by a majority of the directors present,
shall act as chairman of the meeting. The Secretaryn the absence of the Secretary, an Assi§aatetary, or in the absence of the
Secretary and the Assistant Secretaries, any peggorinted by the chairman of the meeting, shalhacsecretary of the meeting.

Section 4.08. Regular Meetings Regular meetings of the board of directors dhaleld at such time and place as shall be
designated from time to time by resolution of tleatd of directors.

Section 4.09. Special Meetings Special meetings of the board of directors dhalheld whenever called by the Chairman or by
a majority of directors in office.




Section 4.10. Quorum of and Action by Directors

€) General Rule A majority of the directors in office shall beasssary to constitute a quorum for the transacifon
business and the acts of a majority of the diregioesent and voting at a meeting where a quoryresent shall be the acts of the board of
directors.

(b) Action by Written ConsentAny action required or permitted to be taken ateseting of the directors may be tal
without a meeting if, prior or subsequent to thiéaag a consent or consents thereto signed byf #tleodirectors in office is filed with the
minutes of the proceedings of the board of director

Section 4.11. Executive and Other Committees

€) Establishment and Power3he board of directors may, by resolution adofmgd majority of the directors in
office, establish one or more committees to comdisine or more directors of the Company. Any cotteni to the extent provided in the
resolution of the board of directors, shall havd aray exercise all of the powers and authorityheftioard of directors except that a
committee shall not have any power or authoritioate following:

Q) the submission to shareholders of any action reguapproval of shareholders under the laws ofStade
of Nevada;

(2) the creation or filling of vacancies in the boafdlwectors;

3) the adoption, amendment or repeal of these Bylaws;

4) the amendment or repeal of any resolution of thardbof directors that by its terms is amendable or

repealable only by the board of directors; and

(5) action or matters committed by a resolution oftibard of directors to another committee of the daxr
directors.

(b) Alternate Committee Memberd'he board of directors may designate one or rdivetors as alternate members
of any committee who may replace any absent oudited member at any meeting of the committeéoothe purposes of any written
action by the committee. In the absence or disfication of a member and alternate member or mesnea committee, the member or
members thereof present at any meeting and nasali§igd from voting, whether or not constitutingijaorum, may unanimously appoint
another director to act at the meeting in the pt#fdbe absent or disqualified member.

(c) Term. Each committee of the board of directors shaillesat the pleasure of the board of directors.

(d) Committee ProceduresThe term “board of directors” when used in angvision of these Bylaws relating to the
organization or procedures of or the manner ofgki




action by the board of directors, shall be constrieeinclude and refer to any executive or othenittee of the board of directors.

Section 4.12. Compensation The board of directors shall have the authoatfix the compensation of directors for their
services as directors and a director may be aiedlafficer of the Company.

ARTICLE V
Officers
Section 5.01. Officers Generally
@) Number, Qualifications and Designatiomhe officers of the Company shall be the, Pragidee or more Vice

Presidents, Secretary, Treasurer and such otheesffas may be elected in accordance with theigioms of Section 5.03. Officers may but
need not be directors or shareholders of the Coynpdre President, Treasurer, Secretary and alt attfieers of the Company shall be
natural persons of full age. The board of directoay elect from among its members a Chairman and €hairman who shall be officers of
the Company. Any number of offices may be heldh®/game person.

(b) Bonding. The Company may secure the fidelity of any opéits officers by bond or otherwise.

(c) Standard of CareExcept as otherwise provided in the Articlesrafdrporation, an officer shall perform his or her
duties as an officer in good faith, in a manneohshe reasonably believes to be in the best steerd the Company and with such care,
including reasonable inquiry, skill and diligenes,a person of ordinary prudence would use undelasicircumstances. A person who so
performs his or her duties shall not be liable égson of having been an officer of the Company.

Section 5.02. Election, Term of Office and Resignations

€) Election and Term of OfficeThe officers of the Company, except those elebiedelegated authority pursuant to
Section 5.03, shall be elected annually by thedo#directors and each such officer shall holdceffor a term of one year and until a
successor has been selected and qualified orhnisitdr her earlier death, resignation or removhk BHoard of directors, as soon as may be
done after each annual meeting of stockholderstaudion, shall choose a President, Secretary agastirer and from time to time one or
more Vice Presidents, Assistant Secretaries anttags Treasurers, and may appoint such otheresffiagents and employees as it may
deem proper. Any two or more offices may be heldh®gysame person.

(b) Resignations Any officer may resign at any time upon writtestioe to the Company. The resignation shall be
effective upon its receipt by the Company or ahssubsequent time as may be specified in the nofioesignation.




Section 5.03. Other Officers, Committees and AgeniBhe board of directors may from time to time ekeh other officers
and appoint such committees, employees or othatags the business of the Company may requirkidimg a Chief Financial Officer, an
Executive Vice President, a Chief Operating Offiaed one or more Assistant Secretaries, each ofwgiall hold office for such period,
have such authority and perform such duties aprangded in these Bylaws, or as the board of dinecinay from time to time determine. 1
board of directors may delegate to any officeranmittee the power to elect subordinate officers @retain or appoint employees or other
agents, or committees thereof, and to prescribauki®ority and duties of such subordinate officesnmittees, employees or other agents.

Section 5.04. Removal of Officers and Agent#ny officer or agent of the Company may be rentblg the board of directors
with or without cause. The removal shall be withprgjudice to the contract rights, if any, of argygon so removed. Election or appointment
of an officer or agent shall not of itself createtract rights.

Section 5.05. Vacancies A vacancy in any office because of death, resignaremoval, disqualification, or any other cause
may be filled by the board of directors or by tliftccer or committee to which the power to fill suoffice has been delegated pursuant to
Section 5.03, as the case may be, and if the dffioae for which these Bylaws prescribe a terrall4fe filled for the unexpired portion of t
term.

Section 5.06. Authority . All officers of the Company, as between themsehled the Company, shall have such authority and
perform such duties in the management of the Cogpnpammay be provided by or pursuant to resolut@raders of the board of directors or,
in the absence of controlling provisions in theote8ons or orders of the board of directors, ay tmadetermined by or pursuant to these
Bylaws.

Section 5.07. Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Boaithe Chairman, or in the absence of the Chairitenyice Chairman,
shall preside at all meetings of the shareholdedscd the board of directors, and shall performhsother duties as may from time to time be
requested by the board of directors.

Section 5.08. President The President shall be the chief executive offafdhe Company and shall have general supervision
over its business and subject however, to the abotithe board of directors. The President shigh sexecute, and acknowledge, in the name
of the Company, deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracther instruments authorized by the board afaors, except in cases where the
signing and execution thereof shall be expresdiggd¢ed by the board of directors, these Bylawlawrto some other officer or agent of the
Company and in general shall perform all dutiegdieict to the office of President and such othereduds from time to time may be assigned
by the board of directors.

Section 5.09. Vice Presidents The Vice Presidents shall perform the dutiehefRresident in the absence of the President and
such other duties as may from time to time be assigo them by the board of directors or the PesgidThe Vice Presidents may sign,
execute, and acknowledge, in the name of the Coyngieds, mortgages, bonds, contracts or otheuinents authorized by the board of
directors, except in cases where the signing and




execution thereof shall be expressly delegatedh&ypbard of directors, these Bylaws or law to sother officer or agent of the Company.

Section 5.10. Secretary The Secretary or an Assistant Secretary shalhdtall meetings of the shareholders and board of
directors and record the votes of shareholderdardtors, the minutes of the meetings of sharedrs|doard of directors and of committees
of the board of directors in a book or books tkept for that purpose; ensure notices are giverrecards and reports properly kept and filed
by the Company as required by law; serve as cuestaafi the seal of the Company and ensure it igedfio all documents to be executed on
behalf of the Company under seal; and, in genpeaform all duties incident to the office of Seargtand such other duties as may from time
to time be assigned by the board of directors eRtesident.

Section 5.11. Treasurer The Treasurer shall have or provide for the astaf the funds or other property of the Company;
collect and receive or provide for the collectio aeceipt of moneys earned by or in any mannertaoe received by the Company; deposit
all funds in his or her custody as Treasurer irhdaanks or other places of deposit as the boadit@ftors may from time to time designate;
whenever so required by the board of directorgjeean account showing all transactions as Tregsamd the financial condition of the
Company; and, in general, discharge such otheeslas may from time to time be assigned by thedbofdirectors or the President. The
Treasurer may sign, execute and acknowledge inahee of the Company deeds, mortgages, bonds, ctntmaother instruments authorized
by the board of directors, except in cases wharesigning and execution thereof shall be expredslggated by the board of directors, these
Bylaws or law to some other officer or agent of @G@mpany.

Section 5.12. Salaries The salaries of the officers elected by the baddirectors shall be fixed from time to time thetboard
of directors or by such officer as may be desighateresolution of the board of directors. The Sataor other compensation of any other
officers, employees and other agents shall be fis@d time to time by the officer or committee thieh the power to elect such officers or to
retain or appoint such employees or other agergtdban delegated pursuant to Section 5.03. Naeofficall be prevented from receiving a
salary or other compensation by reason of thetfecofficer is also a director of the Company.

ARTICLE VI
Certificates of Stock Transfer, Etc.

Section 6.01 Share Certificates

@) Form of Certificates Shares of the Company may be certified or urfa@ted, as provided under Nevada law,
this Section 6.01(a) of this Article VI shall nat lmterpreted to limit the authority of the Dirextdo issue some or all of any of the classes or
series of shares of the Company without certifieate

To the extent certificates for shares are issugzh sertificates shall be in the form as approwethle board of directors and
state the Company is incorporated under the laws




of the State of Nevada, the name of the persorhtimwissued and the number and class of sharehamtbsignation of the series (if any) the
certificate represents. If the Company is autharizeissue shares of more than one class or seaggfjcate for shares of the Company shall
set forth upon the face or back of the certificateshall state on the face or back of the certi¢ichat the Company will furnish to any
shareholder upon request and without charge)| afdummary statement of the designations, vatigigts, preferences, limitations and
special rights of the shares of each class orsatithorized to be issued so far as they havefbehand determined and the authority of the
board of directors to fix and determine the dedigna, voting rights, preferences, limitations apecial rights of the classes and series of
shares of the Company.

In the case of shares issued without certificatesCompany will, within a reasonable time aftestsissuance, send the
holders of such shares a written statement contgithie information specified in the preceding peapf. At least annually thereafter, the
Company shall provide to its stockholders of recmritten statement confirming the information taned in the informational statement
sent pursuant to the preceding sentence.

(b) Share RegisterThe share register or transfer books and blaakestertificates shall be kept by the Secretatyy
any transfer agent or registrar designated by tlaedbof directors for that purpose.

Section 6.02. Issuance The share certificates of the Company shall brebared and registered in the share register osfean
books of the Company as they are issued. They lsbakecuted in such manner as the board of dieeshall determine.

Section 6.03. Transfer. Transfers of shares shall be made on the shgigteeor transfer books of the Company upon saeen
of the certificate therefore, endorsed by the persmmed in the certificate or by an attorney lalyfabnstituted in writing; provided, that in
the case of shares that are not represented hyificaée, no delivery of a certificate shall bejtered and transfers shall be made on the share
register or transfer books of the Company onlyh®yrecord holder of such shares or by an attormefully constituted in writing. No
transfers shall be made inconsistent with the giors of the Uniform Commercial Code, its amendmanid supplements.

Section 6.04. Record Holder of SharesThe Company shall be entitled to treat the pemsavhose name any share or shares of
the Company stand on its books as the absoluteraiversof, and shall not be bound to recognizeeaptable or other claim to or interest in
such share or shares on the part of any otherperso

Section 6.05. Lost, Destroyed or Mutilated Certificate¥he holder of any shares of the Company shallédiately notify the
Company of any loss, destruction or mutilationhaf tertificate therefor, and the board of directoey, in its discretion, cause a new
certificate or certificates to be issued to sucliéig in case of mutilation of the certificate, mgihe surrender of the mutilated certificate or in
case of loss or destruction of the certificate,rupatisfactory proof of such loss or destructiord @ the board of directors shall so determine,
the deposit of a bond in such form and in such smd,with such surety or sureties, as it may direct




ARTICLE VI
Miscellaneous

Section 7.01. Corporate SealThe Company shall have a corporate seal in the & a circle containing the name of the
Company, the year of its incorporation and sucleotietails as may be approved by the board of tdirec

Section 7.02. Checks. All checks, notes, bills of exchange or otherepsdn writing shall be signed by such person osqes a:
the board of directors or any person authorizedebglution of the board of directors may from titngéime designate.

Section 7.03. Contracts Except as otherwise provided in the case of &etiens which require action by the shareholdées, t
board of directors may authorize any officer orr#gge enter into any contract or to execute ongglany instrument on behalf of the
Company, and such authority may be general or gedfto specific instances.

Section 7.04. Interested Directors or Officers; Quorum

€) General Rule A contract or transaction between the Companyaaedor more of its directors or officers or
between the Company and another corporation, gartipe joint venture, trust or other enterprisevimch one or more of its directors or
officers are directors or officers or have a finahor other interest shall not be void or voidakddely for that reason, or solely because the
director or officer is present at or participateshie meeting of the board of directors that autlesrthe contract or transaction, or solely
because his, her or their votes are counted fomptingose, if:

Q) the material facts as to the relationship or irteasd as to the contract or transaction are disdor are
known to the board of directors and it authorizesdontract or transaction by the affirmative vaft@ majority of the disinterested directors
even though the disinterested directors are |lessdhguorum; or

(2) the material facts as to his or her relationshiptarest and as to the contract or transactiomslizclosed
or are known to the shareholders entitled to Voéegon and the contract or transaction is spettiifiepproved in good faith by vote of those
shareholders; or

) the contract or transaction is fair as to the Camyps of the time it is authorized, approved oifieat by
the board of directors or the shareholders.

(b) Quorum. Common or interested directors may be countetkiarmining the presence of a quorum at a meefing o
the board of directors which authorizes a contoadtansaction specified in subsection (a) above.




Section 7.05. Deposits. All funds of the Company shall be deposited frtomme to time to the credit of the Company in such
banks, trust companies or other depositaries alsdhrl of directors may approve or designate, #ralieh funds shall be withdrawn only
upon checks signed by such one or more officeesmployees as the board of directors shall from tortéme determine.

Section 7.06. Corporate RecordsThe Company shall keep complete and accuratesbad records of account, minutes of the
proceedings of the incorporators, shareholdersdinedtors and a share register giving the namesddtesses of all shareholders and the
number and class of shares held by each. The stgister or a copy thereof shall be kept at theifkeged Office of the Company, and its
principal place of business wherever situated thebffice of its registrar or transfer agent. Argoks, minutes or other records may be in
written form or any other form capable of being wented into written form within a reasonable time.

Section 7.07. Amendment of Bylaws These Bylaws may be amended or repealed, or ngawB adopted, either (i) by vote of
the shareholders at any duly organized annualexiabmeeting of shareholders, but subject to theigpions of the Articles of Incorporation,
or (ii) by vote of a majority of the board of ditecs of the Company in office at any regular orcsglemeeting of directors. Any change in
these Bylaws shall take effect when adopted urd#smrwise provided in the resolution effecting thange.




EXHIBIT 10 (o)
RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
Compensation Arrangements for Named Executive Offiers

Rocco Campanelli. Executive Vice Presidefihe Company on an at-will basis pursuant to ahagreement employs Mr. Campanelli. In
addition to standard medical, disability, life insoce, 401(k) and employee stock incentive benafitdlable to all eligible employees, he is
eligible for the Executive Medical SupplementargriPavailable to the named executive officers, thechtive Stock Option Plan available to
officers and key employees and an auto allowanadadle to certain middle managers and above. Mmganelli received a base salary of
$225,000 in 2008. His bonus compensation is coragris certain percentages of divisional operatirapime above certain threshold targets
plus any discretionary bonus awarded by the CongiemsCommittee of the Board, if any.

Kevin D. Miller. Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretdilye Company on an at-will basis pursuant to anagatement employs
Mr. Miller. In addition to the standard medicalsadbility, life insurance, 401(k) and employee stogentive benefits available to all eligible
employees, he is eligible for the Executive MedBapplementary Plan available to the named exexofiicers, the Executive Stock Option
Plan available to officers and key employees andwo allowance available to certain middle managed above. Mr. Miller received a bi
salary of $257,000 in 2008. He is eligible for aadetionary bonus.




EXHIBIT 10 (p)
RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
Compensation Arrangements for Directors
Directors who are RCM Technologies, Inc employegesnat compensated for their services as directors.

Non-employee directors, except as set forth belowh eaceive $24,000 in annual compensation for sereitthe Board, payable in equal
monthly installments in cash.

In addition, each non-employee director receives0§yayable in cash for each in-person meetingefuth Board attended by that director,
and $300 for each meeting of a committee (in exoéfsur meetings per year of that committee), Wkeinperson or telephonic, attended
that director.

Norman S. Berson, one of the -employee directors, is of counsel to a law firmttitom time to time performs services for the Camp
Fees paid by the Company to this law firm are mgiicant or material. Nevertheless, Mr. Bersos kaluntarily declined to accept
compensation for his service on the Board.




COMPUTATION OF EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
Years Ended December 27, 2008, December 29, 200d &ecember 30, 2006

(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

Diluted earnings

Net income applicable to common stc

Shares

Weighted average number of common shares outsig

Common stock equivalents

Total

Diluted earnings per common share

Basic

Net income applicable to common stc

Shares

Weighted average number of common shares outstgndin

Basic earnings per common shar

EXHIBIT 11

December 27 December 29 December 30
2008 2007 2006

$ (39,80 $ 6,76¢ $ 6,35¢
12,647,12 11,970,04 11,773,30

— 514,59 261,36

12,647,12 12,484,63 12,034,66

$ (3.15) $ 54 3% .53
$ (39,80 $ 6,76¢ $ 6,35¢€
12,647,12 11,970,04 11,773,30

$ (3.15) $ 57 8 .54




Business Support Group of Michigan, Inc.
Cataract, Inc.

Programming Alternatives of Minnesota, Inc.

RCMT Delaware, Inc.

RCM Technologies Services Company, Inc.
RCM Technologies (USA), Inc.

RCM Technologies Canada Corp

Soltre Technology, Inc.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

EXHIBIT 21




EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc.

We have issued our report dated March 24, 2009 mwipect to the consolidated financial statemeamisrelated schedules which are
included in the Annual Report of RCM Technologies, and Subsidiaries on Form 10-K for the yearsehDecember 27, 2008. We hereby
consent to the incorporation by reference of sajmbrt in the Registration Statements of RCM Teabgiek, Inc. on Forms S-8 (File No. 333-
145904, effective September 6, 2007, File No. 38366, effective April 21, 1993, File No. 333-805@fective June 22, 1994, File No. 333-
48089, effective March 17, 1998, File No. 333-522f6ective December 19, 2000 and File No. 333-824&ective December 21, 2000).

/s/Grant Thornton LLF
Grant Thornton LLF
Philadelphia, Pennsylvan
March 24, 200¢




EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Leon Kopyt, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Fof¥Klof RCM Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statémend other financial information included iistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | are responsible for establishing and maimgidisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(&) Designed such disclosure controls and pha@s, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over finahcgporting, or caused such internal control diremcial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regigtsadisclosure controls and procedures and preddntthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any chaimgihe registrant’s internal control over finandiaporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repodj and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehtatian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(@) All significant deficiencies and materiaéaknesses in the design or operation of internatabover financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatalves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 23, 2009

/sl Leon Kopy!

Leon Kopyt
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Kevin D. Miller, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Fof¥Klof RCM Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statémend other financial information included iistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | are responsible for establishing and maimgidisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(&) Designed such disclosure controls and pha@s, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over finahcgporting, or caused such internal control diremncial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regigtsadisclosure controls and procedures and preddntthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any chaimgthe registrant’s internal control over finanadiaporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repodj and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officeré)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(@ All significant deficiencies and materiat&knesses in the design or operation of internatabover financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatatves management or other employees who havendisamnt role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 23, 200

/s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, and Secre




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10f4R&€M Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) for theayeended December 27, 2008, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Leon Kopyte§ident & Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. secti®b0, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, to my
knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) of the Securities ExchangeoAt934, as amended (15 U.S.C. sec

78m (a)); and
(2) The information contained in the Reportlfapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the

Company.

/sl Leon Kopy

Leon Kopy!
Chief Executive Office
March 23, 200!

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to RCM Technedpdnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securdies Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10f4R&€M Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) for theayeended December 27, 2008, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Kevin D. Mille&Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section0]1 3 adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sasb@nley Act of 2002, to my

knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) of the Securities ExchangeoAt934, as amended (15 U.S.C. sec

78m (a)); and
(2) The information contained in the Reportlfapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the

Company.

/sl Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office
March 23, 200!

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to RCM Technedpdnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securdies Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




